EDGAROnline

COOPER COMPANIES INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 12/20/13 for the Period Ending 10/31/13

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

6140 STONERIDGE MALL RD
STE 590

PLEASANTON, CA 94588
9254603600

0000711404

COO

3851 - Ophthalmic Goods
Medical Equipment & Supplies
Healthcare

10/31

Powere 4 &y EDGAROnline

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2013, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2013
COMMISSION FILE NO. 1-8597

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 94-2657368
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590
Pleasanton, California 94588
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(925) 460-3600

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $.10 par value, and New York Stock Exchange
associated rights

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢iie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbéturities Act.  YedX] No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months, and (2)de@s subject to such filing requirements for thst[®0 days. YedX] NoO
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdwnitted electronically and posted on its corpoifeb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation $8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedif@grionths (c
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Y&d No[O
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéiters pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulationKSis not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgelefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 11l of this Fc
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axcelerated filer or a smaller report
company. See definitions of “large accelerated,filéaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coany” in Rule 12b2 of the Exchange A
(check one).
Large accelerated filefx] Accelerated filed  Non-accelerated fildll ~ Smaller reporting comparniy

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act). YesO No
On November 30, 2013, there were 47,655,018 stadrd®e registrant's common stock held by rdfiliates with aggregate market value
$5.2 billion on April 30, 2013, the last day of thegistrant's most recently completed fiscal seapratter.
Number of shares outstanding of the registrantisngon stock, as of November 30, 2048,000,571

Documents Incorporated by Reference:




Document Part of Form 10-K

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Mgt Part Il
of Stockholders scheduled to be held in March 2014




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the Fiscal Year Ended October 31, 2013

Table of Contents

PART I
Item 1.
Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.
PART II
Item 5.
Item 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A.
Item 9B.
PART 1l
Item 10.
Item 11.
Iltem 12.
Iltem 13.
Item 14.
PART IV
Item 15.

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Comments

Properties

Legal Proceedings

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Segutiblders

Market for Registrant's Common Equity &edated Stockholder Matters

Selected Financial Data

Management's Discussion and Analysis wéi¢ial Condition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosubmat Market Risk

Financial Statements and Supplementarg Dat

Changes In and Disagreements With Accoiigitan Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Other Information

Directors, Executive Officers and Corper@overnance

Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Benefi€aners and Management and Related Stockholder idatte
Certain Relationships and Related Traima; and Director Independence

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schexdlule

Page

8 18 18 18 I 1o

w
~

R IR R
W Ik IN Ik

=
o
w

=
o
w

[EE
o
IS

105

ol el [
OHO
o g o

=
5
(&)

105

=
(6]

=
(e}




PART |

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaodking statementsiithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securitied
of 1934 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchahegteof 1934. These include statements relatinglamg prospects, goc
strategies, future actions, events or performandeosher statements which are other than stateméhistorical fact. In additio
all statements regarding anticipated growth inrevenue, anticipated effects of any product recafiticipated market conditio
planned product launches and expected results efabpns and integration of any acquisition arevéodiooking. To identify
these statements look for words like “believes,)gects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “seeks,” “intends,” “plans,”
“estimates” or “anticipates” and similar words drrases. Forwartboking statements necessarily depend on assunsptifata ¢
methods that may be incorrect or imprecise andalgect to risks and uncertainties. Among the facdtioat could cause our act
results and future actions to differ materiallynfrthose described in forward-looking statements are

. Adverse changes in global or regional general lssinpolitical and economic conditions due to theremt globe
economic downturn, including the impact of contimuiuncertainty and instability of certain Européamion countrie
which could adversely affect our global markets.

. Foreign currency exchange rate and interest ratdufitions including the risk of further declinestine value of the yt
that would decrease our revenues and earnings.

. Acquisition integration delays or costs or the iegment to record significant adjustments to theiprinary fair value ¢
assets acquired and liabilities assumed withimteasurement period.

. A major disruption in the operations of our mantfieing, research and development or distributiotilifees, due t
technological problems, natural disasters or otheses.

. Disruptions in supplies of raw materials, particly@omponents used to manufacture our siliconadyel lense:

. The impact of acquisitions or divestitures on rews) earnings or margi

. Limitations on sales following new product introtioas due to poor market accepta

. New competitors, product innovations or technols:

. Reduced sales, loss of customers and costs andsegeelated to reca

. New U.S. and foreign government laws and regulatiaand changes in existing laws, regulations arfdreamen
guidance, which affect the medical device induatrgl the healthcare industry generally.

. Failures to receive, or delays in receiving, UISfooeign regulatory approvals for produ

. Failure to obtain adequate coverage and reimbunseimoen third party payors for our produt

. Compliance costs and potential liability in conmaectwith U.S. and foreign healthcare regulatiomsluding produc

recalls, and potential losses resulting from safeunterfeit and other infringing products.

. Legal costs, insurance expenses, settlement codtghe risk of an adverse decision or settlemelattee@ to produt
liability, patent protection or other litigation.




. Changes in tax laws or their interpretation anchglea in statutory tax rat

. The requirement to provide for a significant ligtlgilor to write off, or accelerate depreciation @nsignificant asse
including goodwill.

. The success of the Company’s research and gewelat activities and other starp-projects

. Dilution to earnings per share from acquisitiongseting stocl

. Changes in accounting principles or estim;

. Environmental risk:

. Other events described in our Securities anch&xge Commission filings, including the “Businessid “Risk Factors”

sections in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for flseal year ended October 31, 2018s such Risk Factors may
updated in quarterly filings.

We caution investors that forwaldeking statements reflect our analysis only onrtsated date. We disclaim any intent to up
them except as required by law.




Item 1. Business

The Cooper Companies, Inc. (Cooper, we or the Cagpa Delaware corporation organized in 1980, géadal medical devic
company publicly traded on the NYSE Euronext (NYERO). Cooper is dedicated to being A Quality delCompany™ with &
focus on shareholder value. Cooper operates througlhbusiness units, CooperVision, Inc. and Coopsgigal, Inc.

CooperVision is a global manufacturer providing darets for contact lens wearers. CooperVision deslonanufactures a
markets a broad range of monthly, two-week andlisinge contact lenses, featuring advanced materidlsjgiics. CooperVisior
products are designed to solve vision challengeb a8 astigmatism, presbyopia and ocular dryneil; avbroad collection
spherical, toric and multifocal contact lenses. @o¥ision's products are primarily manufactureditatfacilities located i
Hampshire, United Kingdom, Juana Diaz, Puerto Rieca Scottsville, New York. CooperVision distribsiteroducts from We
Henrietta, New York, Fareham, United Kingdom, LieBelgium, and various smaller international disition facilities.

CooperSurgical focuses on supplying women's heditiicians with products and treatment options rgiiove the delivery
healthcare to women. CooperSurgical's primary éljes include internal growth and growth througlyuisitions to expand |
core businesses and the introduction of advanadthtdogybased products to aid clinicians in the managemedttreatment
commonly seen conditions. CooperSurgical custonaeeshealthcare professionals and institutions piogi care to and fi
women. CooperSurgical products support the poinhexlthcare delivery in the hospital, cliniciandicaf and fertility clinics
CooperSurgical's major manufacturing and distrdoufecilities are located in Trumbull, Connectiduialov, Denmark, Pasade
California, Stafford, Texas, Golden, Colorado, &ailin, Germany.

CooperVision and CooperSurgical each operate ihlyigompetitive environments. Competition in thedieal device industi
involves the search for technological and therdpenhovations. Both of Cooper's businesses competearily on the basis
product quality and differentiation, technologibainefit, service and reliability.

COOPERVISION

CooperVision competes in the worldwide soft contlects market and services three primary regions: Americas, EME,
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Asia Pacifibe contact lens market has two major product cates;

» Spherical lenses including lenses that correat+and farsightedness uncomplicated by more compkxavidefect:
» Toric and multifocal lenses including lensestthia addition to correcting neaand farsightedness, address more con
visual defects such as astigmatism and presbyopiadaing optical properties of cylinder and axishiah correct fc

irregularities in the shape of the cornea.

In order to achieve comfortable and healthy conlerws wear, products are sold with recommendedcephent schedules, of
defined as modalities, with the primary modalitiesng single-use, two-week and monthly.




CooperVision offers spherical, aspherical, toricftifocal and toric multifocal lens products in masodalities. We believe that
order to compete successfully in the numerous sicliehe contact lens market, companies must difégrentiated products tr
are priced competitively and manufactured effidien€ooperVision believes that it is the only cantiens manufacturer to
three different manufacturing processes to prodiscéenses: lathing, cast molding and FIPS™, a-effsttive combination «
lathing and molding. This manufacturing flexibil@lows CooperVision to compete in its markets by:

* Producing high, medium and low volumes of lenseslenaith a variety of materials for a broader raofenarket niche:
single-use, twaweek, monthly and quarterly disposable sphere andl lenses and custom toric lenses for patientis avhig}
degree of astigmatism.

» Offering a wide range of lens parameters, leading higher rate of successful fitting for practiéos and better visual act
for patients.

Sales of contact lenses utilizing silicone hydrogeiterials, a major product material in the indystrave grown significantl
Silicone hydrogel materials supply a higher leebxygen to the cornea, as measured by the trasiitity of oxygen through
given thickness of material, or “dk/tthan traditional hydrogel lenses. Silicone hydrdgakes now represent a significant pol
of CooperVision's contact lens sales and our Bityfgn brand is CooperVision's leading product line. Untther Biofinity branc
CooperVision has launched monthly silicone hydroggherical, toric and multifocal lens products otlee past five yeal
CooperVision has also launched two-week silicongrdgel spherical and toric lens products under/foraira® brand. In fisce
2013, we launched MyDay , our single-use spherical silicone hydrogel lém&urope.

In addition, CooperVision lenses compete based mviging superior comfort through the use of lerdge technolog
CooperVision lenses have a round to partial roushgeenhich we believe increases comfort. Cooper¥isi®roclear&line of
spherical, toric and multifocal lenses are manuiact with omafilcon, a material that incorporatdsogphorylcholine (P(
Technology™ that helps enhance tissieeice compatibility. Proclear lenses are the dehges with FDA clearance for the cli
"... may provide improved comfort for contact lens weanho experience mild discomfort or symptoms netato drynes
during lens wear." Mild discomfort relating to degs during lens wear is a condition that often eswmatients to discontin
contact lens wear.

In addition to its PC Technology™ and silicone logkl product offerings, CooperVision competes mdbntact lens market w
its traditional hydrogel products.

Contact Lens Product Sales

Fheres: Net sales of CooperVision's spherical lenses, sgmting 56 percent of CooperVision's net salesy gr@ercent in fisci
2013, as compared to fiscal 2012. Single-use spdidens net sales, representing 21 percent cdates, grew 1 percent.

Toric and Multifocal: Net sales of CooperVision's toric lenses, represgi®1 percent of CooperVision's net sales, grqver@en
in fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal 2012. Muttéblens net sales, representing 10 percent afales, grew 29 percent in fis
2013.

Proclear: Net sales of CooperVision's PC Technology producishich consist of spherical, toric and multifocalogucts
including Biomedics® XC and Proclear® 1 Dagrew 6 percent in fiscal 2013 as compared to fig€dl2 and represented
percent of CooperVision's net sales.




Slicone Hydrogel: CooperVision's silicone hydrogel spherical, tomad anultifocal lens products grew 26 percent indis2013 a
compared to fiscal 2012 and represented 43 peot&operVision's net sales as compared to 36 penediscal 2012.

CooperVision Competition

The contact lens market is highly competitive. Gadfision's three largest competitors in the worltlvmarket and its prime
competitors in the spherical, toric and multifotsals categories of that market are Johnson & Johk$sion Care, Inc., CIB.
Vision (owned by Novartis AG) and Bausch & Lombdngorated (owned by Valeant Pharmaceuticals Intemmal, Inc.).

Over the past decade, the contact lens industrgX@erienced a global shift toward silicone hydtdgeses and toward singlese
lenses. CooperVision's primary competitors corttrel majority of the silicone hydrogel segment @& tharket. CooperVision w
late in entering the silicone hydrogel segmentefrnarket but now has significant sales of mondnigt twoweek spherical, tor
and multifocal silicone hydrogel offerings, andhés recently introduced a silicone hydrogel single-spherical lens.

In the toric lens market, a similar shift towarticseine hydrogel lenses has occurred but we belibatlens manufacturers a
continue to compete to provide the highest possd#sel of visual acuity and patient satisfactiondffering a wide range of le
parameters, superior wearing comfort and a higlell@f customer service, both for patients and aintans practitioner
CooperVision competes based on its three manufagtprocesses yielding wider ranges of toric leasameters, providing wir
choices for patient and practitioner and superisual acuity, as well as by offering excellent casér service, including hit
standards of on-time product delivery.

CooperVision's primary competitors have greatearfisial resources and larger research and develdgiudgets and sales forc
CooperVision seeks to offer a high level of custos®rvice through its direct sales organizatiormaiad the world and throu
telephone sales and technical service represessatitio consult with eye care professionals abautiie of the Company's ¢
products.

CooperVision also competes with manufacturers efglasses and with refractive surgical procedurasdbarrect visual defec
CooperVision believes that its contact lenses edghttinue to compete favorably against eyeglasségtaere are opportunities
contact lenses to gain market share, particularmarkets where the penetration of contact lems#ései vision correction market
low. CooperVision also believes that laser visiorrection is not a significant threat to its saldésontact lenses.




COOPERSURGICAL

CooperSurgical offers a broad array of productsl iisehe care and treatment of women's health.Gdémapany participates in t
women's healthcare market through offering qualityducts, innovative technologies and superioriserto clinicians worldwidt
CooperSurgical collaborates with clinicians to itfgnproducts and new technologies from disposaisteducts to sophisticat
instruments and equipment. The result is a broatigtio of products that aid in the delivery of imgwved clinical outcomes tr
healthcare professionals use routinely in the dagnand treatment of a wide spectrum of womeradilinessues.

Since its inception in 1990, CooperSurgical haaditg grown its market presence and distributiostem by developing produ
and acquiring products and companies that compleitseousiness model.

Acquisition of Origio

In July 2012, CooperSurgical completed a voluntander offer for the outstanding shares of Origg @rigio is a global initro
fertilization (IVF) medical device company that ééps, manufactures and distributes highly spesédliproducts that target I'
treatment with a goal to make fertility treatmenfes, more efficient and convenient. Based in Malbenmark, Origio, wit
approximately 320 employees, is a leader in daligeinnovative Assisted Reproductive Technology TARolutions that enhan
the work of ART professionals to the benefit of fles. With 13 subsidiaries and several distribstd@rigio has a worldwic
presence with a broad product portfolio for the ARRarket along with professional training programs.

Market for Women's Healthcare

CooperSurgical participates in the market for womdmealthcare with its diversified product lines @fer 600 product
CooperSurgical products are in three major categobased on the point of healthcare delivery: halspiobstetricians a
gynecologists (ob/gyns) medical offices and feytidlinics.

Based on United States Census estimates, Coopa&uwgpects patient visits to United States obggimnincrease over the n
decade. Driving this growth is an increasing basesproductive age women, a large and stable middésl population and
rapidly growing population of women over the agesbf CooperSurgical believes that the resurgengmpiilation growth in tf
reproductive age group will result in increasedoefivisits related to birth control and childbegri€ooperSurgical expects groy
in fertility treatments as more women choose tayeahildbearing to the mithirties and beyond. Office visit activity relatén
menopausal problems, including abnormal bleedimgpritinence and osteoporosis, are also expectiedtrease slightly over tl
next decade. CooperSurgical believes that in tls¢ glicians primarily saw women only during the@productive years. No
with new treatment options available and a morecatha population, CooperSurgical expects the oglaliip between the pati
and clinician will continue into the middle yearsddater.

Another trend in the market for women's healthcadudes the migration of ob/gyn clinicians awapnfr private practic
ownership and toward aligning with group practioegmployment with hospitals and health systemesp@dsurgical believes tt
the market factors that are driving this trend wilhtinue in the near term.

While general medical practitioners play an impatrt@le in women's primary care, the ob/gyn spestiéd the primary market f
associated medical devices.




Some significant features of this market are:

» Patient visits are for annual checkups, canceresang, menstrual disorders, vaginitis (inflammatioh vaginal tissue
treatment of abnormal Pap smears, osteoporosiadtied in bone mass) and the management of menepptegnancy al
reproductive management.

* Ob/gyns traditionally provide the initial evaluatidor women and their partners who seek infertiissistance. Ovulatc
drugs and intrauterine insemination (IUl) are comrreatments of these cases along with embryofeapsocedures.

» Osteoporosis and incontinence have become freqiiaghoses as the female population ages. Earlytifidation anc
treatment of these conditions will both improve vemis health and help reduce overall costs of treattm

» Sterilization is a frequently performed surgicabqadure

* Hysterectomy, one of the most commonly performedyisal procedures, is increasingly performed usintaparoscop
approach.

» The trend to move hospithksed procedures to an office or clinical settsgdntinuing as seen with the endometrial abl
procedure.

CooperSurgical's Fiscal 2013 Net Sales Growth

During fiscal 2013, CooperSurgical's net sales g2éwpercent, or 3 percent excluding acquisition$319.4 million from $255
million in fiscal 2012, representing 20 percenGafoper's net sales in fiscal 2013 compared to t&pein fiscal 2012. With tt
acquisition of Origio in July 2012, sales of fetyilproducts now represent 33 percent of Coopeiligal'g net sales as compare
16 percent in fiscal 2012.

CooperSurgical Competition

CooperSurgical focuses on selected segments ofvtdmen's healthcare market, supplying diagnostidyets and surgic
instruments and accessories. In some instancespe€®urgical offers all of the items needed for anplete procedur
CooperSurgical believes that opportunities exist dontinued market consolidation of smaller tecbggidriven firms the
generally offer only one or two product lines. Mas¢ privately owned or divisions of public comgmnincluding some owned
companies with greater financial resources tharp€ono

Competitive factors in these segments include teldgical and scientific advances, product qualitsice, customer service &
effective communication of product information tbygicians and hospitals. CooperSurgical competesgdan its sales a
marketing expertise and the technological advastadés products. CooperSurgical's strategy inetudeveloping and acquiri
new products, including those used in new medioatgdures. As CooperSurgical expands its prodnet It also offers trainir
for medical professionals in the appropriate usésgdroducts.

CooperSurgical is seeking to expand its presendiersignificantly larger hospital and outpatientgical procedure segment
the market that is at present dominated by biggenpetitors such as Johnson & Johnson's Ethicon Sagery and Ethicc
Women's Health and Urology companies, Boston SfienGyrus ACMI and Covidien. These competitorssbavell establishe
positions within the operating room
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environment. CooperSurgical intends to leverageratationship with gynecologic surgeons and focusdevices specific
gynecologic surgery to facilitate its expansionhivitthe surgical segment of the market.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Cooper employs about 245 people in its researchdawelopment and manufacturing engineering depatsnélost of thes
employees are in CooperVision. CooperVision prodietelopment and clinical research is supportednt®rnal and extern
specialists in lens design, formulation sciencdyrper chemistry, clinical trials, microbiology afmochemistry. CooperVisior
research and development activities primarily idelgprograms to develop new contact lens designs.

CooperSurgical conducts research and developmédmiugse and also has consulting agreements withrextsurgical specialis
CooperSurgical's research and development actvitidude the design and upgrading of surgical gulace devices, the upgr:
and expansion of CooperSurgical's portfolio of stssi reproductive technology products, includinggiorproducts, as well .
products within the general obstetrics and gynepolufferings.

Coopersponsored research and development expendituregdiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $58.8 mill®®]1.7 million an
$43.6 million, respectively. Research and develagreapenditures represented 4 percent of net safexcal 2013 and 2012, a
3 percent in 2011. During fiscal 2013, CooperVisiepresented 79 percent and CooperSurgical refgeses2th percent of the to
research and development expenses. We did notipaté in any customesponsored research and development programs
fiscal 2011 - 2013.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION
Medical Device Regulatiol

Our products are medical devices subject to extengigulation by the United States Food and Drughificstration (FDA) in th
United States and other regulatory bodies abro&A Fegulations govern, among other things, medwevice design ar
development, testing, manufacturing, labeling,ager recordkeeping, premarket clearance or apprasheértising and promotic
and sales and distribution. Unless an exemptiotieppeach medical device we wish to distribute wwrcially in the Unite
States will require either prior 510(k) clearaneepdor premarket approval (PMA) from the FDA. A joidty of the medice
devices we currently market have received FDA eleee through the 510(k) process or approval thrabghPMA proces
Because we cannot be assured that any new progaatgvelop, or any product enhancements, will ligesti to the shorter 510
(k) clearance process, significant delays in tiwd@uction of any new products or product enhancgsumay occur.

Device Classification

The FDA classifies medical devices into one of ¢hctasses - Class |, 1l or llldepending on the degree of risk associated
each medical device and the extent of control neéalensure its safety and effectiveness. Both €ddpion and CooperSurgic
develop and market medical devices under diffel@rgls of FDA regulation depending on the clasatfin of the device. Cla
Il devices, such as flexible and extended weatamirienses, require extensive premarket testidgagproval, while Class | a
Il devices require lower levels of regulation. Thajority of CooperSurgical's products are ClagieNices.

Class | devices are those for which safety andcci¥ieness can be assured by adherence to the feA&ral regulatory contre
for medical devices, which include compliance wita applicable portions of the FDA's
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Quality System Regulation, facility registrationdaproduct listing, reporting of adverse medicalrgseand appropriate, truth
and nonmisleading labeling, advertising, and promotionatenials (General Controls). Some Class | devidee &equir
premarket clearance by the FDA through the 510dnarket notification process described below.

Class Il devices are subject to the FDA's Genemldt®ls, and any other special controls as deemedssary by the FDA
ensure the safety and effectiveness of the deRi@market review and clearance by the FDA for Qlladsvices is accomplish
through the 510(k) premarket notification procedwarsuant to the Medical Device User Fee and Mudation Act of 200
(MDUFMA), unless a specific exemption applies, K)qfremarket notification submissions are subjeaider fees. Certain Cl
Il devices are exempt from this premarket revieacpss.

Class Il devices are those devices which havemaingended use, or use advanced technology thaitisubstantially equivale
to that of a legally marketed device. The safetyl affectiveness of Class IIl devices cannot be rassgolely by the Gene
Controls and the other requirements described ablivese devices almost always require formal dingtudies to demonstr:
safety and effectiveness and must be approved ghroloe premarket approval process described beRvemarket approv
applications (and supplemental premarket apprgsaliGations) are subject to significantly higheeufees under MDUFMA the
are 510(k) premarket notifications.

510(k) Clearance Pathway

When we are required to obtain a 510(k) clearaoce device that we wish to market, we must sulanptemarket notification
the FDA demonstrating that the device is substinteguivalent to a previously cleared 510(k) devimr a device that was
commercial distribution before May 28, 1976, forigththe FDA has not yet called for the submissiérp@market approv
applications. By regulation, the FDA is requiredd¢spond to a 510(k) premarket notification witBh days of submission of 1
notification. As a practical matter, clearance take significantly longer. If the FDA determinesthhe device, or its intend
use, is not substantially equivalent to a previpuastared device or use, the FDA will place the deyvar the particular use of
device, into Class Ill.

After a device receives 510(k) clearance, any nicatibn that could significantly affect its safaiy effectiveness, or that chan
its intended use, will require a new 510(k) cleasaor could require premarket approval. The FDAIe$ each manufacturer
make this determination initially, but the FDA caaview any such decision and can disagree with rmufaaturer's determinatic
If the FDA disagrees with a manufacturer's deteatnom that a new clearance or approval is not requfor a particule
modification, the FDA can require the manufactucecease marketing and/or recall the modified dewictil 510(k) clearance
premarket approval is obtained. In these circunt&sna manufacturer also may be subject to significegulatory fines
penalties. We have made and plan to continue teeradKitional product enhancements and modificatiormur devices that v
believe do not require new 510(k) clearances.

Premarket Approval Pathway
A PMA application must be submitted if the devi@ot be cleared through the 510(k) premarketioatibn procedures. T
PMA process is much more demanding than the 5Jf¥narket notification process. A PMA applicationshbe supported

extensive data including, but not limited to, teichh preclinical, clinical trials, manufacturingié labeling to demonstrate to
FDA's satisfaction the safety and effectiveneghefdevice for its intended use.
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After a PMA application is complete, the FDA begars indepth review of the submitted information. The F, statute ar
regulation, has 180 days to review an accepted Rp#lication, although the review generally occursraa significantly longe
period of time, and can take up to several yeausin this review period, the FDA may request daddal information, includin
clinical data, or clarification of information alidy provided. Also during the review period, aniadry panel of experts frc
outside the FDA may be convened to review and etalthe application and provide recommendationthé¢oFDA as to tt
approvability of the device. In addition, the FDAllveonduct a preapproval inspection of the mantufang facility to ensur
compliance with the Quality System Regulation (QI®w PMA applications or PMA application suppleriseare required fi
significant modifications to the manufacturing pees, labeling and design of a device that is aggrdfarough the premarl
approval process. Premarket approval supplememés aéquire submission of the same type of infoiznats a premark
approval application, except that the supplemeiitniged to information needed to support any chemffom the device cover
by the original premarket approval application, anady not require as extensive clinical data ordbevening of an adviso
panel.

Clinical Trials

A clinical trial is almost always required to supp@a PMA application and is sometimes required do610(k) premark
notification. These trials generally require sulsitia of an application for an investigational devexemption (IDE) to the FD.
The IDE application must be supported by approprta, such as animal and laboratory testingtseesllowing that the potent
benefits of testing the device in humans outweitites risks and that the testing protocol is sciewtify sound. The ID
application must be approved in advance by the F@xAa specified number of patients, unless the ypecbds deemed a non-
significant risk device and eligible for more abbated investigational device exemption requirerae@linical trials for
significant risk device may begin once the IDE &ailon is approved by both the FDA and the appaberinstitutional revie!
boards at the clinical trial sites. All of Coopecsarrently marketed products have been clearedllbgppropriate regulato
agencies, and Cooper has no product currently beargeted under an IDE.

Continuing FDA Regulation

After a device is placed on the market, numerouypiledory requirements apply. These include: the Q®Rich require
manufacturers to follow design, testing, contralcuimentation and other quality assurance procedlurgsg the manufacturil
process; labeling regulations, which prohibit thenmpotion of products for unapproved or “off-labalses and impose otl
restrictions on labeling; new FDA unique deviceniifger legislation which requires changes to labgland packaging; tl
recently enacted Physician Payments Sunshine Agciirieg the reporting of certain payments to healine practitioners ma
after August 1, 2013; and medical device reporteamgulations, which require that manufacturers refmwthe FDA if their devic
may have caused or contributed to a death or seiigury or malfunctioned in a way that would likedause or contribute tc
death or serious injury if it were to recur. TheA-Bas broad postharket and regulatory enforcement powers. We dgesutc
unannounced inspections by the FDA to determinecompliance with the QSR and other regulations.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory re@mirents can result in enforcement action by the Ritfich may include any
the following sanctions: fines, injunctions andilcpenalties; recall, seizure or import holds of puoducts; operating restrictio
suspension of production; refusing our requestid(k) clearance or premarket approval of new petsjwithdrawing 510(}
clearance or premarket approvals that are alressdyted and criminal prosecution.
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Even if regulatory approval or clearance of a maldievice is granted, the FDA may impose limitasi@n restrictions on the u
and indications for which the device may be labeded promoted. Medical devices may be marketed @mlythe uses ar
indications for which they are cleared or approvEDA regulations prohibit a manufacturer from prdimg a device for
unapproved or “off-label” use. Failure to complytlwthis prohibition on “off-labelpromotion can result in enforcement actiol
the FDA, including, among other things, warningdeg, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and oiviriminal penalties.

Foreign Regulation

Health authorities in foreign countries regulate@ar's clinical trials and medical device sales Tdégulations vary widely fro
country to country. Even if the FDA has approvegraeduct, the regulatory agencies in each countrgtrapprove new produ
before they may be marketed there. The worldwidalitéé Device regulations are increasing, with maoyntries becomir
regulated for the first time. For example, Hong Band Singapore are now regulated and followingGlabal Harmonizatic
Task Force model for regulating medical devicesesEhemerging regulated countries require the sagoeous safety da
compiled in preelinical and clinical studies for the rest of thend. Japan has one of the most rigorous regulagsyems in tt
world and requires iountry clinical trials. The Japanese quality aedufatory standards remain stringent even withntiogee
recent harmonization efforts and updated Japamggdations. China is also updating its regulatiand is requiring rigorous in-
country product testing.

These regulatory procedures require a considefalkstment in time and resources and usually resu#t substantial del:
between new product development and marketindidf@ompany does not maintain compliance with régojastandards or
problems occur after marketing, product approvay seawithdrawn.

In addition to FDA regulatory requirements, the @amy also maintains 1ISO 13485 certification and @&k approvals for i
products. A CE mark is an international symbol dherence to certain standards and compliance wighicable Europes
medical device requirements. These quality progrants approvals are required by the European Mediealce Directive ar
must be maintained for all products intended tosblel in the European market. The 1SO 13485 Qualigasurement Syste
registration is now also required for registratminproducts in Asia Pacific and Latin American ctiigs. In order to mainta
these quality benchmarks, the Company is subjdotédorous biannual reassessment audits of itBtgusgstems and procedure

Other Health Care Regulation

We may be subject to various federal, state arelgorlaws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abinskjding antikickback law:
and physician selfeferral laws, and laws pertaining to healthcaregoy and security. Violations of these laws araiphiable b
criminal and civil sanctions, including, in somestinces, exclusion from participation in federad atate healthcare progral
including Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans Administoatihealth programs and TRICARE. Similarly if theypigians or othe
providers or entities with whom we do business fatend to be noncompliant with applicable laws, thegly be subject

sanctions, which could indirectly have a negatim@act on our business, financial conditions andlte®f operations. While v
believe that our operations are in material conmgkawith such laws, as applicable to us, becausizeofomplex and fareachin
nature of these laws, there can be no assurantevéhavould not be required to alter one or moreoof practices to be

compliance with these laws.
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RAW MATERIALS

CooperVision's raw materials primarily consist afieus chemicals and packaging materials and arerglty available from mo
than one source. However, CooperVision relies da sappliers for certain raw materials used to maige silicone hydrog:
contact lens products. If current raw material $iepp fail to supply sufficient materials on a tilpmdasis or at all for any reas
we may suffer a disruption in the supply of ouicsihe hydrogel contact lens products.

Raw materials used by CooperSurgical are geneealgilable from more than one source. However, bexaome produc
require specialized manufacturing procedures, wedcexperience inventory shortages if we were meglito use an alternati
supplier on short notice.

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

CooperVision markets its products in the Unitedte&tathrough its field sales representatives, whib @a optometrist:
ophthalmologists, opticians, optical chains andrithstors. CooperVision augments its United Stataies and marketing effo
with ecommerce, telemarketing, social media and advegtigi professional journals. In the EMEA and Asici#fic regions
CooperVision primarily markets its products throuiys field sales representatives. In other coustri€ooperVision us
distributors and has given some of them the exatusght to market its products within specific geaphic areas.

CooperSurgical's products are marketed by a netebdedicated field sales representatives, indegatnagents and distributc
In the United States, CooperSurgical augmentsaltsssand marketing activities by participating ational and regional indus
tradeshows, professional educational programs atatniet promotions including-eommerce, social media and collabore
efforts with professional organizations, telemairiget direct mail and advertising in professionalirjeals. Origio products &
marketed globally through its field sales repreativis and distributors.

PATENTS, TRADEMARKS AND LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Cooper owns or licenses a variety of domestic angidn patents, which, in total, are material sooiverall business. The name
certain of Cooper's products are protected by imadlke registrations in the United States Patentlaademark Office and, in sol
cases, also in foreign trademark offices. Applaadi are pending for additional trademark and patmgistrations. Cooper inter
to protect its intellectual property rights aggresly.

No individual patent or license is material to @@mpany or either of its principal business uniteeothan our License Agreem
effective as of November 19, 2007, between Coomoxiand CIBA Vision AG and CIBA Vision Corporatioithis licens
relates to patents covering CooperVision's silicoypdrogel contact lens products. The Companmgyalty obligations under t
License Agreement extend until the expiration @f dpplicable patent rights, which the Company kebewill occur in Septemb
2014 in the United States and in March 2016 outsidbe United States.

In addition to trademarks and patent licensesCii@mpany owns certain trade secrets, copyrightswkmmwy and other intellectu
property.

DEPENDENCE ON CUSTOMERS

Neither of our business units depends to any nadtexient on any one customer or any one affiligi@dip of customer:
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GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS

Neither of our business units is materially subjecprofit renegotiation or termination of contractr subcontracts at the elec
of the United States government.

BACKLOG
Backlog is not a material factor in either of Cotgbusiness units.
SEASONALITY

CooperVision's contact lens sales in its fiscatfgquarter, which runs from November 1 through danG@1, are typically low
than subsequent quarters, as patient traffic tetigomers' offices is relatively light during tieliday season.

COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

Federal, state and local provisions that regula¢edischarge of materials into the environmentetate to the protection of t
environment, do not currently materially affect @eds capital expenditures, earnings or competgoation.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS, GEOG RAPHIC AREAS, FOREIGN OPERATIONS
AND EXPORT SALES

The information required by this item is includedthe "Business Segment Information" of our notesdnsolidated financi
statements and "Risk Factors" as part of this AhReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endeddbet 31, 2013.

EMPLOYEES

On October 31, 2013the Company had about 8,000 employees. The Comipalieves that its relations with its employees
good.

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE CERTIFICATION
We submitted our 2013 annual Section 12(a) CEQficatton with the New York Stock Exchange. The tderation was nc
gualified in any respect. Additionally, we filed tvithe Securities and Exchange Commission as éghibithis Annual Report «

Form 10-K for the year ended October 31, 2013EE® and CFO certifications required under Sectidd & the Sarbanedxley
Act of 2002.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Cooper Companies, Inc. Internet address ighitpw.coopercos.com. The information on the ConymlVeb site is not pe
of this or any other report we file with, or furhigo, the SEC. Our annual reports on Form 10-Krteug reports on Form 1@
and current reports on Formkg-along with all other reports and amendmentsdfileith or furnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC), are publicly availalde fof charge on our Web site as soon as reasopeddyicable. The publ
may read and copy these materials at the SEC'scHRélerence Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washindd@120549. The publ
may obtain information on the operation of the RuBleference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-8B830. The SEC maintai
a Web site that contains such reports, proxy arfdrrimation statements and other information whosteriet address

http://lwww.sec.gov. The Company's Corporate GoveraaPrinciples, Ethics and Business Conduct Painy charters of ea
standing committee of the Board of Directors ase @losted on the Company's Web site.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business faces significant risks. These risks include those described below and may include additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial. Our business, financial condition and results of operations could
be materially adversely affected by any of these risks, and the trading prices of our common stock could decline by virtue of these
risks. These risks should be read in conjunction with the other information in this report.

Risks Relating to Our Business

We operate in the highly competitive healthcare indstry and there can be no assurance that we will bable to compet
successfully.

Each of our businesses operates within a highlypetitive environment. In our soft contact lens bass, CooperVision fac
intense competition from competitors' productspanticular silicone hydrogel contact lenses, ang faae increasing competiti
as other new products enter the market. Our majopetitors in the contact lens business, Johnsdoléason Vision Care, In
CIBA Vision (owned by Novartis AG) and Bausch & Lbminc. (owned by Valeant Pharmaceuticals Inteanat, Inc.), hav
substantially greater financial resources, largsearch and development budgets, larger salesfagoeater market penetrat
and/or larger manufacturing volumes than CoopeoviisiThey offer competitive products and differetatiih materials, plus
variety of other eye care products including lemsecproducts and ophthalmic pharmaceuticals, winigty give them

competitive advantage in marketing their lenses Trarket for contact lenses is intensely competitind is characterized
declining sales volumes for older product lines gralving demand for silicone hydrogel based pragludur ability to respond
these competitive pressures will depend on ouitald decrease our costs and maintain gross meaggid operating results anc
introduce new products successfully, on a timelgi®én the Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific, andathieve manufacturil
efficiencies and sufficient manufacturing capaeithd capabilities for such products. Any significdatrease in our costs per |
will depend, in part, on our ability to increasdesavolume and production capabilities. Our failtwerespond tacompetitive
pressures in a timely manner could have a mai@adrse effect on our business, financial conddioa results of operations.

To a lesser extent, CooperVision also competes mvahufacturers of eyeglasses and providers of diners of vision correctic
including ophthalmic surgery.

There can be no assurance that we will not encoimteesased competition in the future, or that competitors' newer cont:
lens products will not successfully erode Coopdofi's contact lens business, which could have a&mahtidverse effect on ¢
business, financial condition and results of openst

In the women's healthcare market, competitive factoclude technological and scientific advancesdpct quality, price ar
effective communication of product information tdwygicians and hospitals. CooperSurgical competdl @&i humber ¢
manufacturers in each of its niche areas, somehafhnhave substantially greater financial and pansbresources and sell a m
broader range of products, which may give themdsaiatage in marketing competitive products.

Acquisitions that we have made and may make in thieiture involve numerous risks.
We have a history of acquiring businesses and ptedbat have significantly contributed to our gtiown recent years. As part

our growth strategy, particularly at CooperSurgicaé intend to continue to consider acquiring cam@ntary technologie
products and businesses. Future acquisitions cesldt in
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potentially dilutive issuances of equity securititge incurrence of debt and contingent liabilittesl an increase in amortizal
and/or writeeffs of goodwill and other intangible assets, whoduld have a material adverse effect upon oumiessi financi
condition and results of operations. In fiscal 20CBoperSurgical completed the acquisition of Q@rigfs. This acquisition adc
significant operations to CooperSurgical and gyeatikpanded its international business. The Origmgussition ha
correspondingly added risks to CooperSurgical. Risk could face with respect to acquisitions, idiclg the Origio acquisitio
include:

+ difficulties in, and expenses related to, the iraégn of the operations, technologies, products$ personnel of the acquir
company and establishment of appropriate accourtgrgrols and reporting procedures and other régglacomplianc
procedures;

» risks of entering markets in which we have no wmitid prior experienc

* potential loss of employet

e aninability to identify and consummate future a@sijions on favorable terms or at

» diversion of management's attention away from oblisiness concert

» expenses of any undisclosed or potential liabdibéthe acquired compai

* expenses, including restructuring expensediubdown our own locations or terminate our employ
» adilution of earnings per share;

» risks inherent in accounting allocatic

Product innovations are important in the industry in which we operate, and we face the risk of produadbsolescence if w
are unable to develop new products or gain regulaty approvals or if our competitors introduce new products.

Product innovations are important in the contags lmarket in which CooperVision competes and inateas of the healthc:
industry in which CooperSurgical competes. Coopegigal does not allocate substantial resourceseto product developme
but rather it has historically purchased, leveragedicensed the technology developments of oth€moperVision has be
investing in new product development since 2008uthing the development of silicone hydrogpelsed contact lenses. Althol
CooperVision focuses on products that will be mtake immediately or in the short to medium terrthea than on fundir
longerterm, higher risk research and development prgjéote commitments, the cost of obtaining necesezgylatory approv
and other costs related to product innovations lmarsubstantial. There can be no assurance thatilveuwscessfully obtai
necessary regulatory approvals or clearances fomew products or that our new products will sustidlyy compete in tr
marketplace and, as a result, justify the expemgaved in their development and regulatory apprdweaddition, our competito
may have developed or may in the future develop pducts or technologies, such as contact lengbsawti-microbial or anti-
allergenic features, that could lead to the obselese of one or more of our products. Competitoay also introduce new us
for contact lenses, such as for drug delivery erabntrol of myopia. Failure to develop new prodoféerings and technologic
changes and to offer products that provide perfogeahat is at least comparable to competing pitsdeould have a mater
adverse effect on our business, financial conditionmesults of operations.

If our products are not accepted by the market, weavill not be able to sustain or expand our business.
Certain of our proposed products have not yet loéinitally tested or commercially introduced, and wannot assure that any
them, assuming they receive necessary regulatgoyoeals, will achieve market acceptance or geneogirating profits. |

addition, we have been slower to introduce neveaile hydrogel contact lens products than our catopgtwhich put thes
products at a competitive disadvantage. The

19




development of a market for our products may blei@miced by many factors, some of which are outuofoontrol, including:

» acceptance of our products by eye care and worhealthcare practitione

» the cost competitiveness of our prodt

« consumer reluctance to try and use a new prc

* regulatory requiremen

» adequate coverage and reimbursement by third paytgrs

» the earlier release of competitive products, suscsilecone hydrogel products, into the market by @ampetitors; ar

» the emergence of newer and more competitive pre
New medical and technological developments may rede the need for our products.

Technological developments in the eye care and wtamigealthcare industries, such as new surgicalegoes or medic
devices, may limit demand for our products. Cormefiactive surgical procedures such as Lasik syrged the development
new pharmaceutical products may decrease the defioanour optical products. If these new advancesvigde a practici
alternative to traditional vision correction, thengand for contact lenses and eyeglasses may nigtdearease. We cannot ass
that medical advances and technological developneititnot have a material adverse effect on owsitesses.

Our substantial and expanding international operatons are subject to uncertainties which could affecour operating
results.

A significant portion of our current operations foooperVision and our newly acquired Origio bustnae conducted and loca
outside the United States, and our growth straitegylves expanding our existing foreign operatiang entering into new forei
jurisdictions. We have significant manufacturingl atistribution sites in North America and Europg@pfoximately twethirds o
our net sales for CooperVision for the fiscal yeamsled October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectivelye werived from the sale
products outside the United States. We believedhias outside the United States will continuectmant for a material portion
our total net sales for the foreseeable futureeriv@tional operations and business expansion emssubject to numerc
additional risks, including:

* we may have difficulty enforcing intellectual properights in some foreign countri

+ we may have difficulty gaining market share in do@s such as Japan because of regulatory restr&ctand custom
preferences;

* we may find it difficult to grow in emerging marlesuch as China, India and other developing natimesto, among oth
things, customer acceptance, undeveloped distibuthannels, regulatory restrictions and businessviedge of these ne
markets;

* tax rates in some foreign countries may exceecethdshe United States, and foreign earnings magubgect to withholdin
requirements or the imposition of tariffs, exchaogatrols or other restrictions;

» we may find it difficult to comply with a varietyf dnited States and foreign compliance and regyatequirements such
the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the Dodd-Fraekaid the U.K. Bribery Act;

* we may find it difficult to manage a large orgatiaa spread throughout various countt

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates could axhlgraffect our resuli
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» foreign customers may have longer payment cycks tustomers in the United Sta
» failure to comply with United States DepartmenCaimmerce export controls may result in fines angdéralties

» general economic and political conditions in thertaes where we operate may have an adverse @ffieotir operations
those countries or not be favorable to our growrttegy;

» foreign governments may adopt regulations or takeroactions that would have a direct or indirettease impact on o
business and market opportunities; and

* we may have difficulty enforcing agreements andecting receivables through some foreign legalesys

As we continue to expand our business globally,smacess will depend, in large part, on our abitityanticipate and effective
manage these and other risks associated with termational operations. However, any of these faatould adversely affect ¢
international operations and, consequently, ouraijrg results.

Current market conditions and recessionary pressurg in one or more of our markets could impact our aflity to grow our
business.

In the United States and globally, market and enwooconditions have been unprecedented over thé fpas years ar
challenging with tighter credit conditions and s&veconomic growth. The U.S. economy has experteaceecession and fa
continued concerns about the systemic impactswdrad economic conditions such as the growing tefkcit, high energy cos
geopolitical issues, the availability and cost @dit, and an unstable real estate market. For@gmntries, in particular the Et
zone, are affected by similar systemic impacts.aA®sult, we continue to have lower than historggbectations for mark
growth in fiscal 2014.

Continued turbulence in the United States and matéwnal markets and economic conditions may aéWeisfect our liquidit
and financial condition, and the liquidity and fiveéal condition of our customers. If these markenditions continue, they m
limit our ability, and the ability of our customets replace maturing liabilities and to accessdagital markets to meet liquid
needs, which could have a material adverse effecuo financial condition and results of operations

We face risks associated with disruption of manuféaring and distribution operations and failure to develop nev
manufacturing processes that could adversely affectur profitability or competitive position.

We manufacture a significant portion of the medidaeVvice products we sell. Any prolonged disruptierthe operations of o
existing manufacturing or distribution facilitieshether due to technical or labor difficulties, westion of or damage to a
facility (as a result of natural disaster, use atmtage of hazardous materials or other event§)rament action by the FDA
other regulatory body if we are found to be in mompliance with current Good Manufacturing Practi¢eGMP) or othe
reasons, could have a material adverse effect obwsiness, financial condition and results of apiens. In addition, materit
such as silicone hydrogel require improvements uo rmanufacturing processes to make them cost eféectVhile we hav
improved our manufacturing capabilities for ourcsihe hydrogel products, our failure to continueléwelop improvements to ¢
manufacturing processes and reduce our cost ofsgomald significantly impact our ability to compete
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CooperVision manufactures molded contact lensesshmepresent the majority of our contact lens ness, primarily at ol
facilities in the United Kingdom and Puerto RicoodperSurgical manufactures the majority of its piadd in Trumbul
Connecticut, Stafford, Texas, Malov, Denmark, arasd@lena, California. We manufacture certain pradatt only on
manufacturing site for certain markets, and certdiaur products are approved for manufacturingy @tlone site. Before we ¢
use a second manufacturing site, we must obtaimpeoval of regulatory authorities, and becaugelocess is expensive,
generally have not sought approvals needed to raatwré at an additional site. If there were anylgmged disruption in tt
operations of the approved facility, it could tekesignificant amount of time to validate a secoitel and replace lost produ
which could result in lost customers and therelolce sales, profitability and market share.

CooperVision distributes products out of West Hettai, New York, Hampshire, United Kingdom, Liegeslddum and variot
smaller international distribution facilities. Camurgical's products are primarily distributed ofitits facilities in Trumbul
Connecticut, and Malov, Denmark. Any prolongeduision in the operations of our existing distriloutifacilities, whether due
technical or labor difficulties, destruction of @amage to any facility (as a result of natural stisg use and storage of hazar¢
materials or other events) or other reasons, doaleé a material adverse effect on our businessndial condition and results
operations.

If our manufacturing operations fail to comply with applicable regulations, our manufacturing could bedelayed ol
disrupted, our products could be subject to recalland sales and profitability could suffer.

Our manufacturing operations and processes areiregdgeo comply with numerous federal, state andeitpr regulator
requirements, including the FDA's cGMP for meddevices, known as the QSR regulations, which gotleFrprocedures relat
to the design, testing, production processes, alsntguality assurance, labeling, packaging, s@ramporting, exporting ai
shipping of our products. We also are subjectatestequirements and licenses applicable to matuéas of medical devices.
addition, we must engage in extensive recordkeepimd) reporting and must make available our manuifi;mgf facilities an
records for periodic unscheduled inspections byegawiental agencies, including the FDA, state auttesrand comparak
agencies in other countries. Failure to pass a cGD8R or similar foreign inspection or to complyttwihese and other applica
regulatory requirements could result in disruptadrour operations and manufacturing delays in asdito, among other thing
significant fines, suspension of approvals, seigurecalls or import holds of products, operatiggtiictions and crimin
prosecutions. As a result, any failure to complyhwapplicable requirements could adversely affaat product sales a
profitability.

We rely on independent suppliers for raw materialsand we could experience inventory shortages if wease required to ust
an alternative supplier on short notice.

We rely on independent suppliers for key raw matericonsisting primarily of various chemicals gratkaging materials. R
materials used in our operations are generallylablai from more than one source. However, becaas® groducts requi
specialized manufacturing procedures, we could iapee inventory shortages if we were required s8 @n alternati
manufacturer on short notice. For example, sonteeprimary material used to make our silicone bgét contact lens produc
including MyDay, Biofinity and Avaira, are supplidry a sole supplier. We may suffer a disruptionh@ supply of our silicor
hydrogel contact lens products if our supplierstipalarly those which are the sole source of aegassary material, fail to sup
sufficient material on a timely basis or at all fory reason and/or we need to switch to an aliematpplier. A disruption in tt
supply of raw materials could disrupt productionoof silicone hydrogel contact lens products, thgradversely impacting o
ability to market and sell such products and oulitgho compete in this important segment of tleatact lens market.
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If we fail to protect our intellectual property adequately, our business could suffer.

We consider our intellectual property rights, imtthg patents, trademarks and licensing agreemenit® an integral component
our business. We attempt to protect our intelldgioaperty rights through a combination of patérgdemark, copyright and tre
secret laws, as well as licensing agreements amdtghrty nondisclosure and assignment agreementsfaure to obtain ¢
maintain adequate protection of our intellectualparty rights for any reason could have a matedakrse effect on our busine
financial condition and results of operations.

We also may seek to enforce our intellectual priypeghts on others through litigation. Our clainesen if meritorious, may |
found invalid or inapplicable to a party we belianéringes or has misappropriated our intellectodperty rights. In additio
litigation can:

* be expensive and time consuming to prosecute end
» result in a finding that we do not have certairllisctual property rights or that such rights lacdkficient scope or streng
» divert management's attention and resourct

* require us to license our intellectual prope

We have applied for patent protection in the Unisdtes and other foreign jurisdictions relatingéotain existing and propos
processes and products. We cannot assure thatfany patent applications will be approved. Pat@mplications in the Unite
States and other foreign jurisdictions are mairtaiim secrecy for a period of time, which may lastil patents are issued, ¢
since publication of discoveries in the scientidicpatent literature tends to lag behind actuatalisries by several months,
cannot be certain that we will be the first creatbmventions covered by any patent applicationmake or the first to file pate
applications on such inventions. The patents we could be challenged, invalidated or circumventeaihers and may not be
sufficient scope or strength to provide us with amyaningful protection or commercial advantage.alée cannot assure that
will have adequate resources to enforce our patents

Both CooperVision and CooperSurgical also rely npatented proprietary technology or technology whgatents will expire
less than a few years. It is possible that othdisndependently develop the same or similar textbgy or otherwise obtain acci
to our unpatented technology. To protect our treelerets and other proprietary information, we negemployees, consultar
advisors and collaborators to enter into confidgityi agreements and assignment agreements, wtaokraglly provide th
inventions conceived by the party in the courseeofdering services to us will be our exclusive proyp However, we canr
assure that these confidentiality agreements wilNide meaningful protection for our trade secrktgw-how or other proprieta
information in the event of any unauthorized usésappropriation or disclosure of such trade secret®w-how or othe
proprietary information. Enforcing a claim that arty illegally obtained and is using our trade s&iis difficult, expensive a
time consuming and the outcome is unpredictable.

We rely on trademarks to establish a market idefbit our products. To maintain the value of o@di&marks, we might have
file lawsuits against third parties to prevent th&om using trademarks confusingly similar to olutive of our registered
unregistered trademarks. We also might not obtgistrations for our pending or future trademangliaptions, and might have
defend our registered trademark and pending apilisafrom challenge by third parties. Enforcingdmfending our register
and unregistered trademarks might result in sigaif litigation costs and damages, including tladility to continue using certe
trademarks.
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The laws of foreign countries in which we do busmger contemplate doing business in the future nmyecognize intellectu
property rights or protect them to the same exésntlo the laws of the United States. Adverse datetrans in a judicial ¢
administrative proceeding could prevent us from uf@acturing and selling our products or prevent nasnf stopping others fro
manufacturing and selling competing products, &mdeby have a material adverse affect on our bssjrimancial condition al
results of operations.

Our products or processes could be subject to clasmof infringement of the intellectual property of ghers.

Our competitors in both the United States and fpreountries, many of which have substantially gmesesources and have m
substantial investments in competing technologiesy have applied for or obtained, or may in thereitapply for and obtai
patents that will prevent, limit or otherwise irftge with our ability to make and sell our existiagd planned products. In-
contact lens industry, CooperVision and its contpegiall hold patents covering contact lens desigansiness methods, proce:
and materials. Claims that our products, businesthoas or processes infringe upon the proprieights of others often are r
asserted until after commencement of commerciabksail products incorporating our technology.

Significant litigation regarding intellectual praperights exists in our industries. For examplepferVision has faced signific:
patent litigation over its silicone hydrogel coritéens products. Third parties have made, and malenn the future, claims
infringement against us or our contract manufacsureconnection with the use of our technologyy Afaims, even those withc
merit, could:

* be expensive and time consuming to def

e cause us to cease making, licensing or using ptediat incorporate the challenged intellectuapprty
* require us to redesign or reengineer our produdesasible

» divert management's attention and resourct

e require us to enter into royalty or licensing agneats in order to obtain the right to use a necggs@duct, component
process.

We cannot be certain of the outcome of any litmatiAny royalty or licensing agreement, if requirethy not be available to
on acceptable terms or at all. Our failure to abthie necessary licenses or other rights couldemtethe sale, manufacture,
distribution of some of our products and, therefemld have a material adverse effect on our lessin

A successful claim of infringement against us or oantract manufacturers in connection with the ak@ur technology, i
particular if we are unable to manufacture or sel{y of our planned products in any major marketild¢@dversely affect o
business.

We could experience losses from product liability laims, including such claims and other losses reging from sales o
counterfeit and other infringing products.

We face an inherent risk of exposure to produtilits claims in the event that the use of our prot results in personal inju
We also face the risk that defects in the desigmanufacture of our products or sales of countediebdther infringing produc
might necessitate a product recall and other astipnmanufacturers, distributors or retailers ideorto safeguard the healtt
consumers and protect the integrity of the sulijemhd. Consumers may halt or delay purchases aicupt that is the subject ¢
claim or recall, or has been counterfeited. We leedme risk with thirgparty carrier policies that are subject to dedlesitan
limitations. There can be no assurance that wenatllexperience material losses due to
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product liability claims or recalls, or a declimegales resulting from sales of counterfeit or pthiinging products, in the future.
We face risks related to environmental matters.

Our facilities are subject to a broad range of ebhiStates federal, state, local and foreign enmigortal laws and requiremer
including those governing discharges to the air\aater, the handling or disposal of solid and héaas substances and was
remediation of contamination associated with thease of hazardous substances at our facilitieoHsite disposal locations a
occupational safety and health. We have made, aitidcentinue to make, expenditures to comply withcls laws an
requirements. Future events, such as changes s$tingxiaws and regulations, or the enforcementettferor the discovery

contamination at our facilities, may give rise t&ional compliance or remediation costs that ddwdve a material adverse ef
on our business, financial condition and resultepdrations. Such laws and requirements are cdhstdranging, are different
every jurisdiction and can impose substantial fined sanctions for violations. As a manufacturervafious products, we ¢
exposed to some risk of claims with respect tor@emvnental matters, and there can be no assuraacm#terial costs or liabiliti
will not be incurred in connection with any suchinis.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our finanal health and prevent us from fulfilling our debt dbligations.
We have now and expect to continue to have a &agnif amount of indebtedness.
Our indebtedness could:

» increase our vulnerability to general adverse esva@and industry conditior

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofcash flow from operations to payments on our ingess, thereby reduc
the availability of our cash flow to fund workingmtal, capital expenditures, acquisitions, redeamd development effo
and other general corporate purposes;

» limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our business and the industry ichwvie operat
» place us at a competitive disadvantage comparedrtoompetitors that have less d
» limit our ability to borrow additional funds; a

* make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligans with respect to our debt, including our oatign to repay our cre:
facilities under certain circumstances.

Our credit facilities contain financial and othestrictive covenants that could limit our ability éngage in activities that may
in our longterm best interests. Our failure to comply withgd@ovenants could result in an event of defauithyhf not cured ¢
waived, could result in the acceleration of allafr debt, which could adversely affect our businessnings and financ
condition.

We are vulnerable to interest rate risk with respetto our debt.
We are subject to interest rate risk in connectitth the issuance of variable and fixeste debt. In order to maintain our des
mix of fixed-rate and variableate debt, we currently use, and may continue & uinderest rate swap agreements and excl

fixed and variableate interest payment obligations over the liféhaf arrangements, without exchange of the undeylpinmcipa
amounts. We may not be successful
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in structuring such swap agreements to manage isks effectively, which could adversely affect dursiness, earnings ¢
financial condition.

Exchange rate fluctuations and our foreign currencyhedges could adversely affect our financial resudt

As a result of our international operations, cucseaxchange rate fluctuations may affect our resoitoperations and financ
position. Our most significant currency exposunesthe British pound sterling, euro and Japanese W& expect to generate
increasing portion of our revenue and incur a $icgmt portion of our expenses in currencies othan U.S. dollars. To the ext
we are unable to materially offset noonfunctional currency flows, exchange rate flugares could have a positive or nega
impact on our financial condition and results oé@ions. Because our consolidated financial resuk reported in U.S. dolle
if we generate sales or earnings in other currendie translation of those results into U.S. dsllean result in a significe
increase or decrease in the amount of those saksroings and can make it more difficult for obareholders to understand
relative strengths or weaknesses of the underlyusiness on a period-ovperiod comparative basis. Although from time toe
we enter into foreign exchange agreements witmbira institutions to reduce our net exposure ttfiations in foreign curren
values relative to our non-functional currency gations or balances, these hedging transactionstdeiminate that risk entirely.

Increases in our effective tax rates or adverse otbmes resulting from examination of income tax retuns could adversel
affect our results.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséigcted by earnings being higher than anticipatecountries where the Comp:
has higher statutory rates or lower than anticgh@ecountries where it has lower statutory rabyschanges in valuation of ¢
deferred tax assets and liabilities, or by chamgédax laws or interpretations of those laws. We @so subject to the examinat
of our income tax returns by other tax authorii@esl the outcome of these examinations could hawatarial adverse effect
our operating results and financial condition.

We operate globally and changes in tax laws couldigersely affect our results.

We operate globally and changes in tax laws codigisely affect our results. We have overseas maatwring, administratiy
and sales offices and generate substantial revemeegrofits in foreign jurisdictions. Recentlynamber of countries, includil
the United States, have proposed changes to #eifatvs, some of which affect taxation of earnimgsognized in foreic
jurisdictions. Such changes in tax laws or theferpretation, if adopted, could adversely affect efiective tax rates and ¢
results.

Volatility in the securities markets, interest rates, and other factors could substantially increaseuws defined benefit pensior
costs.

We sponsor a defined benefit pension plan for eygals in the United States. This defined benefisjpenplan is funded wi
trust assets invested in a diversified portfolioseturities and other investments. Changes ingsteates, mortality rates, e¢
retirement rates, investment returns, discounsratel the market value of plan assets can affectuthded status of our defir
benefit pension plan and cause volatility in the periodic benefit cost and future funding requiesrts of the plan. A significa
increase in our obligations or future funding regoients could have a negative impact on our resfitbperations and cash flo
from operations.
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We manage our businesses utilizing complex computesystems that are regularly maintained and upgraded an
interruption to these systems could disrupt our bumess or force us to expend excessive COsts.

We utilize complex computer systems, including gise resource planning and warehouse managelysenss, to support ¢
business units and we have a continuous improvesteaiegy in place to keep our systems and ovédray¢bchnology stable a
in line with business needs and growth. Regularrages of our computer hardware and software rengsa@re typical ar
expected. We employ controlled change managemetitoeh@logies to plan, test and execute all suchesysipgrades al
improvements, and we believe that we assign adecptiatfing and other resources to projects to ensuccessful implementati
However, we cannot assure that our systems willtraee future business needs or that upgrades wédlate as designed. !
cannot assure that there will not be associate@ssiwe costs or disruptions in portions of our hess in the course of ¢
maintenance, support and/or upgrade of these sgstem

If we do not retain our key personnel and attract ad retain other highly skilled employees, our busiass could suffer.

If we fail to recruit and retain the necessary penel, our business and our ability to obtain nest@mers, develop new prodt
and provide acceptable levels of customer servicddcsuffer. The success of our business is heaéihendent on the leaders
of our key management personnel. Our success ajgends on our ability to recruit, retain and mdavhighly skilled sale
marketing, engineering and scientific personnem@etition for these persons in our industry isniss and we may not be abls
successfully recruit, train or retain qualified gamnel.

Provisions of our governing documents and Delawaraw, and our rights plan, may have anti-takeover décts.

Certain provisions of our Second Restated Cert#icd Incorporation and Amended and RestatedaBys may inhibit changes
control of the Company not approved by our Boardwokctors. These provisions include: (i) advanotioe requirements f
stockholder proposals and nominations and (iijgthority of our board to issue without stockholdpproval preferred stock w
such terms as our board may determine. We also thavprotections of Section 203 of the Delaware é@e@nCorporation Lav
which could have similar effects. Our Board of Bigrs extended our preferred stock purchase riglats commonly known as
“poison pill,” pursuant to an amended rights agreement dated@stober 29, 2007, that expires on October 29, 20hé right:
agreement is intended to prevent abusive hostieotger attempts by requiring a potential acquicenggotiate the terms of
acquisition with our Board of Directors. Howevet,could have the effect of deterring or preventang acquisition of ol
Company, even if a majority of our stockholders igdae in favor of such acquisition, and could diswe the effect of making
more difficult for a person or group to gain cohtwbthe Company or to change existing management.

Risks Relating to Government Regulation of Manufaaire and Sale of Our Products

Our failure to comply with regulatory requirements or to receive regulatory clearance or approval forour products or
operations could adversely affect our business.

Our products and operations are subject to rigoregsilation by the FDA, and numerous other fedestdte and foreic
governmental authorities. In the United States,RB& regulates virtually all aspects of a medicaVide's design, developme
testing, manufacture, safety, labeling (includifmy, example the upcoming FDA unique device ideetifiegulations), storag
recordkeeping, reporting, marketing, promotion aligtribution, as well as the export of medical degi manufactured in t
United States to foreign markets.
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Our failure to comply with FDA regulations couldate to the imposition of administrative or judicisénctions, includir
injunctions, suspensions or the loss of regulaggprovals, product recalls, termination of disttib or product seizures. In |
most egregious cases, criminal sanctions or clasuper manufacturing facilities are possible.

Our medical devices require clearance or approyahé FDA before they can be commercially distréslin the United States ¢
may require similar approvals by foreign regulatagencies before distribution in foreign jurisdicts. Medical devices may ol
be marketed for the indications for which they approved or cleared. The process of obtaining etguy clearances a
approvals to market a medical device, particuladyn the FDA, can be costly and time consuming.réfean be no assurance
such clearances and approvals will be granted timely basis, if at all, or that significant delaiysthe introduction of any ne
products or product enhancements will occur, whiichld adversely affect our competitive position aedults of operations.
addition, the FDA may change its policies, adopmtitmhal regulations or revise existing regulatioeach of which could preve
or delay premarket approval or clearance of oudycts or could impact our ability to market ourremtly approved or clear
products. For example, the FDA recently has beeiewéng the premarket clearance process in respunsgernal and exterr
concerns regarding the 510(k) program. In Janu@iyl2the FDA announced a plan of action that inetltlventyfive actior
items designed to make the process more rigoradisransparent. Since then the FDA has implemenist hanges intendec
improve its premarket programs. Some of these awiagd proposals under consideration could impddéi@nal regulator
requirements on us that could delay our abilitplitain new 510(k) clearances for our products gase the cost of compliance
restrict our ability to maintain our current cleacas.

Modifications and enhancements to a medical dealse require a new FDA clearance or approval if/theuld significantl
affect its safety or effectiveness or would congtita major change in its intended use, designasufiacture. The FDA requir
every manufacturer to make this determination énfitst instance, but the FDA may review any maatufeer's decision. We ha
made modifications and enhancements to our medates that we do not believe require a new clegrar application, but v
cannot confirm that the FDA will agree with our dgans. If the FDA requires us to seek clearancapmroval for modification
a previously cleared product for which we have tuohed that new clearances or approvals are unreayesge may be required
cease marketing or to recall the modified produdil we obtain clearance or approval, and we maysiigect to significal
regulatory fines or penalties, which could haveaeanal adverse effect on our financial results emehpetitive position. We al
cannot assure that we will be successful in obigiclearances or approvals for our modificatiohseduired.

Even if regulatory approval or clearance of a maldievice is granted, the FDA may impose limitasian restrictions on the u
and indications for which the device may be labeded promoted, and failure to comply with FDA regigns prohibiting
manufacturer from promoting a device for an unappdp or “off-label” use could result in enforcement action by the F
including, among other things, warning lettersefininjunctions, consent decrees, and civil or icidpenalties.

Development and marketing of our products are subjet to strict governmental regulation by foreign reailatory agencies
and failure to receive, or delay in receiving, forign qualifications could have a material adverse é&ct on our business.

In many of the foreign countries in which we market products, we are subject to regulations afigctamong other thinc
product standards, packaging requirements, labeéngirements, import restrictions, tariff regudais, the reporting of cert:
payments to health care practitioners in certaimketa (for example, the French Sunshine Act of 20MRities and te
requirements. Many of the regulations applicableuodevices and products in such countries ariasito those of the FDA.
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In the European Economic Area, a medical device @@y be placed on the market if it is in confoyniith the essenti
requirements set out in the European Directives iamglementing regulations that govern medical desicThese Directiv
prescribe quality programs and standards which meshaintained in order to achieve required ISQifaation and to approy
the use of CE marking. In order to maintain ISCtifieation and CE marking quality benchmarks, firmsiality systems ai
procedures are subjected to rigorous periodic rigges and reassessment audits.

In many countries, the national health or soci@uséy organizations require our products to belifjgd before they can |
marketed with the benefit of reimbursement eligfipil To date, we have not experienced difficulty damplying with thes
regulations. However, our failure to receive, dags in the receipt of, relevant foreign qualificats could have a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations.

Our products are subject to reporting requirementsand recalls, even after receiving regulatory cleanace or approval
which could harm our reputation, business and finanial results.

After a device is placed on the market, numeroggsilegory requirements apply, including the FDA'sRQfegulations, whic
require manufacturers to follow design, testingntom, documentation and other quality assurancecquures during tl
manufacturing process; labeling regulations, whpcbhibit the promotion of products for unapproved“off-label” uses an
impose other restrictions on labeling; and medmavice reporting regulations that require us toorepo FDA or simila
governmental bodies in other countries if our patgumalfunction in a way that would be reasonaitdgly to contribute to dea
or serious injury if the malfunction were to reclihe FDA and similar governmental bodies in othmrrdries have the authority
require the recall of our products in the eventnwdterial deficiencies or defects in design or maaufre. Medical devi
manufacturers, such as CooperVision and Cooper&lygnay under their own initiative recall a protifi@ reasonable possibil
of serious injury or any material deficiency inevite is found. For example, CooperVision recentgicluded a recall of limite
lots of Avaira Toric contact lenses and Avaira Spheontact lenses. Recalls of any of our producy divert managerial a
financial resources and have an adverse effectunrfisancial condition and results of operations.rékall could harm ol
reputation with customers and consumers which coedllice the sales of our products. In addition, RB& or other foreig
governmental agencies may implement enforcemeitrscin connection with a recall which could impaur product offering
and be harmful to our business and financial result

Changes in legislation and government regulation dhe healthcare industry as well as thirdparty payors' efforts to control
the costs of healthcare could materially adverselgffect our business.

In recent years, an increasing number of healthoafi@m proposals have been formulated by the lkgie and executiy
branches of the United States federal and statergments. In March 2010, the President signed titeei® Protection ar
Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health @arkEducation Reconciliation Act, which we refectilectively as the Heal
Care Reform Law. The Health Care Reform Law makésnsive changes to the delivery of health caréhenUnited State
Among the provisions of the Health Care Reform Laf\greatest importance to the medical device itvghege the following:

» A 2.3 percent excise tax on any entity that martufas or imports medical devices offered for saléhie United States, w
limited exceptions, which exceptions include alhtzwt lenses;

« A new Patientzentered Outcomes Research Institute to overseetfifi priorities in, and conduct comparative dis
effectiveness research, along with funding for siedearch;

* New reporting and disclosure requirements on médiedce manufacturers for ar‘transfer of value’made or distributed
prescribers and other healthcare providers, anebamgrship and investment
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interests held by physicians or their immediateifiamembers, and any payments or other “transfékalue” to such owner
Manufacturers were required to begin data collecm August 1, 2013 and will be required to repgarth data to tt
government by March 31, 2014 and by the"8alendar day of each year thereafter;

* Payment system reforms including a national piloigpam on payment bundling to encourage hospipdigsicians and oth
providers to improve the coordination, quality afficiency of certain healthcare services throughdled payment models;

» Creation of the Independent Payment Advisory Baahith, beginning in 2014, will have authority tocoemmend certa
changes to reduce Medicare spending and those meendations could have the effect of law even if §#eas doesn't act
the recommendations; and

» Establishment of a Center for Medicare Innovatibtha Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Servicesetst innovative payme
and service delivery models to lower Medicare aredlidaid spending.

These measures could result in decreased net revanuincreased expenses from our medical deviodupts and decree
potential returns from our development efforts.tliis time, the full effect that the Health Care &tef Law would have on o
business remains unclear. For example, the Health Reform Law imposes a new excise tax of 2.3gueraf the price for whic
certain medical devices are sold, which went irifect on January 1, 2013. CooperVision is not aéddy this new tax becat
contact lenses are excluded from the tax. Howeweited States sales of almost all of CooperSurgigabducts are subject to 1
new tax. We cannot anticipate at this time the ritada of this new tax as there are significant utaieties concerning ki
definitions and terms within the law.

Other legislative changes have been proposed aptettisince the Health Care Reform Law was ena€eddugust?, 2011, th
President signed into law the Budget Control Act26fL1, which, among other things, created the Jeelect Committee «
Deficit Reduction to recommend proposals in spemaeductions to Congress. The Joint Select Comeniid not achieve i
targeted deficit reduction of at least $1.2 triflifor the years 2013 through 2021, triggering #rgadlations automatic reductio
to several government programs. These reductiahsde aggregate reductions to Medicare paymermsodders of up to 2% p
fiscal year, which went into effect on April 1, 2010n January 2, 2013, President Obama signedamtohe American Taxpay
Relief Act of 2012, which, among other things, et reduced Medicare payments to several providecyding hospital:
imaging centers and cancer treatment centers.

We expect that additional state and federal healehceform measures will be adopted in the futurepding those initiative
affecting coverage and reimbursement for our pregjuamy of which could limit the amounts that feddeand state governme
will pay for healthcare products and services, Wihiould adversely affect the growth of the marketdur products or demand
our products, or result in additional pricing prass. Also, any adoption of healthcare reform psagon a state-bstate bas
could require us to develop stapecific marketing and sales approaches. We camadict the effect such reforms or the pros
of their enactment may have on our business.

In addition, third-party payors, whether governnaéot commercial, whether inside the United Statesbroad, increasingly
attempt to contain or reduce the costs of healthdarese cost-control methods include prospectiyengnt systems, capitated
rates, group purchasing, redesign of benefits,inagupre-authorizations or second opinions pracértain medical procedures,
encouragement of healthier lifestyles and exploratif more cost-effective methods of deliveringltieare. Although cost
controls or other requirements imposed by thirdyppayors have not historically had a significaffiéet on contact lens prices or
distribution practices, this could change in theeife and could adversely affect our business, @i@ondition and results of
operations.
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The costs of complying with the requirements of fegral laws pertaining to the privacy and security ofhealth information
and the potential liability associated with failureto do so could materially adversely affect our busess and results ¢
operations.

Other federal legislation affects the manner inclihive use and disclose health information. The tHdakurance Portability a
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, mandates, amgoother things, the adoption of standards foreleetronic exchange
health information that may require significant adtly changes to current practices. The UnitedieStDepartment of Health ¢
Human Services (HHS) has released several ruleslatiag the use of specified standards with respedaertain healthca
transactions and health information. The electrérsinsactions rule requires the use of uniformddeats for common healthci
transactions, including healthcare claims inforomatiplan eligibility, referral certification and @orization, claims status, pl
enrollment and disenroliment, payment and remitaandvice, plan premium payments and coordinatiobeoiefits. The privac
rule imposes standards governing the use and disémf individually identifiable health informatioThe security rule releas
by HHS establishes minimum standards for the sgcwi electronic health information, and requirdse tadoption ¢
administrative, physical and technical safeguards.

Additionally, the Health Information Technology fRconomic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act of 200f&s signed into law
part of the America's Recovery and ReinvestmentiA&ebruary 2009. Previously, HIPAA directly regidd only certain cover
entities, such as health care providers and hpédtrs. Under the HITECH Act, certain of HIPAA's\@acy and security standa
are now also directly applicable to covered erditiriSiness associates. As a result, businessatsso@re now subject to civil €
criminal penalties for failure to comply with apgble privacy and security rule requirements. Meeeothe HITECH Act s
forth new notification requirements for health dsg¢&urity breaches, increased the civil and crirpeaalties that may be impos
against covered entities, business associatesa@ssibfy other persons, and gave state attorneyerglemew authority to file civ
actions for damages or injunctions in federal ®twtenforce HIPAA and seek attorney's fees antb @ssociated with pursui
federal actions.

While we do not believe that we are a coveredentita business associate under HIPAA, many otastomers may be cove
entities or business associates subject to HIPA#eScustomers as an expectation of transactingéssiwith us may require
to enter into business associate agreements, wioald obligate us to safeguard and restrict themaaim which we use certe
protected health information (as defined by HIPARAat we obtain in the course of our commercial trefeship with then
triggering potential liability on us for failure tmeet our contractual obligations. Alternativelgnme customers may limit the sci
of our commercial relationship with them with redao our access to certain protected health infdomaPursuant to tl
HITECH Act, if the government determines that we a& business associate, we could be additionabjesuto direc
governmental enforcement for failure to comply wa#rtain privacy and security requirements. In &oidi the final omnibus ru
released in January 2013, among other things, medifie breach reporting standard in a mannenihialikely make more dal
security incidents qualify as reportable breacfdm costs of complying with these contractual @ilons and new legal a
regulatory requirements, and the potential liapiissociated with failure to do so could have aenmt adverse effect on ¢
business, financial condition and results of openst
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Laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse couldnaterially adversely affect our business, financiacondition and
results of operations.

We may be subject to various federal, state arelgorlaws pertaining to healthcare fraud and akins&jding antikickback laws
physician selfreferral laws and false claims laws. Violations thése laws are punishable by criminal and civilcians
including, in some instances, exclusion from pgéton in federal and state healthcare progran@uding Medicare, Medicai
Veterans Administration health programs and TRICARIHnilarly, if the physicians or other providensamtities with whom w
do business are found to be nmmpliant with applicable laws, they may be subjecsanctions, which could indirectly hav
negative impact on our business, financial condiiad results of operations. While we believe thatoperations are in mate|
compliance with such laws, because of the comphekfarreaching nature of these laws, there can be noaassithat we wou
not be required to alter one or more of our prastio be in compliance with these laws.

Indeed, changes in state laws and model code$iotdiave required us to alter certain of our cammgke efforts. For example,
April of 2009, Massachusetts issued regulationseguug the conduct of pharmaceutical and medicaicdemanufacturers wi
respect to healthcare practitioners. This regulati@came effective on July 1, 2009 and sets forttatwnedical devic
manufacturers may and may not permissibly do wétspect to providing meals, sponsoring continuinglioz education ar
otherwise providing payments or items of econon@ndiit to healthcare practitioners located withie state. Additionally, t
regulation requires medical device manufacturetsatze in place robust fraud and abuse complianogrgms. Other states (e
California, Vermont and Nevada) have adopted smidas. The Advanced Medical Technology Associai@dvaMed), a trac
association representing the interests of medieaicd manufacturers, has also released a revisdd o0b ethics outlinin
permissible interactions with health care professi®. This code became effective July 1, 2009. &Haws, regulations a
guidance documents act to limit our marketing peast require the dedication of resources to ensumgpliance, and expose u:
additional liabilities.

In addition, the recent Health Care Reform Law, aghother things, amends the intent requiremenhefféderal AntiKickback
Statute and certain criminal healthcare fraud statgo that a person or entity no longer needsave lactual knowledge of t
statute or specific intent to violate it in orderhtave committed a violation. The Health Care Refbaw also provides that t
government may assert that a claim including itemservices resulting from a violation of thesdgts constitutes a false
fraudulent claim for purposes of the civil Falsai@is Act or the civil monetary penalties statute.

Any violations of these laws or regulations cowddult in a material adverse effect on our businf@ssncial condition and resu
of operations. In addition, changes in these laaglations, or administrative or judicial interf@igons, may require us to furtl
change our business practices or subject our egigtisiness practices to legal challenges, whicitdcloave a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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| tem 2.Properties.

The following is a summary of Cooper's principatiliies as of October 31, 2013 Cooper generally leases its office

operations facilities but owns several manufactuamd research and development facilities, inclydi05,850 square feet
Hamble, United Kingdom, 49,500 square feet in Swuile, New York, 63,787 square feet in Malov, Dearky and 33,630 sque
feet in Stafford, Texas. Our lease agreements extivarious dates through the year 2030. The Coynpalieves its properti
are suitable and adequate for its businesses.
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Location

AMERICAS
United States
California

New York
Connecticut

Texas
Wisconsin
New Jersey
Puerto Rico
Juana Diaz
Canada
Ontario
Brazil
Sao Paulo
EMEA
United Kingdom
Hampshire

Belgium
Liege
Denmark
Malov
Germany
Berlin
Frankfurt
Italy
Milan
Firenze
Spain
Madrid
Barcelona
South Africa
Johannesburg
France
Nice
AS A PACIFIC
Japan

Australia
Other Asia Pacific

Approximate
Square Feet

Operations

112,72

390,27
210,83

33,63(
18,00(
10,60(
333,12
11,64°

17,54¢

493,12t

119,14¢

63,78’

13,25¢
14,69

29,15(
2,04

29,30:
1,37

13,25(

12,18«

63,59(

29,97
45,18

Executive offices; CooperVision research & develepirand CooperVision
administrative offices; CooperSurgical manufactgramd distribution

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributeomd administrative offices

CooperSurgical manufacturing, marketing, distribatiresearch & development and
administrative offices

CooperSurgical manufacturing
CooperSurgical manufacturing
CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision manufacturing and distribution

CooperVision marketing

CooperVision marketing and distribution

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributioesearch & development and
administrative offices; CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision distribution
CooperSurgical manufacturing, marketing and adrmatise offices

CooperSurgical manufacturing, marketing and digtrdm
CooperVision marketing and distribution

CooperVision marketing and distribution
CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision marketing and distribution
CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision marketing and distribution
CooperVision marketing and distribution

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributeomd administrative offices;
CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributeomd administrative offices
CooperVision and CooperSurgical marketing and itistion
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Securities Litigation

On November 28, 2011, Harold Greenberg filed a dampin the United States District Court for theorthern District ©
California, Case No. 4:11-cv-056¥%GR, against the following defendants: the CompdRgbert S. Weiss, its President, C
Executive Officer and a director; Eugene J. Midloitk former Senior Vice President and Chief Finain©fficer; and Albert C
White, Ill, its Vice President and Chief Strategifi€er. On December 12, 2011, a second individRalss Wallen, filed a relat
complaint against the same defendants in the NortDestrict of California, Case No. 4:11-cv-062Y6GR. The Wallen complai
largely repeats the allegations in the Greenbengptaint. Greenberg and Wallen each sought to reptes class of persons w
purchased the Company's common stock between Ma&bill and November 15, 2011.

On February 29, 2012, the court ordered the Gregnhed Wallen actions consolidated and appointetvddsal-Investment-
Gesellschaft mbH as lead plaintiff. On May 4, 202, lead plaintiff filed a Consolidated Amendedh@aint, which alleges th
the Company, Robert S. Weiss and Eugene J. Midladlted Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange & 1934 by, amor
other things, making misrepresentations with aarihto deceive investors concerning the safethefAvaira® Toric and Avair.
Sphere contact lenses, which the Company recall@@1il1. On August 7, 2012, the Court heard argumentefendants' motion
dismiss the Consolidated Amended Complaint. On aana, 2013, the Court granted defendants’ motmrdismiss th
Consolidated Amended Complaint, with leave to ameédd February 4, 2013, the lead plaintiff filed ac8nhd Consolidatt
Amended Complaint, which again alleges that the @amg, Robert S. Weiss and Eugene J. Midlock vidl&ection 10(b) of tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by, among otherghi making misrepresentations with an intent etk investors concerni
the 2011 recall of Avaira contact lenses. The Seédonsolidated Amended Complaint seeks unspedii@éedages on behalf o
purported class of persons who purchased the Cortspanmmon stock between August 19, 2011 and Noeerbb, 2011. C
March 6, 2013, the defendants moved to dismisS#wmnd Consolidated Amended Complaint. On April28,3 the Court hea
argument on defendants' motion to dismiss the SE@unsolidated Amended Complaint. On May 31, 2Q@&8,Court grante
defendants' motion to dismiss the Second Conselidamended Complaint without leave to amend andredtfinal judgment
favor of defendants. Plaintiff did not file a natiof appeal within the time prescribed by law.

Derivative Litigation

On January 9, 2012, Joseph Operman filed a pubsitareholder derivative complaint in the Unitedt& District Court for tt
Northern District of California, Case No. 4-cv-00143YGR, against members of the Company's board ofcuire. Thi
derivative complaint seeks recovery on behalf ef@@mpany, which is named as a “nominal defendaime’ derivative complai
purports to allege causes of action for breachidifcfary duties and failure to exercise oversigigponsibilities against

defendants and a cause of action for contributigairest Mr. Weiss for alleged violations of Sectidi{b) of the Securitit
Exchange Act of 1934. On May 18, 2012, Opermardfde@ amended derivative complaint. The amendedatere complair
largely repeats the allegations of misrepresemtatim the securities class action complaints deedriabove, and incluc
allegations of false projections of future finamcisults. On June 13, 2013, Operman voluntarilw@dothe Court to dismiss t
derivative action without prejudice. On July 24 130after the Company's shareholders were providédnotice of the voluntal
motion for dismissal and an opportunity to objectd no objections were received, the Court entaridal order of dismissal
the derivative action.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fiscal fourth quarter of 2013, the Compdid not submit any matters to a vote of the Canyfs security holders.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Relatetb8kholder Matters.

Cooper's common stock, par value $0.10 per shauteaded on the New York Stock Exchange under yhasl “COQ.” In the
table that follows, we indicate the high and lowWiisg prices of our common stock for each three-thqreriod of 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Quarterly Common Stock Price Range
Years Ended October 31, High Low High Low
Fiscal Quarter Ended
January 31 $ 10247 $ 88.8( $ 73.2¢ % 52.6(
April 30 $ 110.8¢ $ 100.2: $ 88.7¢ $ 72.4]
July 31 $ 129.0¢ $ 105.7. $ 89.31 $ 72.4¢
October 31 $ 1354 % 12400 $ 100.9: $ 71.4(

At November 30, 2013, there were 544 common stddiens of record.
Dividend Policy

Our current policy is to pay annual cash divideadour common stock of $0.06 per share, in two aemial payments of $0.
per share each. In dollar terms, we paid cash ifodehds of about $2.9 million in fiscal 2013 an®.$million in fiscal 2012
Dividends are paid when, as and if declared atlii&retion of our Board of Directors from fundsd#lg available for that purpos
Our Board of Directors periodically reviews our idend policy and considers the Company's earnifigancial conditior
liquidity needs, business plans and opportunitiesaher factors in making and setting dividendgyol

Performance Graph
The following graph compares the cumulative totalim on the Company's common stock with the cutiveldotal return of th
Standard & Poor's Smallcap 600 Stock Index andStamdard & Poor's Health Care Equipment Index lier fiveyear perio

ended October 31, 2013The graph assumes that the value of the investmmethe Company and in each index was $10
October 31, 2008, and assumes that all dividends megnvested.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among The Cooper Companies, Inc., the S&P Smallcap 600 Index
and the S&P Health Care Equipment Index
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*$100 invested on 10/31/08 in stock or index, idahg reinvestment of dividends.
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Copyright© 2013 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hbmpanies Inc. All rights reserved.
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
During the three-month period ended October 31320te repurchased shares of our common stocKlas/fo

Maximum Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value of Shares
Shares Purchased that May Yet Be
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Under
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Publicly Announced
Period Purchased Per Share or Programs Plans or Programs
8/1/13 — 8/31/13 — 3 = — 3 184,500,00
9/1/13 — 9/30/13 177,52t $ 129.7: 177,52t $ 161,500,00
10/1/13 — 10/31/13 782,72' % 127.6¢ 782,72' % 61,500,00
Total 960,25, ¢ 128.0¢ 960,25:

The transactions described in the table above septeghe repurchase of the Compangbmmon stock on the New York St
Exchange as part of the share repurchase progrproesul by the Company’Board of Directors in December 2011 (2012 <
Repurchase Program). The program as amended imibec€012 and December 2013 provides authorizé&tioa total of $500.
million. Purchases under the 2012 Share Repurdissgram may be made from timetioe on the open market at prevalil
market prices or in privately negotiated transanxgiand are subject to a review of the circumstaimcpkace at the time and will
made from time to time as permitted by securitégsl and other legal requirements. This programmbasxpiration date and m
be discontinued at any time. At October 31, 2Q01Be remaining repurchase authorization under2®&2 Share Repurche
Program was approximately $61.5 million and wasseghbently increased $200.0 million, by a DecemBe2013 amendment
the program, for a total remaining repurchase aizhtion of $261.5 million.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities Remaining
Available for Future Issuance Under

Number of Securities to be Issued  Weighted-Average Exercise Equity Compensation Plans
Upon Exercise of Outstanding Price of Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities Reflected in
Options, Warrants and Rights® Warrants and Rights Column A)
Plan Category (A) (B) (&)
Equity compensation plans
approved by shareholdé?s 2,355,861 $54.58 1,855,841
Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders — — —
Total 2,355,861 $54.58 1,855,841

W The amount of total securities to be issued undeite plans shown in Column A includes 647,185 Retstd Stock Unit
granted pursuant to the Company's equity planssd bwards allow for the distribution of shared® grant recipient upon t
completion of timehased holding periods and do not have an assoottextise price. Accordingly, these awards are
reflected in the weightedverage exercise price disclosed in Column B. ArteimColumn A do not reflect performance sl
awards without a final payout.

@ Includes information with respect to the Second Adesl and Restated 2007 Lofigrm Incentive Plan for Employees of -
Cooper Companies, Inc. (2007 Plan), which was ajgatdy stockholders on March 16, 2011, and providethe issuance
up to 5,230,000 shares of common stock, and therfdeAmended and Restated 2006 Long Term Incentiae fr Non-
Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Ine @irectors’Plan), which was approved by stockholders on Mdrg,
2011, and provides for the issuance of up to 9%0gb@res of common stock. As of October 31, 20p3p1.,609,325 shares
common stock may be issued pursuant to the 20QY d&d 246,516 shares of common stock may be igsulestiant to tt
2006 Directors’ Plan.

Also includes information with respect to the 1996hg Term Incentive Plan for NoBmployee Directors (1996 Directc
Plan) and the Second Amended and Restated 2001 Temy Incentive Plan (2001 Plan) of The Cooper Camgs, Inc
which were originally approved by stockholders oarbh 21, 1996 and March 28, 2001. The 1996 Directlan and 20(
Plan have expired by their terms, but up to 354,88&es of common stock may be issued pursuanvaoda that rema
outstanding under these plans.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Five Year Financial Highlights

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

Consolidated Operations
Net sales
Gross profit

Income before income taxes

Net income attributable to
Cooper stockholders

Diluted earnings per share attributable

to Cooper stockholders

Number of shares used to compute

diluted earnings per share
Dividends paid per share

Consolidated Financial Position

Current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other assets

Short-term debt

Other current liabilities
Long-term debt

Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity

$ 158772 $ 1,44513 1,330,83! 1,158,51° $ 1,080,42
$ 102680 $ 924,01 804,80 676,72 $ 596,49
$ 312,27 $ 27545 192,76 124,42 $ 114,82
$  296,15. $ 248,33 175,43 112,80 $ 100,54
$ 5.9¢ $ 5.0¢ 3.6 243 $ 2.2
49,68t 49,15 48,30 46,50¢ 45,47¢

$ 0.06 $ 0.0€ 0.0€ 0.06 $ 0.0¢
$ 747,24 $ 657,86 540,34 491,34 $ 503,87
739,86 640,25! 609,20! 593,88° 602,56
1,387,61 1,370,24 1,276,56 1,261,97! 1,257,02!
198,76 214,78 128,34; 11417 114,70(
63,77 58,23 70,05¢ 63,63 73,73.

$ 313726 $ 2,941,38 2,624,51i 2,52501 $ 2,551,90
$ 42,987 $ 25,28 52,97 19,15¢ $ 9,84
278,26t 237,26t 214,22 180,36 165,57
301,67 348,42: 327,45 591,97 771,63
90,84 117,25. 92,37 66,74 64,52
713,76 728,22 687,03( 858,24 1,011,56!
2,423,49. 2,213,15! 1,937,48i 1,666,77! 1,540,34;

$ 313726 $ 2,941,38 2,624,511 2,52501 $ 2,551,90
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations.

Note numbers refer (‘Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” iml& Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We discuss below the results of our operationgisoal 2013 compared with fiscal 2042d the results of our operations for fi
2012 compared with fiscal 2011 Certain prior period amounts have been reclaskifo conform to the current peric
presentation. We discuss our cash flows and cufirericial condition under “Capital Resources aiglidity.”

Outlook

Overall, we remain optimistic about the long-termogpects for the worldwide contact lens and womédrealthcare marke
However, events affecting the economy as a whalduding the uncertainty and instability of glolmarkets driven by Unite
States debt and uncertainty surrounding employnmesusing and credit concerns together with the gemo debt crisis a
related foreign currency volatility impact our cemt performance and continue to represent a rigkutoperformance for fisc
year 2014

We compete in the worldwide contact lens markehweitir spherical, toric and multifocal contact lensdfered in a variety
materials including using silicone hydrogel Aquafof technology and phosphorylcholine technology (PChhetogy™). Wi
believe that there will be lower contact lens weah®pout rates as technology improves and enhathees/earing experien
through a combination of improved designs and nieseand the growth of preferred modalities suctsiagleuse and month
wearing options. CooperVision is focused on greaterdwide market penetration as we introduce nesdpcts and continue
expand our presence in existing and emerging marketiuding through acquisitions.

Sales of contact lenses utilizing silicone hydrapaterials, a major product material in the indygtave grown significantly. O
ability to compete successfully with a full rangesdicone hydrogel products is an important fadimrachieving our project
future levels of sales growth and profitability. dperVision markets monthly and tweeek silicone hydrogel spherical and t
lens products under our Biofinifiand Avaira® brands and a multifocal lens under Biofinity.

We believe that the global market for singkee contact lenses is expanding and will contiougréow. In fiscal 2013, we launct
MyDay ™, our single-use spherical silicone hydrogel lem&urope, and in fiscal 2012 we launched ProctehDay multifocal
We forecast increasing demand for our existing fatwre singledse products. To meet this anticipated demands@alf2014 w
plan to continue the implementation of capital pot$ to invest in increased singlse manufacturing capacity. Competi
silicone hydrogel single-use lens products areiggimarket share and represent a risk to our bssine

On October 31, 2013, we completed a transactiosetbAime, our rigid gagpermeable contact lens and solutions busine
Japan, to Nippon Contact Lens Inc. In our fiscakflo quarter of 2013, we recorded a far-oss of approximately $21.1 millic
The business was originally obtained as part ofitbeember 1, 2010, acquisition which included obitey the rights to mark
Biofinity in Japan. The divestiture is consisterithithe strategy to focus on our core soft conliaras business. Additionally, Air
revenue has declined in recent periods, and théupts have lower than average company margins.|l®Rdsom operations
Aime are included in our Consolidated Statement$nobme for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011. Post ditest we expect tt
transaction to be neutral to earnings per share.
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The medical device segment of the women's heakhwmarket is highly fragmented. CooperSurgical headily grown its mark
presence and distribution system by developing ymtsdand acquiring companies and products that ongmt its busine
model. We intend to continue to invest in Coopegial's business through acquisitions of compamied product line
CooperSurgical product sales are categorized basdte point of healthcare delivery including protuused in medical offi
and surgical procedures by obstetricians and gyogists (ob/gyns) representing 67% of CooperSulgicaet sale
CooperSurgical's remaining sales represent prodisetd in fertility clinics that now represent 33%GmoperSurgical's net sa
up from 16% in the prior year period due to they2012 acquisition of Origio, a global intro fertilization medical devic
company.

As part of the new health care reform law, a 2.3%se tax on any entity that manufactures or ingporédical devices offered
sale in the United States, with limited exceptidrecame effective January 1, 2013. CooperVisiawdyzts are not subject to t
new tax because contact lenses are excluded frenaxh However, United States sales of CooperSalftgiproducts are subjec
this new tax which is primarily recorded in sellimgeneral and administrative expense on the Statieofigncome.

On September 12, 2013, we entered into a year, $300.0 million, senior unsecured term loareagent (Term Loan) that w
mature on September 12, 2018, and will be subgeatrtortization of principal of 5% per year payadprterly beginning Octok
31, 2016, with the balance payable at maturity.dlezed the funds provided by this Term Loan tpag amounts outstanding
our revolving Credit Agreement, and at OctoberZ11,3, $300.0 million remained outstanding on thexTkeoan.

At October 31, 2013, we had $999.8 million avakabhder the revolving Credit Agreement. We belithat our cash and ce
equivalents, cash flow from operating activitiesl &orrowing capacity under existing credit facggiwill fund operations both
the next 12 months and in the longer term as veetlusrent and longerm cash requirements for capital expendituregiations
share repurchases and cash dividends.

2013 Compared with 2012
Highlights: 2013 vs. 2012

* Net sales up 10% to $1.6 billion from $1.4 billiorfiscal year 201.
» Gross margin 65% of net sales up from €

» Operating income up 8% to $305.9 million from $28illion.

* Interest expense down 22% to $9.2 million from 8Irillion.
 Diluted earnings per share up 18% to $5.96 frord%

« Operating cash flow $415.9 million up 32% from $31aillion.

Fiscal 2013 preax results include a $21.1 million loss on divtesé of Aime, $14.1 million of insurance proceedfated to
business interruption claim and $0.6 million of tso®lated to the acquisition of Origio. Fiscal 2Qdretax results include a $1
million loss related to the May 31, 2012, amendmenbur revolving Credit Agreement, and costs eslaip the acquisition
Origio consisting of $4.9 million in direct acquish costs and a $0.4 million net gain relatedhn® tepayment of debt acqui
recorded in interest expense.

43




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

Selected Statistical Information — Percentage of N&ales

2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
Years Ended October 31, 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Net sales 100% 10% 100% 9 % 10C(%
Cost of sales 35% 8% 3€% ()% 4C%
Gross profit 65% 11% 64% 15% 60%
Selling, general and administrative expense 38% 8% 3% 1C% 38%
Research and development expense 4% 14% 4% 18 % 3%
Amortization of intangibles 2% 26% 1% 17% 2%
Loss on divestiture of Aime 2% — — — —
Operating income 19% 8% 2C% 25 04 17%
Net Sales

Our two business units, CooperVision and Cooper8akggenerate all of our sales.

» CooperVision develops, manufactures and marketoadbrange of soft contact lenses for the worldwidgon correctio
market.

» CooperSurgical develops, manufactures and markedkcal devices and procedure solutions to impr@adthcare delivery
women.

Net Sales Growth by Business Unit

Our consolidated net sales grew by $142.6 milliofiscal 2013 and $114.3 million in 2012:

($ in millions) 2013 vs. 2012 % Change 2012 vs. 2011 % Change

CooperVision $ 79.1 7% $ 68.1 6%

CooperSurgical 63.5 25% 46.2 22%
$ 142.¢ 10% $ 114.2 9%

CooperVision Net Sales
The contact lens market has two major product caies;
» Spherical lenses including lenses that correat+and farsightedness uncomplicated by more compkuabidefect:

» Toric and multifocal lenses including lensesttha addition to correcting neaand farsightedness, address more con
visual defects such as astigmatism and presbyopiadaing optical properties of cylinder and axishiah correct fc
irregularities in the shape of the cornea.

In order to achieve comfortable and healthy conlrts wear, products are sold with recommendedcephent schedules, of
defined as modalities, with the primary modalitlesing single-use, twareek and monthly. CooperVision offers spher
aspherical, toric, multifocal and toric multifodahs products in most modalities.

The contact lens market consists primarily of dégtate and frequently replaced lenses. Disposabie¢eare designed for eit
daily, twoweek or monthly replacement; frequently replacetsds are designed for replacement after one t@ timenths
Significantly, the market for spherical lensesrgwjng with value-
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added spherical lenses to alleviate dry eye symptasiwell as lenses with aspherical optical pragseror higher oxyge
permeable lenses such as silicone hydrogels.

CooperVisions Proclear brand aspheric, toric and multifocaltacinlenses, manufactured using PC Technology, éelanc
tissue/device compatibility and offer improved leosnfort.

CooperVisions Biofinity brand silicone hydrogel spherical, toand multifocal contact lenses, Avaira brand spheand tori
products and MyDay, our silicone hydrogel singge products, are manufactured using proprietaryafggm technology
increase oxygen transmissibility for longer weae Bélieve that it is important to develop a fuliga of multifocal and singlase
silicone hydrogel products due to increased presfsam silicone hydrogel products offered by oujonaompetitors.

CooperVision net sales growth included increasdstad sphere lenses up 4%, representing 56% dfales and total toric len:
up 9%, representing 31% of net sales. Total mualifdenses grew 29% to 10% of net sales up fromir8%he prior year c
increased sales of Biofinity monthly and Procleagke-use multifocal products. Silicone hydrogel produstsiuding MyDay, ou
singleuse silicone hydrogel lens, grew 26% worldwide respnting 43% of net sales up from 36% in the py&ar. Procle:
product sales grew 6% as compared to the prior gedr represented 25% of net sales, the same aprithreyear. Olde
conventional lens products, including cosmeticdsnsleclined 12% and represented 3% of net shiesainme as the prior year.

CooperVision competes in the worldwide soft contieects market and services three primary regions: Americas, EME,
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Asia Pacific.

CooperVision Net Sales by Geography

($ in millions) 2013 2012 % Change
Americas $ 546.2 $ 498.¢ 9%
EMEA 439.¢ 402.c 9%
Asia Pacific 282.1 288.( (2)%
$ 1,268.0 $ 1,189.: 7 %

CooperVision’s worldwide net sales grew 7% in tlearytoyear comparison. Americas net sales grew 9%, pilyndue to marke
gains of CooperVision’s silicone hydrogel contamtdes along with singlese sphere and multifocal products. EMEA net
increased 9% primarily driven by sales of silicdnyglrogel lenses and singlse sphere and multifocal products. Net salese
Asia Pacific region decreased 2% due to the negatipact of the weakening of the Japanese yen cauifa the United Stat
dollar. Excluding the impact of currency, saledhie Asia Pacific region grew on market gains dteile hydrogel lenses &
single-use products.

CooperVisions net sales growth was driven primarily by increasethe volume of lenses sold and introductiomev product:
primarily silicone hydrogel lenses. While unit gtbmand product mix have influenced CooperVisgosgales growth, avere
realized prices by product have not materiallyuaficed sales growth.

CooperSurgical Net Sales

CooperSurgica$ fiscal 2013 net sales increased 25% from fis€dl22to $319.4 million with net sales growth exchg
acquisitions of 3%. Sales of products used inlfigrelinics now represent 33% of net sales compaoe16% in the prior year d
to the acquisition of Origio in July 2012. Salespobducts used in medical office and surgical ptdoices by ob/gyns declined :
as compared to the prior year and now
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represent 67% of CooperSurgical's net sales compae84% in the prior year. CooperSurgisabales primarily compri
womens healthcare products used in fertility procedaned by gynecologists and obstetricians in surgcatedures and in t
medical office. The balance consists of sales ofioa devices outside of womenhealthcare which CooperSurgical does
actively market. Unit growth and product mix, prinhasales of fertility products, along with inciesd average realized prices
disposable products influenced organic sales growth

Acquisition of Origio: On July 11, 2012, we completed a voluntary tend&sr dor the outstanding shares of Origio a/s
purchase price of Norwegian krone (NOK) 28 per shiarcash, or $147.4 million, and acquired abo@ 3 the outstandir
shares. During our fiscal fourth quarter of 2018 aar fiscal first quarter of 2013, we completemhandatory redemption to obt
the remaining shares in accordance with the Da@istmpanies Act. We, through our subsidiaries, fieainthe acquisition wi
available offshore cash and credit facilities. @rigs a global invitro fertilization (IVF) medical device companyathdevelop:
manufactures andistributes highly specialized products that tanyét treatment with a goal to make fertility tream safel
more efficient and convenient. Based in Malov, Darkm Origio had approximately 320 employees. Weaurassl about $45
million of Origio's debt that we repaid concurrevith the acquisition. Our allocation of the purchamsice at fair value includ
amortizable intangible assets of $107.7 million goddwill of $103.7 million. We incurred $4.9 mdh of acquisition costs whi
were primarily reported as selling, general and iadirative expense in our Consolidated Stateménhame. See Note 2 {
additional information.

2012 Compared with 2011
Highlights: 2012 vs. 2011

* Net sales up 9% to $1.4 billion from $1.3 billionfiscal year 201.
* Gross margin 64% of net sales up from €

* Operating income up 25% to $283.4 million from $B2million.

* Interest expense down 32% to $11.8 million from.$illion.
 Diluted earnings per share up 39% to $5.05 fror6%

« Operating cash flow $315.1 million down 6% from $33million.

Fiscal 2012 préax results include a $1.4 million loss relatedhite May 31, 2012, amendment to our revolving Cradittemen
and costs related to the acquisition of Origio extitgy of $4.9 million in direct acquisition cosiad a $0.4 million net gain rela
to the repayment of debt acquired recorded in eésteexpense. Fiscal 2011 pee- results included a charge of $20.4 mil
related to the limited recall of Avaira contactdes, costs of $16.5 million related to the redeomptif our Senior Notes, a $1
million charge related to the settlement of alirdsin a patent infringement lawsuit and restruoticosts of $1.9 million relat:
to the CooperVision manufacturing restructuringhdlaat was completed in fiscal 2011.
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Selected Statistical Information — Percentage of N&ales

2012 vs. 2011 2011 vs. 2010
Years Ended October 31, 2012 % Change 2011 % Change 2010
Net sales 10C% 9% 10C% 15% 10C%
Cost of sales 36% ()% 4C% 9% 42%
Gross profit 64% 15% 6C% 1% 58%
Selling, general and administrative
expense 3% 10% 38% 18% 37%
Research and development expense 4% 19% 3% 24% 3%
Amortization of intangibles 1% 17% 2% 14% 2%
Operating income 20% 25 0 17% 20% 16%

Net Sales Growth by Business Unit

Our consolidated net sales grew by $114.3 milliofiscal 2012 and $172.3 million in 2011:

($ in millions) 2012 vs. 2011 % Change 2011 vs. 2010 % Change

CooperVision $ 68.1 6% $ 150.¢ 16%

CooperSurgical 46.2 22% 217 12%
$ 114.% 9% $ 172.: 15%

CooperVision Net Sales

Net sales growth included increases in si-use spheres up 10%, representing 22% of net Sadéal. toric lenses grew 5% &
were 30% of net sales, and multifocal lenses gré¥s 2 8% of net sales up from 7% in the prior y&ilicone hydrogel produc
grew 28% worldwide and represented 36% of net sgidsom 30% in the prior year. Proclear produt¢savere flat as compar
to the prior year and represented 25% of net siles from 27% in the prior year. Older conventioleals products and cosme
lenses declined 16% and 20%, respectively, andhegespresented 3% of net sales, down from 4%serptior year.

CooperVision competes in the worldwide soft contlects market and services three primary regions: Americas, EME,
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Asia Pacific.
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CooperVision Net Sales by Geography

($ in millions) 2012 2011 % Change
Americas $ 498.¢ $ 469.7 6%
EMEA 402.% 398.t 1%
Asia Pacific 288.( 252.¢ 14%

$ 1,189.:. $ 1,121.: 6%

CooperVision’s worldwide net sales grew 6% in tlearytoyear comparison. Americas net sales grew 6%, pilyrdue to marke
gains of CooperVision’s silicone hydrogel lensed aimgleuse lenses. EMEA net sales grew 1% primarily drivgisales grow!
of silicone hydrogel lenses, as sales in fiscal2@&re negatively impacted due to the weakening emd the British pour
compared to the United States dollar. Net saleésedAsia Pacific region grew 14%, primarily duestdes growth in fiscal 2012
singleuse lenses and silicone hydrogel lenses. AsiaiPawt sales growth was positively impacted by strengthening of tf
Japanese yen and Australian dollar compared totiited States dollar.

CooperVisions net sales growth was driven primarily by increasethe volume of lenses sold and introductiomeiv product:
primarily silicone hydrogel lenses. While unit gibmand product mix have influenced CooperVisgsales growth, avere
realized prices by product have not materiallyuaficed sales growth.

CooperSurgical Net Sales

CooperSurgica$ fiscal 2012 net sales increased 22% from fis€dl12to $255.9 million with net sales growth exchg
acquisitions of 6%. Origio net sales of $25.1 miiliare included in fiscal 2012 beginning on Jul@12. Sales of products u:
in surgical procedures grew 19% and represented @6%ooperSurgicad fiscal 2012 net sales, 40% excluding Origio's
business, compared to 37% in the prior year. Unwgh and product mix along with increased avereggized prices ¢
disposable products have influenced organic satesty.
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2013 Compared to 2012 and 2012 Compared to 2011

Cost of Sales/Gross Profit

Gross Profit Percentage of Net Sales 2013 2012 2011

CooperVision 65% 63% 60%
CooperSurgical 64% 6€% 65%
Consolidated 65% 64% 60%

The increase in CooperVision's gross margin iselgrgttributable to the lower royalty payment o silicone hydrogel produc
beginning on January 1, 2013, increased manufactwefficiencies and product mix. Sales of highergmaBiofinity product:
increased as compared to the prior year. Salesirofower margin Avaira family of products also gra@wthe fiscal 2013 as \
completed the relaunch of these products that ctaripehe twoweek modality market. Gross margin was unfavoralyacte:
by lower net sales on products sold in Japan dukeaveakening of the Japanese yen as comparée tdrited States dollar
fiscal 2013. The sequential increases in gross imarger the fiscal years presented are largelybatible to improvements
manufacturing efficiencies and product mix, primathe shift to higher margin Biofinity silicone tyogel products. We exp:
our plans to ramp up production of MyDay, our ségse spherical silicone hydrogel lens, to providadwénds to our gro:
margin over future fiscal periods.

The decrease in CooperSurgical's gross margiridoalf2013 as compared to fiscal 2012 is largelybatable to product mix ai
increased sales of lower margin fertility produdtge to the acquisition of Origio in July 2012. Satd lower margin fertilit
products now represent 33% of net sales compar2@%oin fiscal 2012. The increase in CooperSurtgogitoss margin for fisc
2012 as compared to fiscal 2011 is largely atteiblet to manufacturing efficiency improvements amtipct mix. The changes
product mix included higher margins on productsdusesurgical procedures that grew 19% over therprear and represen
36% of net sales in fiscal 2012, or 40% excludinggi® sales for the last four months of 2012, comedao 37% in fiscal 201
The increase was partially offset by the inclusibfiour months of sales of lower margin fertilitygducts from the acquisition
Origio in July 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense (SGA)

% Net % Net % Net

($ in millions) 2013 Sales % Change 2012 Sales % Change 2011 Sales
CooperVision $  448. 35% 3% $ 433t 36% 6% $ 410.c 37%
CooperSurgical 118.¢ 37% 27% 93.C 36% 32% 70.€ 34%

Corporate 44.C — 15% 38.4 — 19% 32.c —
$ 610.7 38% 8% $ 564.¢ 39% 10% $ 513.1 38%

Consolidated SGA decreased to 38% of net saleisaalf2013 from 39% of net sales in fiscal 2012 wad flat as compared
fiscal 2011.

The 3% increase in CooperVision's SGA in fiscal 2@&bmpared to fiscal 2012 in absolute dollars isnarily due to oL
investment in sales and marketing, including inseglaheadcount, to reach new customers and supgographic expansic
Programs included the promotion of our siliconerbgel products, including MyDay, our singlse spherical silicone hydro
lens, and Proclear 1 Day multifocal in Japan. SGA aercent of net sales decreased to 35% froma3®P87% in fiscal 2012 a
2011, respectively, primarily due to reduced legadts and the $10.0 million patent litigation settent in fiscal 2011 discus:
below.

The 27% increase in CooperSurgical's SGA in absalallars in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2ahd the increase a
percentage of net sales is primarily due to opsgagxpenses related to Origio, including approxatya$0.6 million of acquisitio
costs in fiscal 2013. In addition to the acquisitand integration
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activities related to Origio, CooperSurgical con#@n to invest in sales activities to promote owdpcts, with emphasis
products used in surgical procedures, and to reashcustomers. On January 1, 2013, the new mediate excise tax beca
effective on sales of CooperSurgical's producteénUnited States and added $2.4 million to SGAeaszp in fiscal 2013.

The 32% increase in CooperSurgical's SGA in absalatlars in fiscal 2012 as compared to fiscal 284 Well as the increase ¢
percentage of sales is primarily due to operatixgeeses related to Origio as well as approxima®dly million of acquisitio
costs expensed in fiscal 2012. Fiscal 2012 SGA 3446 as a percentage of net sales, the same akZxkh, excluding Origi
operating expenses and related acquisition costs.

Corporate headquarters’ SGA increased 15% in atesdbllars in fiscal 2013 primarily due to incredstarebased compensati
costs. The 19% growth in absolute dollars in fi@l2 as compared to fiscal 2011 was primarily guacreased shafease
compensation costs and legal expenses.

Research and Development Expense (R&D)

% Net % Net % Net

($.in millions) 2013 Sales % Change 2012 Sales % Change 2011 Sales
CooperVision $ 46.£ 4% 10% $ 42.2 4% 14% $ 37.C 3%
CooperSurgical 12.¢ 4% 32% 9.4 4% 43% 6.€ 3%
$ 58.¢ 4% 14% $ 51.7 4% 19% $ 43.¢ 3%

The sequential increases in CooperVision's R&Doisodute dollars over the fiscal years presentediamdiscal 2012 increase ¢
percentage of net sales as compared to the praor are primarily due to investments in new techgige, clinical trials ar
increased headcount. CooperVismmnésearch and development activities primarilyuithe programs to develop new contact
designs.

The sequential increases in CooperSurgical's R&EBbsolute dollars over the fiscal years presentediae fiscal 2012 increase
a percentage of net sales as compared to theyaa@orare due to the addition of Origio'svitro fertilization product developme
and investments in the design and upgrade of falrgrocedure devices.

Divested Operation

On October 31, 2013, we completed a transactiosetibAime, our rigid gagpermeable contact lens and solutions busine
Japan, to Nippon Contact Lens Inc. The business oxiginally obtained as part of the December 1, ®R@tquisition whic
included obtaining the rights to market Biofinity Japan. The divestiture is consistent with Coofso¥’'s strategy to focus on
core soft contact lens business. Additionally, Airegenue has declined in recent periods, and tbdupts have lower th
average company margins. Post divestiture, we éxpedransaction to be neutral to earnings peresha

The Aime divestiture was originally announced onyN8d, 2013, and met the criteria for classificatéanheld for sale during t
fiscal fourth quarter of 2013. During the fourthagier of 2013, we completed several conditionslésieg and facilitated tt
transfer of manufacturing technology. We recordguestax loss of approximately $21.1 million in our Cohdated Statement
Income for fiscal 2013. Results from operationsAohe are included in our Consolidated Statementkxodme for fiscal 201
2012 and 2011, and we have not segregated thdsregubperations or net assets of Aime on our fir@nstatements for a
period presented. The disposition of the assetdialnitities of Aime did not qualify for classifitimn as discontinued operation:
CooperVision shall maintain continuing involvemémough a distribution arrangement with Aime faneaimum of three years.
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Amortization of Intangibles

Amortization of intangibles was $30.2 million irs€al 2013, $24.0 million in fiscal 2012 and $20.Biom in fiscal 2011. Th
26% increase in fiscal 2013 as compared to fis@dl2and the 17% increase in fiscal 2012 as compardiscal 2011 wel
primarily due to intangible assets from acquisgigmimarily the acquisition of Origio in July 2012.

Settlements

On December 2, 2011, CooperVision and RembrandoWisechnologies, L.P. entered into a settlementeagent under whi
CooperVision agreed to make a lump sum paymenfl@f@million to Rembrandt, and Rembrandt executedvenant not to si
regarding patent infringement claims. We recordetiarge in selling, general and administrative agpdor the settlement in «
fiscal fourth quarter of 2011.

Operating Income

Operating income grew $78.4 million or 35% betwéesaal 2011 and fiscal 2013, increasing $22.6 onillor 8% in fiscal 201
from fiscal 2012 and $55.8 million or 25% in fis@4l12 from fiscal 2011.

% Net % Net % Net

($ in millions) 2013 Sales % Change 2012 Sales % Change 2011 Sales
CooperVision $ 289.c 23% 1C% $ 262.¢ 22% 27% $ 207.t 1%
CooperSurgical 60.¢€ 1% 3% 59.C 23% 12% 52.4 25%

Corporate (44.0 — (15)% (38.9 — (19% (32.9) —
$ 305.¢ 19% 8% $ 283« 20% 250 $ 227.¢ 17%

The increase in consolidated operating incomesiefi2013 as compared to fiscal 2012 in absolutardavas primarily due to tl
increase in gross profit of 11%, partially offset the increase in operating expenses of 13%. Tleedse in consolidat
operating income as a percentage of sales in f&¥E8 as compared to fiscal 2012 was primarily tduhe $21.1 million loss «
divestiture of Aime, discussed above, recordedperating expenses for CooperVision. CooperSurgiagierating income
fiscal 2012 increased in absolute dollars primadlye to the increase in gross profit that alsouiketl the results of Oric
beginning in July 2012, and operating income desméaas a percentage of sales primarily due to 4h@ ®illion of Origic
acquisition costs.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased 22% to $9.2 milliors@alf 2013 constituting 0.6% of net sales in fi2@13 as compared to 0.8%
net sales in fiscal 2012. The fiscal 2013 decreefiects lower average debt and lower averagedstaates in the current ye
Interest expense decreased 32% to $11.8 millidis@al 2012 as compared to fiscal 2011 reflectingdr average debt and
reduction in our longerm borrowings used for capital expenditures togretvith lower interest rates as a result of tieneptior
of our 7.125% Senior Notes in February 2011. We $300.0 million outstanding on the new Term Loaml &9.2 millior
outstanding under our revolving Credit AgreementQatober 31, 2013, compared to $346.3 million @utding under o
revolving Credit Agreement at October 31, 2012.

Insurance Proceeds

On October 28, 2011, a manufacturing building i@ thited Kingdom experienced an incident in whicpifge broke in our fir
suppression system, causing water and fire retafdam damage to the facility. While this incidettl not substantially impe
our existing customers, the repairs to the facditgl resultant decrease in manufacturing capauipacted the timing of marketi
initiatives to generate additional sales. In Jan&x13, we resolved our business interruption chaath our insurer for a total
$19.1 million.
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We received payments of $5million in our fiscal fourth quarter of 2012. In iofiscal first quarter of 2013, we recorded
remaining $14.1 million in our Consolidated Stateinaf Income of which we received payment of $&dlion during the fisce
first quarter and payment of the remaining $11.Beniin the fiscal second quarter.

Losses on Extinguishment of Debt

In fiscal 2012, we recorded a $1.4 million lossatetl to the amendment to our revolving Credit Agreret on May 31, 2012.
fiscal 2011, we recorded a $16.5 million loss edato the repurchase of all outstanding 7.125%d8e¥dtes that includes t
write-off of about $4.4 million of unamortized cestnd the redemption premium of $12.1 million.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Years Ended October 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Foreign exchange gain (loss) $ 01 % 15 $ (1.0
Other, net 1.2 1.7 —

$ 1.4 $ 02 $ (1.0)

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $15.4 milliofiscal 2013 compared to $26.8 million in fiscal 20Dur effective tax ra
(ETR) (provision for income taxes divided by pretagome) for fiscal 2013 was 4.9% and for fiscal2@vas 9.7%. The decre
in the ETR in fiscal 2013 is driven by changes im geographic mix of income as well as discretm@erimarily the loss ¢
divestiture of Aime, the decrease in the Unitedgdiom's tax rate and the reinstatement of the fe&&B credit.

The ETR is below the United States statutory rata enajority of our income is earned in foreigngdictions with lower tax rat
reflecting the shift in the geographic mix of incemuring recent periods with income earned in fprgirisdictions increasing
compared to income earned in the United States ¥Assult, the ratio of domestic income to worldwideome, primarily withil
CooperVision but augmented by CooperSurgical's 2042 acquisition of Origio, has decreased oveentéiscal periods.
reduction in the ratio of domestic income to woridevincome effectively lowers the overall tax rdige to the fact that the |
rates in the majority of foreign jurisdictions whewe operate are significantly lower than the stayurate in the United States.

The impact on our provision for income taxes ofoime earned in foreign jurisdictions being taxedats different than tl
United States federal statutory rate was a beogfpproximately $97.0 million and a foreign efigettax rate of approximate
0.6% in our fiscal year 2013 compared to $71.3iomlland a foreign effective tax rate of approximhate1% in our fiscal ye:
2012. The foreign jurisdictions with lower tax mitas compared to the United States federal statuéde that had the mq
significant impact on our provision for foreign aroe taxes in the fiscal years presented includeJtiited Kingdom, Barbad:
and Puerto Rico. See Note 5 for additional inforamat

Share Repurchases

In December 2011, we announced a $150.0 milliorreshepurchase program, and in December 2012 tlz #otthorize
repurchase amount was increased to $300.0 miltiotl, authorized by our Board of Directors. The pang has no expiration d:
and may be discontinued at any time. During fi@13, we repurchased 1.4 million shares of our comstock for $167
million at an average purchase price of $117.78hpare. During fiscal 2012, we repurchased 984s#od shares of our comn
stock for $71.1
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million at an average purchase price of $72.30spare. At October 31, 2013, we had remaining aiéitbon to repurchase abi
$61.5 million of our common stock. Subsequent to fiacal year end, the Board of Directors authatizke repurchase of
additional $200.0 million under this program in@ieg the remaining authorization to $261.5 milli@ee Note 7 for additior
information.

Share-Based Compensation Plans

We grant various shatgased compensation awards, including stock optipadprmance shares, restricted stock and resl
stock units. The shateased compensation and related income tax beeefignized in the consolidated financial statemax
fiscal 2013 was $30.4 million and $8.8 million, pestively, compared to $22.8 million and $7.0 roillj respectively, in fisc
2012. As of October 31, 2013, there was $55.5 onilbf total unrecognized share-based compensatisinrelated to nomeste:
awards: $9.0 million for stock options; $36.7 nailii for restricted stock units; and $9.8 million foerformance shares. 1
unrecognized compensation is expected to be repegnbver weighted average remaining vesting perafd8.1 years fc
nonvested stock options, 3.1 years for restrictedksunits and 1.7 years for performance sharesh @eceived from optio
exercised under all shabased compensation arrangements for fiscal 20112 a6d 2011 was $19.3 million, $55.1 million
$82.0 million, respectively.

We estimate the fair value of each stock optionrdvea the date of grant using the Blag&holes valuation model, which requ
management to make estimates regarding expectéhdibe, stock price volatility and other assunapis. The use of differe
assumptions could lead to a different estimateaof\alue. The expected life of the stock optiorbésed on the observed
expected time to postesting forfeiture and/or exercise. Groups of empds that have similar historical exercise behasie
considered separately for valuation purposes. ifassumption for the expected life increased by ywe, the fair value of .
individual option granted in fiscal 2013 would hawereased by approximately $3. To determine tloeksprice volatility
management considers implied volatility from pulplitaded options on the Company's stock at the dbigramt, historice
volatility and other factors. If our assumption f&tock price volatility increased by one percentpget, the fair value of ¢
individual option granted in fiscal 2013 would hamereased by less than $1.

We estimate stock option forfeitures based on hgsb data for each employee grouping and adjusts rate to expect
forfeitures periodically. The adjustment of theféiure rate will result in a cumulative catap- adjustment in the period -
forfeiture estimate is changed.

We grant performance units that provide for theasee of common stock to certain executive offieerd other key employee:
the Company achieves specified long-term performauals over a thregear period. We estimate the fair value of eachrdwe
the date of grant based on the current market ficr common stock. The total amount of compeasatxpense recogniz
reflects our initial assumptions of the achievemeinthe performance goals and the estimated forieitates. We review c
assessment of the probability of the achievemettefperformance goals each fiscal quarter. Ifeadment of the goals are
met or it is determined that achievement of thelg@anot probable, previously recognized compeosagxpense is adjust
prospectively to reflect the expected achieveménive determine that achievement of the goals witceed the origin
assessment, additional compensation expense ignized prospectively.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

2013 Highlights

» Operating cash flow $415.9 million up from $315.illion in fiscal 2012

» Expenditures for purchases of property, plant apdpenent $178.1 million up from $99.8 million irséal 2012
» Cash payments for acquisitions totaled $13.3 miltompared to $145.3 million in fiscal 20

» Total debt decreased to $344.7 million at the drfiscal 2013 from $373.7 million at the end ofciéd 2012

Comparative Statistics

Years Ended October 31,
($ in millions) 2013 2012

Cash and cash equivalents $ 774 % 12.¢
Total assets $ 3,137.0 $ 2,941..
Working capital $ 426.C % 395.:
Total debt $ 3447 % 373.7
Stockholders’ equity $ 2,423 % 2,213..
Ratio of debt to equity 0.14:1 0.17:1
Debt as a percentage of total capitalization 12% 14%

Working Capital

The increase in working capital at the end of is2@l3 from the end of fiscal 2012 was primarilyedio increases in ca
inventory and other current assets. This increasepartially offset by increases in accounts payaht short-term debt.

The $18.7 million increase in inventory was primyadue to increased production of singise silicone contact lenses an
support the relaunch of Avaira Toric contact lenséss October 31, 2013, our inventory months on h#@htDH) were 6.!
representing an increase from 6.7 at October 312,28ue to the increase in inventory and the redicif the royalty paymer
recognized in costs of sales, for CooperVisiorisaie hydrogel contact lenses. The $4.8 milliorrdase in trade accou
receivable was primarily due to timing of collectioas well as the divestiture of Aime in Octobet2@ur days sales outstanc
(DSO) decreased to 53 days at October 31, 20113, b days at October 31, 2012.

We have reviewed our needs in the United Statesgpéssible repatriation of undistributed earningscash of our foreic
subsidiaries. We presently intend to continue ttefimitely invest all earnings and cash outsid¢hef United States of all forei
subsidiaries to fund foreign investments or meggifm working capital and property, plant and eqept requirements.

Operating Cash Flow

Cash flow provided by operating activities contidue fiscal 2013 as our major source of liquidity$415.9 million compared
$315.1 million in fiscal 2012 and $336.3 millionfiscal 2011. Fiscal 2013 net income increased3#8llion from the prior yet
to $296.9 million, and our results include $127.Bliom of noncash items primarily related to depreciation andrization
$28.5 million related to shateased compensation, $21.1 million related to tlvedliture of Aime and $8.9 million related
currency translation. Results also include chamgeperating assets and liabilities, which primaréflect the increases in
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inventories and accrued income taxes payable. T08.8 million increase in cash flow provided by @®ns in fiscal 2013 :
compared to fiscal 2012 is primarily due to thedis2013 increase in net income, that includeddb® on divestiture of Aime a
the $14.1 million for insurance proceeds receieed} the lower investment in inventories comparefistal 2012.

For fiscal 2013, our primary source of cash flowsvimled by operating activities was cash colledidom our customers f
purchase of our products and the $14.1 millionifisurance proceeds received. Our primary uses gif flaws from operatir
activities were for personnel and material costs@iwith cash payments of $5.4 million for interest

For fiscal 2012, our primary source of cash flowsvimled by operating activities was cash colledi®om our customers f
purchase of our products. Our primary uses of 8asfs from operating activities were for personaetl material costs along w
cash payments of $10.6 million for interest and $46.0 million single lumsum payment, accrued in fiscal 2011, to settl
Rembrandt Vision Technologies, L.P. lawsuit untéieragreement reached on December 2, 2011.

Investing Cash Flow

Cash used in investing activities of $189.9 millionfiscal 2013 was for capital expenditures of &L7million, primarily tc
increase manufacturing capacity, and payments @t3%hillion related to acquisitions, partially cgfsby the $1.3 millio
insurance recovery related to facility repairs.déscussed in Outlook above, during fiscal 2013, géowision implemented capi
projects to invest in increased singige manufacturing capacity which is the primaritiver of the $117.4 million increase
construction in progress.

Cash used in investing activities of $238.5 millinrfiscal 2012 was for capital expenditures of 89illion, primarily to increas
manufacturing capacity, and payments of $145.3aniltelated to acquisitions, primarily the acquasitof Origio, partially offse
by the $6.6 million insurance recovery relatedéailfty repairs.

Financing Cash Flow

The changes in cash flows from financing activitggdmarily relate to borrowings and payments of tdab well as sha
repurchases and sharsased compensation awards. Cash used in financiivifias of $161.6 million in fiscal 2013 was den by
$25.8 million for net repayments of debt, $167.3iam in payments for share repurchases under baresrepurchase plan, $
million to purchase Origio shares and other distitns to noncontrolling interests, a $3.6 millipayment for continge
consideration and $2.9 million for dividends. Casded in financing activities was partially offset $37.4 million from th
exercise of share-based compensation awards adarfibon from a construction allowance.

In fiscal 2012, the changes in cash flows fromririag activities primarily related to borrowingsdapayments of debt as well
sharebased compensation awards and share repurchass#s.u€ad in financing activities of $68.4 million fiscal 2012 we
driven by $56.7 million for net repayments of deibigluding repayment of debt acquired with Origamd $71.2 million i
payments for share repurchases under our sharechgse plan together with dividends paid on ourroom stock of $2.9 millio
$2.2 million to purchase Origio shares from nonodling interests and a $1.3 million payment fontogent consideration. Ce
used in financing activities was partially offsgt $65.1 million from the exercise of shdrased compensation awards and $
million for the excess tax benefit from share-basatipensation arrangements.

At October 31, 2013, we had $300.0 million outstagadn the new Term Loan and $999.8 million avddalnder the revolvir
Credit Agreement, and we are in compliance with fmancial covenants including the Interest Cover&atio at 54.29 to 1.
and the Total Leverage Ratio at 0.69 to 1.00. Amdd, in both
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the Credit Agreement and Term Loan, the Intereste@ge Ratio is the ratio of Consolidated ProfoEEBATDA to Consolidate
Interest Expense with the requirement to be at @89 to 1.00 and the Total Leverage Ratio isrét® of Consolidated Fund
Indebtedness to Consolidated Proforma EBITDA whith tequirement to be no higher than 3.75 to 1.00.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

None.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

As of October 31, 2013, we had the following caotual obligations and commercial commitments:

Payments Due by Period 2015 2017 2019

(In ' millions) Total 2014 & 2016 & 2018 & Beyond
Contractual obligations:

Long-term debt $ 3017 $ — $ 4€ % 296.¢ $ 0.t
Interest payments 15.€ 4. 6.1 4.6 =
Operating leases 119.( 20.¢ 30.¢ 23.2 44.z
Land and building construction 11.¢ 11.4 — — —
Consideration for marketing rights 2.5 2.t — — —
Contingent consideration 2.6 i.& i.& — —
Total contractual obligations 453.] 40.¢ 42.¢ 324.; 44
Commercial commitments:

Stand-by letters of credit 3.C 3.C — — —
Total $ 456.1 $ 43¢ % 42.¢ $ 3247 $ 44

The expected future benefit payments for pensiangthrough 2023 are disclosed in Note 9. Empl&gzeefits.

We are unable to reliably estimate the timing afifea payments related to uncertain tax positidms;gfore, about $29.0 million
our long-term income taxes payable have been egdlfrdm the table above. However, other loagn liabilities, included in o
consolidated balance sheet, included these unceataipositions. See Note 5 for additional inforiomat

Inflation and Changing Prices

Inflation has had no appreciable effect on our afi@ns in the last three fiscal years.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal 2013, the Company adopted the provisiSinancial Accounting Standards Board Accounfétgndards Update (AS
2011-05,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income . ASU 201105 requires entities to pres
net income and other comprehensive income in edlrengle continuous statement or in two sepabatieconsecutive, stateme
of net income and other comprehensive income. Tdragany has elected to present net income and otimeprehensive incor
on two separate but consecutive statements. Thatiadaf ASU 2011-05 did not have an impact on @mmpanys consolidate
results of operations, financial condition or cfisivs.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013®©a@nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income . ASU 201302 requires entities to present, either on the fdicbe statement where
income is presented or as a separate disclosuhe inotes, the effect on the respective line itefmget income for items requir
to be reclassified out of accumulated other cormgmeive income to net income in its entirety in siaene reporting period. F
other amounts that are not required to be recledsif its entirety to net income in the same répgrperiod, an entity is requir
to crossreference to other required disclosures that peowddditional details about those amounts. The Cagnpibes nc
anticipate that the adoption of this amendmentctvlié effective for the Company for the fiscal yeaginning on November
2013, will have a material impact on our consokdatesults of operations, financial condition astcllows.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Iricome Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit when a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Smilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. ASU 201341 requires an unrecogni:
tax benefit to be presented in the financial stete@ias a reduction to a deferred tax asset wheh@perating loss carryforwarc
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward ¢éxisWhen a net operating loss carryforward, a simtéx loss, or a tax cre
carryforward is not available, or the entity doed imtend to use the deferred tax asset for sucpose, the unrecognized
benefit should be presented in the financial statémas a liability and should not be combined wiligferred tax assets. 1
Company does not anticipate the adoption of thessndments, which are effective for the Companytherfiscal year beginni
on November 1, 2014, will have a material impacbanconsolidated results of operations, financtaddition or cash flows.

Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

Management estimates and judgments are an infegnabf financial statements prepared in accordanteaccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Ame(iBAAP). We believe that the critical accounting ip@ls described in tF
section address the more significant estimatesinetjwf management when preparing our consolidéitethcial statements
accordance with GAAP. We consider an accountingnase critical if changes in the estimate may haveaterial impact on o
financial condition or results of operations. Wdidea that the accounting estimates employed apFogpiate and resultit
balances are reasonable; however, actual resultd ddfer from the original estimates, requirindj@stment to these balance:
future periods.

. Revenue recognition We recognize product net sales, net of discoustsyns, and rebates in accordance with re
accounting standards and SEC Staff Accounting BadleAs required by these standards, we recogeizenue when it
realized or realizable and earned, based on tefrsal® with the customer, where persuasive evidef@n agreeme
exists, delivery has occurred, the seller's predixed and determinable and collectability is ceebly assured. F
contact lenses as well as CooperSurgical mediodte® diagnostic products and surgical instrumeintd accessorie
this primarily occurs when title and risk of ownas transfers to our customers. We believe our magerecognitio
policies are appropriate in all circumstances, tadl our policies are reflective of our customeaagements. We reco
based on historical statistics, estimated redustimnrevenue for customer incentive programs afféreluding cas
discounts, promotional and advertising allowanceslume discounts, contractual pricing allowanceshates ar
specifically established customer product retumgpams. The Company records taxes collected frastomers on a n
basis, as these taxes are not included in net sales

. Net realizable value of invento- In assessing the value of inventories, we makenastis and judgments regarding a
of inventories and other relevant issues potegtiaffecting the saleable condition of products astimated prices
which those products will sell. On an ongoing basis

57




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

we review the carrying value of our inventory, measy number of months on hand and other indicatimisalability. W
reduce the value of inventory if there are indimasi that the carrying value is greater than manestylting in a nev
lower-cost basis for that inventory. Subsequent changdadts and circumstances do not result in theoraton o
increase in that newly established cost basis. &Vldtimates are involved, historically, obsoleseehas not been
significant factor due to long product dating aeddthy product life cycles. We target to keep, varage, five teevel
months of inventory on hand to maintain high custorservice levels given the complexity of our cohtens an
women's healthcare product portfolios.

Valuation of goodwill \We account for goodwill and evaluate our goodwdllances and test them for impairment anni
during the fiscal third quarter and when an evertues or circumstances change such that it is neddp possible th
impairment may exist in accordance with relatedoanting standards. We performed our annual impanitrtest in ou
fiscal third quarter of 2013, and our analysis ¢atied that we had nmpairment of goodwill. We performed our anr
impairment test in our fiscal third quarter of 2Cdr&d concluded that we had no impairment of goddwthat year.

In fiscal 2013 and 2012, we performed qualitatigsessments to test each reporting unit's gooduaiillirhpairmeni
Qualitative factors considered in this assessnmaide industry and market considerations, ovéirsdincial performanc
and other relevant events and factors affectindy eaporting unit. Based on our qualitative assesgniewe determin
that the fair value of a reporting unit is moreelik than not to be less than its carrying amound, ttvostep impairmel
test will be performed.

The goodwill impairment test is a tvatep process. Initially, we compare the book valtiaet assets to the f
value of each reporting unit that has goodwill gssd to it. If the fair value is determined to bed than the book value
second step is performed to compute the amourhieinmpairment. A reporting unit is the level of ogjing at whicl
goodwill is tested for impairment. Our reportingitanare the same as our business segmer@@soperVision an
CooperSurgical - reflecting the way that we managrebusiness.

Goodwill impairment analysis amdeasurement is a process that requires signifjadgtment. If our common stock pr
trades below book value per share, there are ceangaarket conditions or a future downturn in business, or a futu
annual goodwill impairment test indicates an impa&nt of our goodwill, the Company may have to reizg a noncast
impairment of its goodwill that could be materialhd could adversely affect our results of operationthe perio
recognized and also adversely affect our totaltasswckholders' equity and financial condition.

Business combinationsWe routinely consummate business combinations. IRestioperations for acquired compai
are included in our consolidated results of operatifrom the date of acquisition. We recognize ssply from goodwiill
the identifiable assets acquired, including acguireprocess research and development, the liabilisssiraed, and a
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree generaliyttee acquisition date fair values as defined byoanting standart
related to fair value measurements. As of the adipn date, goodwill is measured as the excessos$ideration give
generally measured at fair value, and the net efaitguisition date fair values of the identifiabksets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Direct acquisition costs atpemsed as incurred.

Income taxes We account for income taxes under the asset abiititamethod. Deferred tax assets and liabilitsee
recognized for the future tax consequences ataidetto differences between the financial stateroanying amounts
existing assets and liabilities and their respectax bases, and for tax losses and tax crediyfoanards. Deferred te
assets and liabilities are measured using
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enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablariedo the years in which those temporary differerme expected to
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tartasand liabilities of a change in tax rates é®@gaized in income in tl
period that includes the enactment date. In asgptise realizability of deferred tax assets, manage considers whett
it is more likely than not that some portion ordithe deferred tax assets will not be realized.

As part of the process of preparing our consoldidieancial statements, we must estimate our inctareexpense fi
each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Thiscess requires significant management judgmends involve
estimating our current tax exposures in each jigtieeh including the impact, if any, of additionalxes resulting from t:
examinations as well as judging the recoverabilftdeferred tax assets. To the extent recovenetdrded tax assets is |
likely based on our estimation of future taxableoime in each jurisdiction, a valuation allowanceestablished. Tz
exposures can involve complex issues and may equirextended period to resolve. Frequent changes iaws in eac
jurisdiction complicate future estimates. To deti@erthe tax rate, we are required to estimateyiedlr income and tl
related income tax expense in each jurisdiction. Wdate the estimated effective tax rate for tHecefof significan
unusual items as they are identified. Changesdrgdographic mix or estimated level of annualtareincome can affe
the overall effective tax rate, and such changeddoe material.

Regarding accounting for uncertainty in income $axee recognize the benefit from a tax positiory hit is more likely
than not that the position would be sustained upodit based solely on the technical merits of #pe gosition. W
measure the income tax benefits from the tax postithat are recognized, assess the timing of énecdgnition ¢
previously recognized tax benefits and classify disglose the liabilities within the consolidatédaincial statements f
any unrecognized tax benefits based on the guidianttes interpretation of related accounting guikafor income taxe
The interpretation also provides guidance on hosvitiberest and penalties related to tax positioay be recorded a
classified within our Consolidated Statement ofoime and presented in the Consolidated Balance SWéetclassif
interest and penalties related to uncertain taXipos as additional income tax expense.

Share-Based Compensation - The Company grantsugasbardsased compensation awards, including stock op
performance unit shares, restricted stock andictsdr stock units. Under fair value recognition\pstons, shardsase:
compensation expense is measured at the granbaseel on the fair value of the award and is rezeghas expense o'
the vesting period. Determining the fair value bfebased awards at the grant date requires judgmecitjding
estimating Cooper's stock price volatility, empleyxercise behaviors and related employee foréeitates.

The expected life of the share-based awards isdbaise¢he observed and expected time to pesting forfeiture and/i
exercise. Groups of employees that have similatotcsl exercise behavior are considered separdt@lyaluatior
purposes. In determining the expected volatilitanagement considers implied volatility from pullitladed options ¢
the Company's stock at the date of grant, histbvigkatility and other factors. The ridkee interest rate is based on
continuous rates provided by the United StatessImgawith a term equal to the expected life of &neard. The divider
yield is based on the projected annual dividendvgayt per share, divided by the stock price at tte df grant.

As sharebased compensation expense recognized in our Gdatsal Statement of Income is based on awards atkiy
expected to vest, the amount of expense has bdanae for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures atereded at the time
grant, based on historical experience, and reviegcessary, in subsequent periods if actuakftunfes differ from thos
estimates.
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If factors change and the Company employs diffesgumptions in the application of the fair val@eognitior
provisions, the compensation expense that it recorduture periods may differ significantly fromhet it has recorded
the current period.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about MarkRisk.

We are exposed to market risks that relate prifigipa changes in interest rates and foreign cuydtuctuations. Our policy is
reduce, to the extent reasonable and practicaxfssure to the impact of changing interest ratesforeign currency fluctuatio
by entering into a limited number of interest rateaps and foreign currency forward exchange casiraespectively. We do r
emphasize such transactions to the same degreenas ather companies with international operatidife. do not enter in
derivative financial instrument transactions foesgative purposes.

We operate multiple foreign subsidiaries that maotufre and market our products worldwide. As altesur earnings, cash flc
and financial position are exposed to foreign awyerisk from foreign currency denominated receigaland payables, sa
transactions, capital expenditures and net investimecertain foreign operations. We are exposedsks caused by changes
foreign exchange, primarily to the British poundre@and Japanese yen. Our policy is to minimizehéextent reasonable ¢
practical, transaction, remeasurement and speafiedomic exposures with derivatives instrumenttoigh we may enter in
foreign exchange agreements with financial ingting to reduce our nonfunctional currency expostirese hedging transactic
do not eliminate that risk entirely. A hypothetid#l% increase or decrease in the foreign currerclyaage rates in comparisor
the United States dollar would not have a matauizlerse impact on our financial condition or resoftoperations. For additiot
information, see Item 1A. Risk Factors and Note fhe consolidated financial statements.

We are also exposed to risks associated with clsangaterest rates, as the interest rate on mioseansecured syndicated cre
facilities, including the revolving Credit Agreemieand Term Loan, may vary with the London Interb&fkered Rate (LIBOR
We have decreased this interest rate risk by hgdgsignificant portion of variable rate debt efiiesly converting it to fixed ra
debt for varying periods through December 2014.

On September 12, 2013, we entered into a ye&r, $300.0 million, senior unsecured term loareagent (Term Loan) that w
mature on September 12, 2018, and will be subjeatrtortization of principal of 5% per year payatpgrterly beginning Octok
31, 2016, with the balance payable at maturity.0ilezed the funds provided by this Term Loan tpag amounts outstanding
our revolving Credit Agreement, and at OctoberZ11,3, $300.0 million remained outstanding on thexTkeoan.

On May 31, 2012, we entered into an amendment toGradit Agreement, originally entered into on Janyul2, 2011. Tt
aggregate revolving commitment was increased t0 Billion from $750.0 million. This facility offersadditional availability
lower interest rates and extends the maturity tat®lay 31, 2017, from January 12, 2016. In addjtime have the ability -
increase the facility by up to an additional $506illion. KeyBank led the refinancing with certaianks that participated in 1
Credit Agreement retaining or increasing their ipgration.

In February 2011, we redeemed all $339.0 milliogragate principal amount outstanding of our 7.1258aior Notes issued
January 31, 2007, in accordance with the term&efndenture from borrowings under the Credit Agreet. In accordance w
the Indenture, the redemption price for the Notes W03.563% of their principal amount plus accraad unpaid interest
February 15, 2011, the redemption date. In fis€all2 we recorded a $16.5 million loss on the repase that includes the write-
off of about $4.4 million of unamortized costs ahé redemption premium of $12.1 million relatedthe Senior Notes on
Consolidated Statement of Income.
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October 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012

Short-term debt $ 43.C % 25.2
Long-term debt 301.% 348.¢
Total $ 3447 % 373.7

At October 31, 2013 the scheduled maturities of fored and variable rate lortgrm debt obligations, their weighted avel
interest rates and their estimated fair values asrllows:

Expected Maturity Date Fiscal Year Fair
($ in millions) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total Value
Long-term debt:
Fixed interest rate $ — $ 04 $ 04 $ 04 % — % 0 $ 1.7 $ 1.7
Average interest rate 2.1% 2.5% 3.1% 4.8% 4.8% 4.8%
Variable interest rate  $ —  $ — $ 3& %150 $281.2 $ — $300.0 $300.0
Average interest rate 1.C% 1.C% 1.C% 1.C% 1.C% —

As the table incorporates only those exposures ¢keted as of October 31, 2013t does not consider those exposure
positions which could arise after that date. A®sult, our ultimate realized gain or loss with Epo interest rate fluctuatic
will depend on interest rates, the exposures this¢ a@uring the period and our hedging strategidhat time. As ofOctober 31
2013, we had interest rate swaps outstanding thatesiged to fix the variable borrowing costs relat®&200.0 million of th
outstanding balance on our credit agreements.téirést rates were to increase or decrease by 1¥WM®basis points, anni
interest expense would increase or decrease byt &io0@ million. For further information about ouelat, see Item 1A. Ri:
Factors and Note 1 and Note 4 to the consolidatedi€ial statements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Cooper Companies, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and sahis&lithe Company)
of October 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related ¢olased statements of income, comprehensive inc@oss), stockholdel
equity, and cash flows for each of the years inttineeyear period ended October 31, 2013. We also hageeauthe Company
internal control over financial reporting as of Gwér 31, 2013, based on criteria establishethiernal Control - Integrated
Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairtbe Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Compi
management is responsible for these consolidatethdial statements, for maintaining effective in&trcontrol over financi
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecégenof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanyi
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovimancial Reporting appearing under item 9A. Qasponsibility is t
express an opinion on these consolidated finarst&kements and an opinion on the Company's intewwatrol over financi
reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting Oversighalo(United States
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidits to obtain reasonable assurance about erhti financial statemel
are free of material misstatement and whether ®&fednternal control over financial reporting wasintained in all materi
respects. Our audits of the consolidated finarstatements included examining, on a test basideage supporting the amot
and disclosures in the financial statements, asgeee accounting principles used and signifiestimates made by managem
and evaluating the overall financial statement gmegtion. Our audit of internal control over finalaeporting included obtainil
an understanding of internal control over financigborting, assessing the risk that a material wes exists, and testing
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéggernal control based on the assessed risk.aQdits also included performi
such other procedures as we considered necesstrg circumstances. We believe that our auditsigeos reasonable basis
our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliabil
of financial reporting and the preparation of finmh statements for external purposes in accordavitte generally accept
accounting principles. A company's internal contreér financial reporting includes those policiesl @rocedures that (1) pert
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonadibildaccurately and fairly reflect the transatti@nd dispositions of the asset
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancetithasactions are recorded as necessary to perspagation of financi
statements in accordance with generally accepteduating principles, and that receipts and expenest of the company ¢
being made only in accordance with authorizatiohsnanagement and directors of the company; angr(8)ide reasonak
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteatbnnauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositionttad company's assets |
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or @etenisstatements. Als

projections of any evaluation of effectivenesstitufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate bec:
of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofgi@mce with the policies or procedures may detate
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagrferred to above present fairly, in all matleréspects, the financial positi
of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and subsidiaried &xtober 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results af dperations and their ce
flows for each of the years in the thrgear period ended October 31, 2013, in conformith W.S. generally accepted accoun
principles. Also in our opinion, The Cooper Comgailnc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all makeespects, effective inter
control over financial reporting as of October 3013, based on criteria establishedriternal Control - Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrie Treadway Commission.

KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
December 20, 2013
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011

Net sales $ 1,587,720 $ 1,44513 $ 1,330,83
Cost of sales 560,91 521,12¢ 526,03:
Gross profit 1,026,80: 924,01( 804,80:-
Selling, general and administrative expense 610,73! 564,90: 513,13t
Research and development expense 58,82’ 51,73( 43,58
Amortization of intangibles 30,23¢ 23,97¢ 20,52¢
Loss on divestiture of Aime 21,06: — —
Operating income 305,94! 283,39¢ 227,55t
Interest expense 9,16¢ 11,77: 17,34:
Gain on insurance proceeds 14,08« 5,00( —
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 1,40¢ 16,48
Other income (expense), net 1,41( 22¢ (963)
Income before income taxes 312,27: 275,45. 192,76¢
Provision for income taxes 15,36¢ 26,80¢ 17,33¢
Net income 296,90 248,64« 175,43(
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 75k 30t —
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 296,15, $ 248,33¢ % 175,43(
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnslebasic $ 6.0¢ $ 5.1¢ $ 3.74
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnslediluted $ 59¢ $ 508 $ 3.67

Number of shares used to compute earnings per attalritable to Cooper
stockholders:

Basic 48,61t 47,91 46,90+

Diluted 49,68¢ 49,15: 48,30¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 296,90t $ 248,64: $ 175,43
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustment 2,607 (4,65¢) 5,81

Change in value of derivative instruments, netafgrovision (benefit) of $857,

$289 and $(1,307), respectively 1,341 452 (3,799

Change in minimum pension liability, net of tax yigion (benefit) $7,399, $(5,76

and $(1,806), respectively 11,60: (8,98¢) (2,804

Unrealized gain on marketable securities, netxoptavision of $0, $20 and $5,

respectively — 41 9

Reclassification of realized gain on marketablaigges to net income, net of tax

$27 (50) - _
Other comprehensive income (loss) 15,49¢ (13,15) (77¢€)
Comprehensive income 312,40! 235,49: 174,65
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to nomodiimg interests 717 (28%) —
Comprehensive income attributable to Cooper stddehns $ 313,12. $ 235,20¢ $ 174,65

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

October 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 77,390 $ 12,84(
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance fobtfalaccounts of $5,261 at
October 31, 2013 and $4,374 at October 31, 2012 229,53 234,29
Inventories 338,91° 320,19¢
Deferred tax assets 41,17¢ 39,41°
Prepaid expense and other current assets 60,21t 51,10°
Total current assets 747,24. 657,86
Property, plant and equipment, at cost 1,240,571 1,060,08!
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 500,70¢ 419,83:
739,86 640,25!
Goodwill 1,387,61 1,370,24
Other intangibles, net 198,76 214,78
Deferred tax assets 16,27¢ 14,43¢
Other assets 47,49¢ 43,80¢

$ 3,137,26. $ 2,941,38.

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt $ 42,987 $ 25,28«
Accounts payable 108,17: 85,05¢
Employee compensation and benefits 63,41« 59,44:
Accrued income taxes 2,51¢ 3,64(
Other current liabilities 104,16: 89,13
Total current liabilities 321,25: 262,55:;
Long-term debt 301,67 348,42.
Deferred tax liabilities 24,88: 30,97
Accrued pension liability and other 65,96 86,28
Total liabilities 713,76 728,22t

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 11)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, 10 cents par value, shares am#tbri,000; zero shares issued o1
outstanding — —

Common stock, 10 cents par value, shares authod284000; issued 50,335 at

October 31, 2013 and 49,447 at October 31, 2012 5,03¢ 4,94t
Additional paid-in capital 1,329,32! 1,265,20:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (15,767) (31,267
Retained earnings 1,311,85. 1,018,61!
Treasury stock at cost: 2,340 shares at Octobe2@1 and 1,007 shares at October
31, 2012 (225,91) (64,759
Total Cooper stockholders' equity 2,404,53! 2,192,75.
Noncontrolling interests 18,95¢ 20,40°
Stockholders’ equity 2,423,49. 2,213,15!

$ 3,137,26. $ 2,941,38.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Accumulated

Common Shares  Treasury Stock Other Total
Additional ~ Comprehensive Stockholders'
Paid-In Retained Treasury  Noncontrolling

(In thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Stock Interests Equity

Balance at October 31,

2010 45827 $458: 31 $ 31 $1,08377 $ (17,33) $ 600,52: $ (4,809 $ —  $1,666,77

Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders — — — — — — 175,43( — — 175,43(

Other comprehensive loss,

net of tax — — — — — (776 — — — (776)

Issuance of common stoc

for stock plans 2,01¢ 20z (144 (14 79,63 — — 2,21¢ — 82,03

Tax benefit from exercise

of stock options — — — — 2,96: — — — — 2,96:

Dividends on common

stock — — — — — — (2,816 — — (2,816

Share-based compensation

expense — — — — 13,87¢ — — — — 13,87¢

Balance at October 31,

2011 47,84¢ $4,788  16¢ $ 17 $1,180,251 $ (18,110 $ 773,13t $ (2,590 $ —  $1,937,48

Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders — — — — — — 248,33 — — 248,33¢

Other comprehensive loss

net of tax — — — — — (13,15) — — — (13,15

Issuance of common stock

for stock plans 1,57¢ 157  (14¢) (14) 45,92: — — 8,981 — 55,05:

Treasury stock repurchasi (984) (980 984 98 — — — (71,150 — (71,150

Tax benefit from exercise

of stock options — — — — 17,56¢ — — — — 17,56¢

Dividends on common

stock — — — — — — (2,857 — — (2,857

Share-based compensation

expense — — — — 21,54( — — — — 21,54(

Noncontrolling interests — — — — 77 — — — 20,407 20,33(

Balance at October 31,

2012 48,44( $484¢ 1,007 $ 101 $1,26520. $ (31,26 $1,018,61 $ (64,759 $ 20,407 $2,213,15

Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders — — — — — — 296,15: — — 296,15:

Other comprehensive

income, net of tax — — — — — 15,49¢ — — — 15,49¢

Issuance of common stoc

for stock plans 97€ 98 (88) (9) 13,02¢ — — 6,17( — 19,28’

Treasury stock repurchase(1,421)  (142) 1,421 142 — — —  (167,33) — (167,339

Tax benefit from exercise

of stock options — — — — 21,79¢ — — — — 21,79¢

Dividends on common

stock — — — — — — (2,919 — — (2,919

Share-based compensatic

expense — — — — 28,53¢ — — — — 28,53¢

Purchase of shares from

noncontrolling interests — — — — 762 — — — (1,062) (300

Distributions to

noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — — (1,149 (1,14))

Noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — — 75E 75¢

Balance at October 31,

2013 47,998 $4,80C 2,34 $ 234 $1,329,320 $ (15,762 $1,311,85 $(22591) $ 18,95¢ $2,423,49.




See accompanying notes to consolidated financsents.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense
Accrued litigation settlements
Share-based compensation expense
Loss on divestiture of Aime
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on extinguishment of debt and other
Deferred income taxes
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensatiandaw
Provision for doubtful accounts
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquined,ather
Insurance proceeds received
Cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Net proceeds from (repayments of) short-term debt
Repurchase of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock for empleieek plans
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensatianiaw
Purchase of Origio shares from noncontrolling iests
Dividends on common stock
Debt acquisition costs
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Payment of contingent consideration
Proceeds from construction allowance
Cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslaémts
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized
Income taxes

2013 2012 2011
296,90 $ 248,64 $ 175,43(
125,34 111,21 98,14¢

— 1,72¢ 10,00(
28,53¢ 21,54( 13,87¢
21,06: — —

6,711 4,26t 12,06¢
| 867 16,48
(17,189 (6,806) (4,420)
(18,087 (10,76() (2,899)
89C (45€) 527
55 (4,956) (2,689
(22,579 (58,099 (17,209
(22,870 (7,929 19€
(6,299 13,57¢ 5,18¢
(982) (12,259 19,31
27,71. 9,50¢ (64€)
(3,319 5,04( 12,89
415,92! 315,12 336,28
(178,12) (99,779 (103,66Y)
(13,049 (145,319 (58,01()
1,25¢ 6,62¢ —
(189,919 (238,479 (161,679

1,767,00 1,262,46! 1,416,52:

(1,813,66) (1,254,26) (1,680,62)
21,03¢ (63,63)) 21,31¢

(167,339 (71,150) —
19,28: 55,05: 82,03t
18,08: 10,76( 2,89t
(4,199 (2,159 —
(2,919 (2,857 (2,816

(210) (1,329 (9,617
(1,007) — —
(3,600 (1,339 (2,587
5,93( — —
(161,59) (68,44 (172,87))
142 (53¢) (131)
64,55: 7,668 1,602
12,84( 5,17¢ 3,57¢
77,39 $ 12,84C $ 5,17¢
5426 $ 10,55¢ $ 25,62¢
13,97: $ 1578: $ 12,20




Litigation settlement charges $ — 3 10,00¢ $ 75C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsents.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General

The Cooper Companies, Inc. (Cooper, we or the Cogj)pa a global medical device company publiclyd&d on the NYS
Euronext (NYSE:COO). Cooper is dedicated to beinQuality of Life Company" with a focus on delivering shareholder va
Cooper operates through our business units, Codgieriand CooperSurgical.

. CooperVision develops, manufactures and marketsadtrange of soft contact lenses for the worldwidén correctio
market.
. CooperSurgical develops, manufactures and markewical devices and procedure solutions to improgalthcar

delivery to women.
Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

Management estimates and judgments are an infegnadf financial statements prepared in accordanteaccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Ame(8AAP). We believe that the critical accounting ip@s described in th
section address the more significant estimatesinejwf management when preparing our consolidfitethcial statements
accordance with GAAP. We consider an accountingnase critical if changes in the estimate may haveaterial impact on o
financial condition or results of operations. Wdide that the accounting estimates employed aprogpiate and resulti
balances are reasonable; however, actual resultd ddfer from the original estimates, requirindj@stment to these balance:
future periods.

. Revenue recognition We recognize product net sales, net of discouetsyns, and rebates in accordance with re
accounting standards and SEC Staff Accounting BafleAs required by these standards, we recogeizenue when it
realized or realizable and earned, based on tefrsal® with the customer, where persuasive evideficgen agreeme
exists, delivery has occurred, the seller's pricdixed and determinable and collectability is ceegbly assured. F
contact lenses as well as CooperSurgical mediodte® diagnostic products and surgical instrumentd accessorie
this primarily occurs when title and risk of ownars transfers to our customers. We believe our magerecognitio
policies are appropriate in all circumstances, tad our policies are reflective of our customeaagements. We reco
based on historical statistics, estimated redustimnrevenue for customer incentive programs afféreluding cas
discounts, promotional and advertising allowanceslume discounts, contractual pricing allowanceshates ar
specifically established customer product retumgpams. The Company records taxes collected frastomers on a n
basis, as these taxes are not included in net sales

. Net realizable value of invento- In assessing the value of inventories, we makenastis and judgments regarding a
of inventories and other relevant issues potegtiaffecting the saleable condition of products astimated prices
which those products will sell. On an ongoing baais review the carrying value of our inventory,asering number
months on hand and other indications of salabiNi{e reduce the value of inventory if there are gatbns that tr
carrying value is greater than market, resulting inew, lowercost basis for that inventory. Subsequent changésci:
and circumstances do not result in the restoradioincrease in that newly established cost basisiléAéstimates a
involved, historically, obsolescence has not beagaificant factor due to long product dating dedgthy product lif
cycles.
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Valuation of goodwill We account for goodwill and evaluate our goodwéllamces and test them for impairment anni
during the fiscal third quarter and when an evertiues or circumstances change such that it is neddp possible th
impairment may exist in accordance with relatedoanting standards. We performed our annual impaitrtest in ou
fiscal third quarter of 2013, and our analysis datied that we had rimpairment of goodwill. We performed our anr
impairment test in our fiscal third quarter of 2Cdr&d concluded that we had no impairment of goddwthat year.

In fiscal 2013 and 2012, we performed gqualitatigsessments to test each reporting unit's gooduaiilliripairment
Qualitative factors considered in this assessmmettide industry and market considerations, ovdiradincial performanc
and other relevant events and factors affectindy eaporting unit. Based on our qualitative assesgniewe determin
that the fair value of a reporting unit is moreelik than not to be less than its carrying amourd, ttvostep impairmer
test will be performed.

The goodwill impairment test is a tvgtep process. Initially, we compare the book valfiaet assets to the fair value
each reporting unit that has goodwill assigned.ttf the fair value is determined to be less tham book value, a secc
step is performed to compute the amount of the imyznt. A reporting unit is the level of reportiatywhich goodwill i
tested for impairment. Our reporting units are shene as our business segments - CooperVision aope€surgical
reflecting the way that we manage our business.

Goodwill impairment analysis and measurement isoagss that requires significant judgment. If comeon stock pric
trades below book value per share, there are ceangaarket conditions or a future downturn in business, or a futu
annual goodwill impairment test indicates an impa&nt of our goodwill, the Company may have to reizg a noncast
impairment of its goodwill that could be materialhd couldadversely affect our results of operations in tleeiqo
recognized and also adversely affect our totaltasswckholders' equity and financial condition.

Business combinationsWe routinely consummate business combinations. [8estioperations for acquired compail
are included in our consolidated results of operatifrom the date of acquisition. We recognize ssply from goodwill
the identifiable assets acquired, including acguireprocess research and development, the liabilisssiraed, and a
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree generaliyttee acquisition date fair values as defined byoanting standart
related to fair value measurements. As of the adipn date, goodwill is measured as the excessos$ideration give
generally measured at fair value, and the net efaitguisition date fair values of the identifiabksets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Direct acquisition costs atpemsed as incurred.

Income taxes We account for income taxes under the asset abiitfamethod. Deferred tax assets and liabilitaee
recognized for the future tax consequences ataidetto differences between the financial stateroanting amounts
existing assets and liabilities and their respectax bases, and for tax losses and tax credyfoamards. Deferred t:
assets and liabilities are measured using enaakerhtes expected to apply to taxable income irydas in which thot
temporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax assetsiabdities of a change
tax rates is recognized in income in the period itthdudes the enactment date. In assessing thieakeiity of deferred ta
assets, management considers whether it is maly likan not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will n
be realized.

As part of the process of preparing our consolifldileancial statements, we must estimate our inctameexpense fi
each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Thiscess requires significant management judgmants involve
estimating our current tax exposures in each jintigh
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including the impact, if any, of additional taxessulting from tax examinations as well as judging tecoverability ¢
deferred tax assets. To the extent recovery ofrdefdax assets is not likely based on our estonatif future taxab
income in each jurisdiction, a valuation allowanseestablished. Tax exposures can involve compenes and m;
require an extended period to resolve. Frequemgg®in tax laws in each jurisdiction complicateufa estimates. 1
determine the tax rate, we are required to estifiuditgear income and the related income tax expensadh girisdictior
We update the estimated effective tax rate forefffiect of significant unusual items as they arenidied. Changes in tt
geographic mix or estimated level of annual faeeincome can affect the overall effective taxerand such changes cc
be material.

Regarding accounting for uncertainty in income $axee recognize the benefit from a tax positiory hit is more likely
than not that the position would be sustained upodit based solely on the technical merits of #pe gosition. W
measure the income tax benefits from the tax postithat are recognized, assess the timing of énecdgnition ¢
previously recognized tax benefits and classify disglose the liabilities within the consolidatédaincial statements f
any unrecognized tax benefits based on the guidiantte interpretation of related accounting guikafor income taxe
The interpretation also provides guidance on hosvitiberest and penalties related to tax positioay be recorded a
classified within our Consolidated Statement ofoime and presented in the Consolidated Balance SWéetclassif
interest and penalties related to uncertain taXipos as additional income tax expense.

Share-Based Compensation - The Company gramisugashardsased compensation awards, including stock op
performance unit shares, restricted stock andictsdr stock units. Under fair value recognition\pstons, shardsase:
compensation expense is measured at the granbaseel on the fair value of the award and is rezeghas expense o'
the vesting period. Determining the fair value bhiebased awards at the grant date requires judgmecitjding
estimating Cooper's stock price volatility, empleyxercise behaviors and related employee foréeitates.

The expected life of the share-based awards isdbaiseéhe observed and expected time to pesting forfeiture and/
exercise. Groups of employees that have similatotcsl exercise behavior are considered separdt@lyaluatior
purposes. In determining the expected volatilitgnagement considers implied volatility from pulylitdaded options ¢
the Company's stock at the date of grant, histbvigkatility and other factors. The ridkee interest rate is based on
continuous rates provided by the United StatessImgawith a term equal to the expected life of &neard. The divider
yield is based on the projected annual dividendrgay per share, divided by the stock price at #te df grant.

As sharebased compensation expense recognized in our Gdaitenl Statement of Income is based on awards atkiy
expected to vest, the amount of expense has bdane® for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures atareged at the time
grant, based on historical experience, and reviegcessary, in subsequent periods if actuakftunfes differ from thos
estimates.

If factors change and the Company employs diffe@sgumptions in the application of the fair val@eognitior
provisions, the compensation expense that it recorduture periods may differ significantly fromhet it has recorded
the current period.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal 2013, the Company adopted the proviswiSinancial Accounting Standards Board Accounfétgndards Update (AS
2011-05,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income . ASU 201105 requires entities to pres
net income and other comprehensive income in edrengle continuous statement or in two sepabatieconsecutive, stateme
of net income and other
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comprehensive income. The Company has electedegepr net income and other comprehensive incomsvorseparate b
consecutive statements. The adoption of ASU 201did5 ot have an impact on the Compangdnsolidated results of operatic
financial condition or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-@@nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income . ASU 201302 requires entities to present, either on the fdicke statement where
income is presented or as a separate disclosthe inotes, the effect on the respective line itefnset income for items requir
to be reclassified out of accumulated other congmelve income to net income in its entirety in aene reporting period. F
other amounts that are not required to be recladsif its entirety to net income in the same répgrperiod, an entity is requir
to crossreference to other required disclosures that peowadditional details about those amounts. The Casnplbes nc
anticipate that the adoption of this amendmentctviig effective for the Company for the fiscal yéaginning on November
2013, will have a material impact on our consokdatesults of operations, financial condition cstclows.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Iricome Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit when a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Smilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. ASU 201341 requires an unrecogni:
tax benefit to be presented in the financial stetesas a reduction to a deferred tax asset wheh@perating loss carryforwarc
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward éxisWhen a net operating loss carryforward, a sinx loss, or a tax cre
carryforward is not available, or the entity doed mtend to use the deferred tax asset for sucpose, the unrecognized
benefit should be presented in the financial statémas a liability and should not be combined wiigfierred tax assets. 1
Company does not anticipate the adoption of thesmndments, which are effective for the CompanytHerfiscal year beginnil
on November 1, 2014, will have a material impacbanconsolidated results of operations, financéaddition or cash flows.

Consolidation

The financial statements in this report include dleeounts of all of Cooper's consolidated entithds significant intercompar
transactions and balances are eliminated in cafegan.

Foreign Currency Translation

Most of our operations outside the United Statesthsir local currency as their functional currendie translate these assets
liabilities into United States dollars at yezme exchange rates. We translate income and expecsents at weighted aver:
rates for each year. We record gains and lossestfie translation of financial statements in fonedgirrencies into United Sta
dollars in other comprehensive income. We recordsgand losses from changes in exchange ratesosairtions denominatec
currencies other than each reporting location'stfanal currency in net income for each period. M&orded in other income a
foreign exchange gain of $0.1 million for fiscal1®) and net foreign exchange losses of $1.5 mill@nfiscal 2012 andb1.C
million for fiscal 2011.

Divested Operation

Aime Divestiture - On October 31, 2013, we completed a transactiosetb Aime, our rigid gapermeable contact lens ¢
solutions business in Japan, to Nippon Contact lleosThe business was originally obtained as pathe December 1, 20
acquisition which included obtaining the rightsnarket Biofinity in Japan. The divestiture is catent with CooperVisio’
strategy to focus on its core soft contact lengrimss.

The Aime divestiture was originally announced onyM8d, 2013 and met the criteria for classificataanheld for sale during t
fiscal fourth quarter of 2013. During the fourthagier of 2013, we completed several
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conditions to closing and facilitated the transfémanufacturing technology. We recorded a preltas of approximatel{$21.]
million in our Consolidated Statement of Income for fi@l 3. Results from operations of Aime are incluthedur Consolidate
Statements of Income for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 20id we have not segregated the results of opesationet assets of Aime
our financial statements for any period presenfdie disposition of the assets and liabilities omai did not qualify fc
classification as discontinued operations as Coadéipem shall maintain continuing involvement thrduga distributiol
arrangement with Aime for a minimum of three yedtse financial statement impact of the Aime proding was not material f
any of the fiscal years presented.

Financial Instruments

We may use derivatives to reduce market risks &gsocwith changes in foreign exchange and inten&sts. We do not u
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. Mééeve that the counterparties with which we eimé forward exchang
contracts and interest rate swap agreements anecfadly sound and that the credit risk of thesstraets is not significant.

We operate multiple foreign subsidiaries that maaotufre and/or sell our products worldwide. As alltegur earnings, cash flc
and financial position are exposed to foreign awyerisk from foreign currency denominated receigaland payables, sa
transactions, capital expenditures and net investrire certain foreign operations. Our policy is nanimize, to the exte
reasonable and practical, transaction, remeasutearah specified economic exposures with derivativesruments such

foreign exchange forward contracts and cross coyrewaps. The gains and losses on these derivaigemtended to at lei
partially offset the transaction gains and lossesgnized in earnings.

Exposures are reduced whenever possible by takimgnéage of offsetting payable and receivable le@srand netting net sa
against expenses, also referred to as natural Bedgemay employ the use of foreign currency dériganstruments to manag
portion of the remaining foreign exchange risk. @sk management objectives and the strategieadbieving those objectiv
depend on the type of exposure being hedged.

The Company is also exposed to risks associatddchidinges in interest rates, as the interest rataup credit agreements ve
To mitigate this risk, we may hedge portions of variable rate debt by swapping those portionsxedfrates. We only enter ir
derivative financial instruments with institutiongth which we have an International Swap Dealerso&gation (ISDA) agreeme
in place. When applicable, we record interest dedvatives as net on our Consolidated Balance tSheeccordance wi
derivative accounting. When we net or efftour interest rate derivative obligations, oty net asset or liability position will
credit affected. For the years ending October 8132and 2012, all of our interest rate derivatiwese in a liability position an
therefore, were not seff in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Since IS[gfeements are signed between the Company ani
respective financial institution, netting is pen®it on a per institution basis only. On an ongdiagis, the Company monit
counterparty credit ratings. We consider our creditperformance risk to be minimal because we awarddsykrse derivativ:
business between multiple commercial institutidrag have at least an investment grade credit rating

On March 10, 2011, the Company entered into fieatfhg-tofixed interest rate swaps to fix the floating raebt under ot
revolving Credit Agreement or any future creditilisacwhose variable debt is tied to the Londorelitank Offered Rate (LIBOF
These interest rate swaps with notional valuedingt£200.0 million, serve to fix the floating rate debt for remainitggm:
between 2 and 14 months with fixed rates betwe2r%.and 1.78% We qualified and designated these swaps as tas
hedges and recorded the offset of the cumulativerfarket value (net of tax effect) to accumulattider comprehensive incol
in our Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Effectiveness testing of the hedge relationshipraedsurement to quantify ineffectiveness is peréatat a minimum each fis
quarter using the hypothetical derivative methdae dutstanding swaps have been and are expectech&n highly effective fc
the life of the swap. Effective amounts are redfeskto interest expense as the related hedgeénmepis incurred. Th§l.7
million fair value of the outstanding swaps areoréed in our Consolidated Balance Sheet and additi@abilities of$0.3 millior
and $0.3 millionas of October 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, wezerded and attributable to accrued interest.elfeect t
reclassify $1.6 milliorfrom other comprehensive income to interest expémseir Consolidated Statements of Income ove
next 12 months and $70 thousand thereafter.

Litigation

We are subject to various claims, investigationd emntingencies arising out of the normal courseusiness. If we believe t
likelihood of an adverse legal outcome is probalnld the amount is estimable, we accrue a liabiligccordance with account
guidance for contingencies. We consult with legalrssel on matters related to litigation and seplatitboth within and outside t
Company with respect to matters in the ordinarysewf business.

Insurance Proceeds

On October 28, 2011, a manufacturing building i@ thnited Kingdom experienced an incident in whicpie broke in our fir
suppression system, causing water and fire retafdam damage to the facility. While this incidettl not substantially impe
our existing customers, the repairs to the facditgl resultant decrease in manufacturing capauipacted the timing of marketi
initiatives to generate additional sales. In Jan@&13, we resolved our business interruption chaith our insurer for a total
$19.1 million. We received payments of $Balllion in our fiscal fourth quarter of 2012. In ofiscal first quarter of 2013, v
recorded the remaining $14.1 million in our Cordated Statement of Income of which we received gaynof $2.9million
during the fiscal first quarter and the remainiid. £ million in the fiscal second quarter.

Long-lived Assets

The Company reviews longred assets held and used, intangible assets fimitte useful lives and assets held for sale
impairment whenever events or changes in circurne&amdicate that the carrying amount of an assst mot be recoverable.
an evaluation of recoverability is required, théneated undiscounted future cash flows associatiélul thve asset are comparet
the asset's carrying amount to determine if a vaiten is required. If the undiscounted cash flows laiss than the carryi
amount, an impairment loss is recorded to the éxkerh the carrying amount exceeds the fair vdfumanagement has commit
to a plan to dispose of lorliyed assets, the assets to be disposed of aretedpat the lower of carrying amount or fair vales:
estimated costs to sell.

The Company provides optometric practices witlfiiice lenses used in marketing programs to fat#itefficient and convenie
fitting of contact lenses by practitioners. Suahsléitting sets generally consist of a physicaldeinor rack to store contact len
and an array of lenses. We record the costs assdaidth the original fitting set to other lotigrm assets on our Consolide
Balance Sheet. We amortize such costs over thdéimaed useful lives to selling, general and adstiative expense on ¢
Consolidated Statements of Income. We also expbeseost for lenses provided to practitioners pkerashment for fitting sets
the period shipped to selling, general and admatise expense on our Consolidated Statementscofiie.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include skema income producing investments with maturityedadf three months or less. Tr
investments are readily convertible to cash anadaneed at cost, which approximates market value.

Inventories

October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Raw materials $ 79,33. % 75,50(

Work-in-process 10,51¢ 10,14

Finished goods 249,07: 234,55
$ 33891 % 320,19¢

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or eai®Rost is computed using standard cost that &pabes actual cost, on a first-
in, first-out basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Land and improvements $ 16,28: $ 10,16¢
Buildings and improvements 184,61t 192,15
Machinery and equipment 831,35t 766,88!
Construction in progress 208,32: 90,87¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation 500,70¢ 419,83:

$ 739,86° $ 640,25!

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costcvhpute depreciation using the straigig-method in amounts sufficient
write off depreciable assets over their estimataful lives. We amortize leasehold improvements twveir estimated useful liv
or the period of the related lease, whichever @teh. We depreciate buildings over 35 toy#@rs and machinery and equipn
over 3to 15 years.

We expense costs for maintenance and repairs gélczze major replacements, renewals and bettetsn&vie eliminate the cc
and accumulated depreciation of depreciable ass@ted or otherwise disposed of from the assetawulimulated depreciati
accounts and reflect any gains or losses in opasfor the period. We had capitalized intereduished in construction in progre
of $3.1 million and $2.5 million for the years edd@ctober 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Earnings Per Share
We determine basic earnings per share (EPS) by tisenweighted average number of shares outstandiiegdetermine dilute

EPS by increasing the weighted average numberafestoutstanding in the denominator by the numbeutstanding dilutiv
equity awards using the treasury stock method.
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Treasury Stock

The Company records treasury stock purchases tinel@ost method whereby the entire cost of theiemdjstock is recorded
treasury stock. At October 31, 2013 and 2012 ntimber of shares in treasury was 2,339,740 and® K0P, respectively. A toti
of 1,420,728 shares were purchased during thegreed October 31, 2013 , and 984,8R@res were purchased during the
ended October 31, 2012 . See Note 7 for additiofiatmation on the share repurchase program.

Note 2. Acquisitions
Origio Acquisition

On July 11, 2012, the acquisition date, we comglat@oluntary tender offer for the outstanding ekasf Origio a/s at a purchi
price of NOK 28 per share in cash and acquired ®7%he outstanding shares. As a result, the fdwesaf the consideratis
transferred for Origio was approximately $147.4lionl in cash, $143.6 milliomet of cash acquired. During our fiscal foi
quarter of 2012 and our fiscal first quarter of 20lve completed a mandatory redemption to obtagnrémaining shares
accordance with the Danish Companies Act.

Origio, based in Malov, Denmark, is a leading globavitro fertilization (IVF) medical device company ath develop:
manufactures and distributes highly specializeddpects that target IVF treatment with a goal to médwlity treatment safe
more efficient and convenient.

The acquisition was accounted for under the adipisimethod of accounting, and the related asseqsiiged and liabilitie
assumed were recorded at fair value. During treaffisecond quarter of 2013, we received the remgimformation necessary
complete the fair value measurements of assetsradgand liabilities assumed for fixed assets, medaxes and commitme
and contingencies resulting in a net increase twyidl of $12.4 million. While we closed the acquisition of shares on 1ul
2012, we accounted for the acquisition as of Julg0lL2, and have included the operating resul@rajio in our CooperSurgic
business segment from that date. The impact ofi@sigesults of operations for the period July12 through July 10, 2012
our CooperSurgical business segment results ofatipes was de minimis. Similarly, we have deterrditiegat any difference
the fair value of assets acquired and liabilitissuaned with respect to Origio between July 1, 284@ July 11, 2012 was
minimis.

We allocated the fair value of the purchase prcéoliows: $8.5 million for working capital, incliny $3.8 million of cash$22.
million for property, plant and equipment, $1.9 lrait for net other liabilities, $25.6 million foreh deferred tax liabilities$22.1
million for noncontrolling interests and $45.4 naili of debt. We repaid substantially all of the acadiidebt concurrent with tl
acquisition with available funds. Additionally, tladlocation of the purchase price includes amadoteantangible assets &1L07."
million and goodwill of $103.7 million . The intaifge assets include $82.1 millidor customer relationships (shelf space
market share) with an estimated useful life of &&rg ; $17.4 million for technology with an estiethtiseful life of 10 yearsanc
$8.2 million for trade names with estimated usdifigs of 17 years . We incurred $4.9 milliari acquisition costs that we
expensed in operations in fiscal 2012.

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the comatim transferred over the net assets recognineddrepresents the futt
economic benefits arising from the other assetsiiead) that could not be individually identified asdparately recognized. 1
goodwill recorded as part of the acquisition ofdj of which $13.1 millionis deductible for tax purposes, is ascribed tc
CooperSurgical business segment and is not amarilzes goodwill includes the following:

= The expected synergies and other benefits that elievied will result from combining the operationk @rigio with the
operations of CooperSurgical;
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= Any intangible assets that did not qualify for sgpe recognition, as well as future, yet unideatifprojects and products; ¢

= The value of the goingencern element of Origio's existing businesses lftgher rate of return on the assembled colleaf
net assets versus if CooperSurgical had acquited tile net assets separately).

Management assigned fair values to the identifiaigngible assets through a combination of theadiated cash flow, multi-
period excess earnings and relief from royalty mésh The valuation models were based on estimdtdature operatin
projections of the acquired business and rightetbproducts as well as judgments on the discoates used and other variab
We determined the forecasts based on a numbectoir$ancluding our best estimate of near-termsadgs expectations and long
term projections, which include review of intermald independent market analyses. The discounusatg was representative
the weighted average cost of capital.

In fiscal 2012, the year we acquired Origio, the fwrma results of operations were not presenteds®e the effects of t
business combination described above was not rabterbur consolidated results of operations.

Note 3. Intangible Assets

Goodwill

(In thousands) CooperVision CooperSurgical Total
Balance as of October 31, 2011 $ 1,046,58 $ 229,98( $ 1,276,56
Net additions during the year ended October 312201 26(C 95,34¢ 95,60¢
Translation (2,799 86¢ (1,92¢)
Balance as of October 31, 2012 $ 1,044,05 $ 326,19: $ 1,370,24
Net additions during the year ended October 313201 3,36: 11,01° 14,38(
Translation 1,061 1,92¢ 2,98¢
Balance as of October 31, 2013 $ 1,048,47 $ 339,130 % 1,387,61.

Of the October 31, 2013 goodwill balance, $75.0iamlfor CooperSurgical and $17.8 millidar CooperVision is expected to
deductible for tax purposes.

Other Intangible Assets

As of October 31, 2013 As of October 31, 2012
Weighted
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated Average
Carrying Amortization Carrying Amortization Amortization
(In thousands) Amount & Translation Amount & Translation Period
(In years)
Trademarks $ 1248. $ 2331 $ 11,25 $ 1,632 16
Technology 133,84 84,37: 128,39t 72,391 11
Shelf space and market share 199,37¢ 75,70( 192,56¢ 59,26¢ 14
License and distribution rights and other 24,94° 9,47 23,78 7,91¢ 16
370,64¢ $ 171,88( 356,000 $ 141,21° 13
Less accumulated amortization and translation 171,88( 141,21
Other intangible assets, net $ 198,76 $ 214,78:
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We estimate that amortization expense for our iegsither intangible assets will be $28.1 millionfiscal 2014, $21.6 milliom
fiscal 2015, $19.9 million in fiscal 2016, $19.6llion in fiscal 2017 and $17.7 million in fiscal 28.

Note 4. Debt

October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Short-term:

Overdraft and other credit facilities $ 42,987 $ 25,28«

Long-term:

Credit Agreement $ — $ 346,10(

Term Loan 300,00( —

Other 1,67C 2,322
$ 301,67 $ 348,42.

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of Octobkr 2013 , are as follows:

Year

(In thousands)

2014 $ —

2015 $ 404

2016 $ 4,20

2017 $ 15,40

2018 $ 281,20(

Thereafter $ 45¢

Credit Agreement

On May 31, 2012, Cooper entered into an amendnaeotit Credit Agreement, dated as of January 121 2@y and among tl
Company, CooperVision International Holding Compah#?, the lenders party thereto and KeyBank Natidxssociation, &
administrative agent. The Credit Agreement, as a@enprovides for a multicurrency revolving crefditility in an aggrega
commitment amount of $1.0 billioand the aggregate commitment amount under theviegofacility may be increased, ug
written request by Cooper, by $500.0 million . Emeended Credit Agreement has a termination datagf31, 2017 .

The commitment fee rate ranges between 0.100% 27&%of the unused portion of the revolving facility bdson a pricing gri
tied to our Total Leverage Ratio (as defined bedmd in the Credit Agreement). The applicable margtas on loans outstand
under the Credit Agreement will bear interest basédur option, on either the base rate or thestelfl Eurodollar rate (currer
referred to as LIBOR) or adjusted foreign currenate (each as defined in the amended Credit Agnegmaus an applicak
margin of between 0.00% and 0.75% in respect of bate loans and between 1.00% and 1.#b%spect of adjusted Eurodo
rate or adjusted foreign currency rate loans, ithe@ase in accordance with a pricing grid tied wo Botal Leverage Ratio,
defined in the Credit Agreement. In addition to #mual commitment fee, we are also required togeatain letter of credit a
related fronting fees and other administrative fmasuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement.
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The Credit Agreement is not secured by any of them@any's, or any of its subsidiariea§sets. All obligations under the Cr
Agreement will be guaranteed by each of our exgséind future direct and indirect material domestibsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement &edTerm Loan discussed below, we are also requaradaintain specifie
financial ratios:

. The ratio of Consolidated Proforma EBITDA to Comdaled Interest Expense (as defined, Interest @gecRatio) be
least 3.00 to 1.00 at all times.

. The ratio of Consolidated Funded Indebtedness ts@mated Proforma EBITDA (as defined, Total Leags Ratio) be r
higher than 3.75 to 1.00.

At October 31, 2013 , we were in compliance with iterest Coverage Ratio at 54.29 to 1.00 and ¢b&l Leverage Ratio &.6¢
to 1.00.

At October 31, 2013, we had $999.8 million avdaalnder the Credit Agreement.

In fiscal 2012, we recorded a $1.4 millimss for debt issuance costs as a result of amgnkeCredit Agreement. The remair
$6.0 million of existing debt issuance costs arapproximately $1.3 millioof costs incurred to amend the Credit Agreemer
carried in other assets and amortized to intesgstrese over the life of the Credit Agreement.

Term Loan

On September 12, 2013 , the Company entered ifilceayear, $300.0 million, senior unsecured term loan agreement (
Loan) by and among the Company; the lenders phdgeto and KeyBank National Association, as adrmatise agent. Th
syndicated credit facility will mature on Septemi@r 2018 , and will be subject to amortizatiompdhcipal of 5.0%per annur
payable quarterly beginning October 31, 2016 , Withbalance payable at maturity.

Amounts outstanding under the new Term Loan agraemid bear interest, at the Company's optiorgittter the base rate, wh
is a rate per annum equal to the greatest of (sBKek's prime rate , (b) 0.5% excess of the federal funds effective rate a)
1% in excess of the adjusted Eurodollar rate (ctiyreeferred to as LIBOR) for a omaenth interest period on such day, or
adjusted Eurodollar rate, plus, in each case, aticaple margin of, initially, 0% , in respect olde rate loans and 0.75%n
respect of adjusted Eurodollar rate loans. Follgwén specified period after the closing date, thpliegble margins will b
determined quarterly by reference to a grid bagexhuhe Company's ratio of funded debt to constditlgroforma EBITDA, ¢
defined in the Term Loan agreement, and consistihtthe revolving Credit Agreement discussed above

The Term Loan agreement contains customary ras&icovenants, as well as financial covenants tbatiire the Company
maintain a certain total leverage ratio and inteceserage ratio, as defined in the agreement,istems$ with the revolving Cre«
Agreement discussed above. The agreement alsoim®meiastomary events of default, the occurrencelo€h would permit th
Administrative Agent to declare the principal, acmt interest and other obligations of the Compamyeu the agreement to
immediately due and payable.

At October 31, 2013, we had $300.0 million outdtag under the Term Loan.
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European Credit Facility

The Company maintains a European credit facilityhiem form of a continuing and unconditional guayafithe aggregate facili
limit was $37.3 million and $35.8 million at Octot®l, 2013 and 2012 respectively. The Company will pay all forms
indebtedness in the currency in which it is denat@d for those certain subsidiaries. Interest expdn calculated on

outstanding balances based on an applicable bssdaraeach country plus a fixed spread common sacraost subsidiari
covered under the guaranty. At October 31, 201B3 &illion of the facility was utilized. The weighteal/erage interest rate
the outstanding balances was 1.5% .

In addition to this European credit facility, theor@pany has available a non-guaranteed Eameminated Italian overdr
facility. The facility limit was $0.5 million and®5 million at October 31, 2013 and 2012 , respebti At October 31, 2013
none of this facility was utilized.

Asian Pacific Credit Facilities

The Company maintained Yetenominated credit facilities in Japan supportectdaytinuing and unconditional guarantees.
aggregate facility limit was $73.9 million and $31million at October 31, 2013 and 20l2spectively. The Company will pay
forms of indebtedness in Yen upon demand. Intesegénse is calculated on the outstanding balansedban the base rate
TIBOR plus a fixed spread. At October 31, 2013 9.83nillion of the combined facilities was utilized. @tweighted avera
interest rate on the outstanding balances was 0.6%

The Company maintains credit facilities for certafrour Asia Pacific subsidiaries. Each facilitysispported by a continuing &
unconditional guaranty. The aggregate facility timias $12.2 million and $12.5 million at Octobdr 2013 and 2012
respectively. The Company will pay all forms of @idedness, for each facility, in the currency inolht is denominated for tho
certain subsidiaries. Interest expense is calalilateall outstanding balances based on an appdidade rate for each country |
a fixed spread common across all subsidiaries eovender each guaranty. At October 31, 2013 , gll®bn of the facility wa:
utilized. The weighted average interest rate orotitstanding balances was 5.7% .

Letters of Credit

The Company maintains letters of credit throughhetworld with various financial institutions thatimarily serve as guaran
notes on debt obligations. The aggregate outstgradimount of letters of credit at October 31, 20E3 %3.0 million.

Note 5. Income Taxes

Cooper's effective tax rate (ETR) (provision focame taxes divided by pretax income) for the figedr 2013 was 4.9%0ul
results include the fiscal year 2013 ETR, plus migcitems primarily the loss on divestiture of &inthe decrease in the Uni
Kingdom's tax rate and the reinstatement of therl®dR&D credit. The ETR used to record the prarisior income taxes for t
fiscal year 2012 was 9.7%The ETR is below the United States statutory estea majority of our income is earned in for
jurisdictions with lower tax rates reflecting thaifsin the geographic mix of income during receetiods with income earned
foreign jurisdictions increasing as compared tmine earned in the United States. As a result, dlie of domestic income
worldwide income, primarily within CooperVision alg with CooperSurgical's July 2012 acquisition oig®, has decreased o
recent fiscal periods. A reduction in the ratiadomestic income to worldwide income effectively &Ena the overall tax rate due
the fact that the tax rates in the majority of fgnejurisdictions where the Company operates ageifstantly lower than tr
statutory rate
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in the United States. The completion of the Comfsargstructuring plan to close a CooperVision maaiufring facility, located |
Norfolk, Virginia, with the manufacturing demandbsequently absorbed by our plants in the Unitedyém and Puerto Ri
contributed to this change in the geographic mixnebme. As a result of this restructuring, substdig all of CooperVision'
contact lens products are manufactured outsidesobhited States.

The components of income from continuing operatiogfore income taxes and extraordinary items aadribome tax provisic
related to income from all operations in our Coitlied Statements of Income consist of:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Income before income taxes:

United States $ 3891 $ 40,65( $ 5,44¢

Foreign 273,36( 234,80: 187,31!
$ 312,27 % 275,45, $ 192,76«

Income tax provision $ 15,36 $ 26,80¢ $ 17,33¢

The income tax provision (benefit) related to ineoftom continuing operations in our Consolidateat&nents of Income consi
of:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal $ 21,60 $ 17,86 $ 11,44¢
State 1,05z 1,40( 60€
Foreign 9,89t 14,35 9,70(
32,55! 33,61« 21,75«
Deferred:
Federal (8,05%) (3,579 (1,859
State (81%) (857) (270
Foreign (8,31%) (2,382 (2,29
(17,189 (6,80¢) (4,420
Income tax provision $ 15,36 $ 26,80¢( $ 17,33¢
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We reconcile the provision for income taxes attidlle to income from operations and the amount caetphby applying tt
statutory federal income tax rate of 35% to incdrefore income taxes as follows:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Computed expected provision for taxes $ 109,29¢ $ 96,40¢ $ 67,46¢
(Decrease) increase in taxes resulting from:
Income earned outside the United States subjalifferent tax rates (97,002 (71,287 (56,877
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 52t 294 21¢
Foreign source income subject to United States tax 294 — —
Research and development credit (2,06¢) (137) (1,187
Incentive stock option compensation and non-debigcémployee
compensation 371 347 (119
Tax accrual adjustment 2,85¢ 66E& 7,167
Other, net 1,094 507 66C
Actual provision for income taxes $ 15,36¢  $ 26,80t $ 17,33¢

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities are

October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable, principally due to allowanfarsdoubtful accounts $ 1,148 $ 1,07¢
Inventories 4,81z 4,91¢
Litigation settlements 184 19¢
Accrued liabilities, reserves and compensationusdsr 36,37 41,76(
Restricted stock 19,92t 19,39t
Net operating loss carryforwards 5,51« 3,56:
Plant and equipment 3,55¢ 3,99¢
Research and experimental expenses - Section 59(e) 5,31¢ 6,81¢
Tax credit carryforwards 11,09: 8,70(
Total gross deferred tax assets 87,92: 90,42(
Less valuation allowance (96¢) (1,107
Deferred tax assets 86,95 89,31
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax deductible goodwill (21,57 (19,039
Transaction cost (1,149 (1,149
Foreign deferred tax liabilities (10,179 (29,36%)
Other intangible assets (20,199 (24,549
Bonus adjustments under new accounting method (2,300 (2,600
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (54,399 (66,69¢)
Net deferred tax assets $ 32,56( $ 22,61

Current deferred tax liabilities of $20 thousandDatober 31, 2013 , and $0.3 million at October&112, are included in oth
accrued liabilities on the balance sheet.
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In assessing the realizability déferred tax assets, management considers whethenare likely than not that some portion o
of the deferred tax assets will not be realizece Thimate realization of deferred tax assets fgeddent upon the generatior
future taxable income during the periods in whibbse temporary differences become deductible. Managt considers t
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities j@cted future taxable income and tax planning egias in making this assessm
Based upon the level of historical taxable income projections for future taxable income over teeigas in which the deferr
tax assets are deductible, management believesnitore likely than not that the Company will realithe benefits of the
deductible differences, net of the existing valmatallowances at October 31, 2013he amount of the deferred tax as
considered realizable, however, could be reducatiénnear term if estimates of future taxable ineataring the carryforwa
period are reduced. During the year ended Octabe?@12, the Company recorded in purchase accaudgferred tax assets
connection with its acquisition of Origio a/s anbsidiaries. A valuation allowance of $1.1 millivas recorded in the process
Origio's capital loss arising from a building wrdewn expense related to its former headquartewgitot in Jyllig, Denmarl
During the fiscal third quarter of 2013, the Compagvalued its deferred tax assets and liabilitesssding in Denmark, along w
the related valuation allowance, to reflect the Iyesmacted tax rate change that incrementally deem the corporate tax rate.
a result, the valuation allowance was reduced 10 &illion .

The Company has not provided for federal income daxapproximately $1.4 billiof undistributed earnings of its fore
subsidiaries since the Company intends to reirthestimount outside the United States indefinitely.

At October 31, 2013 , the Company had federal petrating loss carryforwards of $2.8 milli@nd state net operating |
carryforwards of $33.9 million . The Company alsamdHederal net operating loss carryforwards of $dillion related to sha
option exercises as of October 31, 2013 . A taxebeand a credit to additional paid-capital for the excess deduction would
be recognized until such deduction reduces taxgahpa Additionally, the Company also had $6.6 ianilof federal alternativ
minimum tax credits, $4.0 million of federal resgarcredits and $0.5 milliomf California research credits. The federal
operating loss and federal research credits camyiimls expire on various dates between 2026 thr@@#3, and the feder
alternative minimum tax credits carry forward indé€ly . The state net operating loss carryforwards expirevarious datt
between 2019 through 2023 , and the Californiaarebecredits carry forward indefinitelyThe net operating loss and other
credits may be subject to certain limitations uptization under Section 382 of the Internal RaveiCode.

The Company adopted the provisions of the inteapicet of ASC 740-10-25-5 through 25-1Basic Recognition Threshold ,
formerly FIN 48, on November 1, 2007. As a resdltie adoption, the Company reduced its net ligbflor unrecognized t:
benefits (UTB), previously classified in currentéa payable, by $5.3 millionwhich was accounted for as an increase to rel
earnings. The interpretation also provides guidamtéow the interest and penalties related to tsitipns may be recorded ¢
classified within the Consolidated Statement ofome and presented in the Consolidated Balance SWéaetclassify intere
expense and penalties related to uncertain taxi@osias additional income tax expense.
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The aggregated changes in the balance of grossagniged tax benefits were as follows:

(In millions)

Balance at October 31, 2011 $ 27.L
(Decrease) from prior year's UTB's (2.0
Increase from current year's UTB's 4.€
UTB (decrease) from tax authorities' settlements (0.9
UTB (decrease) from expiration of statute of liigas (2.0
Increase of unrecorded UTB's —

Balance at October 31, 2012 28.1

(Decrease) from prior year's UTB's (1.3
Increase from current year's UTB's 6.4

UTB (decrease) from tax authorities' settlements —

UTB (decrease) from expiration of statute of limdas (6.9
Increase of unrecorded UTB's —

Balance at October 31, 2013 $ 26.4

As of October 31, 2013the Company had unrecognized tax benefits, thagcbgnized, would affect our effective tax ravé
$28.8 million , including $2.6 milliof related accrued interest and penalties. ltés@Gbmpany's policy to recognize interest
penalties directly related to incomes taxes astiathdil income tax expense.

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemefitOctober 31, 2013 , is $3.6 millioelated to tax positions for which it
reasonably possible that the total amounts cogdifsGantly change during the next twelve monthkisTamount represent:

decrease in unrecognized tax benefits related pirieg statutes in various jurisdictions worldwidad is comprised of trans
pricing and other items.

The Company is required to file income tax retumghe United States federal jurisdiction, vari@tate and local jurisdictior
and many foreign jurisdictions.

As of October 31, 2013the tax years for which the Company remains stilbpeUnited States federal income tax assessnemr
examination are 2010 through 2012. The Company irergubject to income tax examinations in otheramé&x jurisdiction
including the United Kingdom, Japan, France andtralia for the tax years 2009 through 2012.
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Note 6. Earnings Per Share

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011

Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 296,15. $ 248,33¢ % 175,43(
Basic:

Weighted average common shares 48,61°¢ 47,91 46,90«
Basic earnings per share attributable to Coopekbktiders $ 6.0¢ $ 51¢ $ 3.74
Diluted:

Weighted average common shares 48,61¢ 47,91 46,90«
Effect of dilutive stock options 1,07(C 1,23¢ 1,40¢
Diluted weighted average common shares 49,68¢ 49,15: 48,30¢
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Coofmkfolders $ 59€¢ $ 5.0t $ 3.6:

The following table sets forth stock options toghase Coopes’ common stock that were not included in the diligarnings pt
share calculation because their effect would haenlantidilutive for the periods presented:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except exercise prices) 2013 2012 2011
Numbers of stock option shares excluded — 24 631
Range of exercise prices — $80.51-B7.22 $68.66-80.5]

Note 7. Stockholders’ Equity

Analysis of changes in accumulated other compreheins income (loss):

Unrealized
Foreign Currency Gain (Loss) on Change in Value Minimum
Translation Marketable of Derivative Pension

(In thousands) Adjustment Securities Instruments Liability Total
Balance at October 31, 2010 $ (8,359 $ — % 97z $ (9,949 $ (17,339
Gross change in value for the period 5,817 14 (6,227) (4,610 (5,006€)
Reclassification adjustments for losses realize

income — — 1,122 — 1,122
Tax effect for the period — ) 1,307 1,80¢ 3,10¢
Balance at October 31, 2011 $ (2,547 $ 9 $ (2,82¢) $ (12,759 $ (18,110
Gross change in value for the period $ (4,659 $ 61 $ (1,420 $ (14,750 $ (20,76))
Reclassification adjustments for losses realize

income — — 2,161 — 2,161
Tax effect for the period — (20 (289) 5,76¢ 5,45k
Balance at October 31, 2012 $ (7,199 $ 5 $ (2,379 $ (21,73) $ (31,26)
Gross change in value for the period $ 2,607 $ — % 2,19¢ $ 19,00 $ 23,80¢
Reclassification adjustments for gain realized i

income — (77) — — (77)
Tax effect for the period — 27 (857) (7,399 (8,229)
Balance at October 31, 2013 $ (459) $ — $ (1,03) $ (1013) $ (15,76)
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Share Repurchases

On December 15, 2011, we announced that the Cortppd@oard of Directors authorized the 2012 Share Riyaise Progra
(Program) to repurchase up to $150.0 million of @@mpanys common stock and on December 5, 2012 the Progras
amended to authorize the repurchase of $300.0omitf the Company's common stock. With the amendmibet, Prograr
expiration date was changed to indefinite from Daoer 31, 2012, and may be discontinued at any tiPoechases under f
Program are subject to a review of the circumstaniceplace at the time and will be made from tiradime as permitted |
securities laws and other legal requirements.

Through the twelve months ended October 31, 20h& Company repurchased 1.42 million shares ofCitvapanys commo
stock for $167.3 million and approximately $61.3liom remained authorized for repurchase undetagram. During théhree
months ended October 31, 2013 , the Company repsech960 thousand shares of the Company's comrook fetr $123.(
million , at an average purchase price of $128.66 ghare. For the three months ended January 383 2€he Compar
repurchased 460 thousand shares of the Companyimon stock for $44.4 million at an average purchasee of $96.34oel
share.

During the twelve months ended October 31, 20h2 Gompany repurchased 984 thousand shares obomumaen stock fof571.z
million . During the three months ended July 31120the Company repurchased 321 thousdnades of the Company's comr
stock for $25.0 million , at an average purchaseepof $77.89 per share. During the three montlteerlanuary 31, 2012the
Company repurchased 663 thousand shares for $4idnmat an average purchase price of $6960share. The Company
not repurchase shares during the three -monthgseended April 30, 2013, July 31, 2013, April 3012 and October 31, 2012.

Cash Dividends

In fiscal 2013 and 2012, we paid semiannual divildeof 3 cents per share: an aggregate of approadyndi.4 million or3 cent:
per share on February 7, 2013, to stockholdersadrd on January 25, 2013 ; $1.5 million or 3 ceetsshare on August 6, 20
to stockholders of record on July 24, 2013 ; $1lilion or 3 centsper share on February 7, 2012, to stockholdergaird ol
January 25, 2012 ; $1.4 million or 3 cents perealoar August 6, 2012, to stockholders of recorduiyn 24, 2012 .

Stockholders' Rights Plan

Under our stockholders' rights plan, each outstapdhare of our common stock carries one-bbtine preferred share purch
right (Right). The Rights will become exercisabldyounder certain circumstances involving acquositof beneficial ownership
20% or more of our common stock by a person or groupq(#ing Person) without the prior consent of Catp®oard c
Directors. If a person or group becomes an Acqgifferson, each Right would then entitle the ho{dérer than an Acquirir
Person) to purchase, for the then purchase priteeoRight (currently $450subject to adjustment), shares of Cooper's cor
stock, or shares of common stock of any personwitith we are thereafter merged or to which 5@%more of our assets
earning power is sold, with a market value of twibe purchase price. The Rights will expire in ®eto2017 unless earl
exercised or redeemed. The Board of Directors radgem the Rights for $0.Qir Right prior to any person or group becor
an Acquiring Person.
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Note 8. Stock Plans
At October 31, 2013 , Cooper had the following sHaased compensation plans:
2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Diretors (2006 Directors Plan)

In March 2006, the Company received stockholder@amd of the 2006 Directors Plan, and it was amenig the Board ¢
Directors in March 2007, October 2007, October 2668 December 2008. The Company received stockhajggroval of a
amendment and restatement of the 2006 Directors iRldMarch 2009 and the Board of Directors amentthed Amended ar
Restated 2006 Directors Plan in October 2009 anwbh@c 2010. The Company received stockholder apbro¥ a furthe
amendment and restatement of the 2006 DirectorsiRI&arch 2011 and the Board of Directors amerttiedSecond Amend
and Restated 2006 Directors Plan in October 20ti10atober 2012.

The Second Amended and Restated 2006 Directors &aamended, authorizes either Cooper's Boardrettiors or a designat
committee thereof composed of two or more Non-EngsoDirectors to grant to Ndémployee Directors during the per
ending March 21, 2019 , equity awards for up t0,980shares of common stock, subject to adjustmentufturé stock split
stock dividends, expirations, forfeitures and sémévents.

As amended, the Second Amended and Restated 2086tds Plan provides for annual grants of stodkoop and restricte
stock to Non-Employee Directors on November 1 amyeshber 15 , respectively, of each fiscal year.cBigally, each Non-
Employee Director may be awarded on each Noventbénelright to purchase for $0.p@r share, a number of shares of restr
stock with a total value of $135,000 or $148,00thia case of the NoBxecutive Chairman of the Board on the date of tyrEime
restrictions on the restricted stock will lapsetioa first anniversary of the date of grant . Eacmfmployee Director may also
awarded on each November 1, a grant of optionsitchase common stock with an approximate accountihge of $135,000or
in the case of the Lead Director and/or any norcetee Chairman of the Board, as the case may ftfs] 48,500 . Theseption:
vest on the first anniversary of the date of gra@ptions expire no more than 10 yeafter the grant date. In December 2008
2006 Directors' Plan was also amended to alloweligmnary granting of stock options and/or resgacstock with similar terms
the annual grant other than the specific shareinmments. As of October 31, 2013, 246,%t&res remained available undet
2006 Directors' Plan for future grants.

2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2007 LTIP)

In March 2007, the Company received stockholder@a@p of the 2007 LTIP and in October 2007, the doaf Director:
amended the 2007 LTIP. In March 2009, the Compangived stockholder approval of an amendment astdteament of the 20
LTIP and in March 2011, the Company received stolddr approval of a further amendment and restateéofehe 2007 LTIP.

The Second Amended and Restated 2007 LTIP is dmsigmincrease Cooper's stockholder value by &tiggcretaining an
motivating key employees and consultants who direafluence our profitability. The Second Amendaad Restated 2007 LT
authorizes either Cooper's Board of Directors, adegignhated committee thereof composed of two orentdonEmploye:
Directors, to grant to eligible individuals durinige period ending December 31, 2017, up to 5,280db@res in the form
specified equity awards including stock optiontrieted stock unit and performance share awardgestito adjustment for futu
stock splits, stock dividends, expirations, fordedts and similar events.
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During fiscal 2013, the Company granted stock a@tjoestricted stock units (RSUs) and performaheeesawards to employe
under the Second Amended and Restated 2007 LTiRtyEmvards are granted at 10@¥ofair market value on the date of gi
and expire no more than 10 yeafter the grant date. Stock options may becomecesedrle based on our common stock achie
certain price targets, specified time periods etap®r other criteria designated by the Board ofebtiors or its authoriz
committee at their discretion. RSUs are nontraablerawards entitling the recipient to receive ebaf common stock, withc
any payment in cash or property, in one or mortailments at a future date or dates as determigdgddeoBoard of Directors or
authorized committee. For RSUs, legal ownershiphef shares is not transferred to the employee thwilunit vests, which
generally over a specified time period. Performasitare awards are nontransferable awards entiti@gecipient to receive
variable number of shares of common stock, witlemyt payment in cash or property, in one or mortlimsents at a future de
or dates as determined by the Board of Directorss@uthorized committee. Legal ownership of tharss is not transferred to
recipient until the award vests, and the numbeshafres distributed is dependent upon the achieveafierertain performan
targets over a specified period of time. As of @eto31, 2013 , 1,609,3Zhares remained available under the Second Am
and Restated 2007 LTIP for future grants. The armaidfinavailable shares includes shares which maydib&ibuted unde
performance share awards.

Share-Based Compensation

The compensation cost and related tax benefit rézed in the Company's consolidated financial statgs for sharbase:
awards were as follows:

October 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Selling, general and administrative expense $ 25.2 $ 192 $ 12.¢
Cost of sales 1.¢ 1.3 0.€
Research and development expense 1.2 1.C 0.7
Capitalized in inventory 1.6 1.2 0.&
Total compensation expense $ 30.£ % 22.& % 14.%
Related income tax benefit $ 8¢ $ 7C % 4.4

Cash received from exercises under all stased payment arrangements for the fiscal yearsde@dtober 31, 2013, 2012 :
2011 was approximately $19.3 million , $55.1 miiliand $82.0 million , respectively.

Details regarding the valuation and accountingsfare-based awards follow.
Stock Options

The fair value of each stock option award grangeestimated on the date of grant using the Bahkeles option valuation moi
and assumptions noted in the following table. Tkgeeted life of the awards is based on the obseanedexpected time to post:
vesting forfeiture and/or exercise. Groups of emppds that have similar historical exercise behaaterconsidered separately
valuation purposes. In determining the expectedtility, management considers implied volatilitprin publiclytraded options ¢
the Company's stock at the date of grant, histovigiatility and other factors. The ridkee interest rate is based on the contin
rates provided by the United States Treasury wittria equal to the expected life of the option. @ihedend yield is based on
projected annual dividend payment per share, divimlethe stock price at the date of grant.
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Years Ended October 31, 2013 2012 2011
Expected life 4.7 -5.5 year 4.3 -5.7 year 4.5 -5.7 year
Expected volatility 34.8% -35.9% 39.5% -43.8% 40.2% -41.3%
Risk-free interest rate 0.63% -0.78% 0.69% -1.08% 1.01% -1.41%
Dividend yield 0.0€% 0.0% 0.12%

The status of the Company's stock option planscattier 31, 2013 , is summarized below:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Number of Exercise Price Term Aggregate
Shares Per Share (in years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at October 31, 2012 2,293,700 $ 45.2¢
Granted 224,28t % 96.2¢
Exercised 808,16 $ 39.6¢
Forfeited or expired 1,15 % 43.9¢
Outstanding at October 31, 2013 1,708,67' $ 54.5¢ 5.35
Vested and exercisable at October 31, 2013 1,108,100 ¢ 49.1( 410 $ 88,818,08

The weighted-average fair value of each option tgchaluring fiscal 2013, estimated as of the grate dising the Blackschole
option pricing model, for the 2007 LTIP was $31.5lhe weightedaverage fair value of each option granted duriegafi 201z
estimated as of the grant date using the Black{8shaption pricing model, for the 2007 LTIP was &bk For the 2006 Directo
Plan, the weighted-average fair values of optiorstgd for fiscal 2013 and 2012 were $32.20 and285respectively. TF
expected requisite service period for options gartb employees in fiscal 2013 was 60 montfide total intrinsic value
options exercised during the year ended Octobe2@®l3 was $55.8 million .

Stock awards outstanding under the Company's duptans have been granted at prices which areredtipeal to or above t
market value of the common stock on the date aftgfaptions granted under the 2007 LTIP generadist wver three and ornet
to five years based on market and service conditaord expire no later than tgears after the grant date. Options granted t
the 2006 Directors Plan generally vest in one yeaupon achievement of a market condition and expo later than tegear:
after the grant date. The Company generally reezegncompensation expense ratably over the vesérgd Directors' optior
and restricted stock grants are expensed on the alagrant as the 2006 Directors Plan does notadore substantive futu
requisite service period. As of October 31, 201®&ré was $9.0 milliorof total unrecognized compensation cost relate
nonvested options, which is expected to be recegnizer a remaining weighted-average vesting perid@ll years.

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs granted under the 2007 LTIP have been grattpdces which are either equal to or above theketavalue of the stock «
the date of grant and generally vest over fouive years. The fair value of restricted stock unitesimated on the date of gr
based on the market price of our common stock. Gtmpany recognizes compensation expense ratabtytloeevesting perio
As of October 31, 2013, there was $36.7 milliortathl unrecognized compensation cost related tovested RSUs, which
expected to be recognized over a remaining weighiwedage vesting period of 3.1 years.
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The status of the Company's non-vested RSUs ab@rc81, 2013, is summarized below:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Grant Date Fair
Shares Value Per Share
Non-vested RSUs at October 31, 2012 653,11¢ $ 56.4¢
Granted 253,84 $ 96.9:
Vested and issued 218,90: $ 51.72
Forfeited or expired 40,877 $ 65.9¢
Non-vested RSUs at October 31, 2013 647,18! ¢ 73.3¢

Performance Units

Performance units are granted to selected exesudive other key employees with vesting contingponuneeting future report
earnings per share goals over a defined performayae, usually three year®erformance units, if earned, may be paid in cg
shares of common stock. The performance sharesllctarned will range from zero to 15086 the target number
performance shares for performance periods endifigaal 2013 through fiscal 2015. Subject to laditexceptions set forth in
performance share plan, any shares earned willidsigbdited in the immediate subsequent fiscal peafter the performan
period. The fair value of performance unit awarsiestimated on the date of grant based on thentumarket price of ol
common stock and the estimate of probability of rachievement. This estimate is reviewed eaclalfigeriod and adjustmel
are recorded prospectively if it is determined thatestimate of probability of award achievemeast thanged.

The Company recognizes compensation expense ratabiythe vesting period. As of October 31, 20h8re was $9.8 millionf
total unrecognized compensation cost related tevested performance units, which is expected teebegnized over a remaini
weighted-average vesting period of 1.7 years.

Performance units granted on December 13, 201@deast October 31, 2013 and met 150%the target and, subject to

provisions of the plan, the Company expects to dvi@6,787shares of common stock in fiscal 2014. The Compasy grante
performance unit awards on December 14, 2011 awdrbier 12, 2012 with specific performance goale#mh period ending

October 31, 2014 and October 31, 2015, respectively
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Note 9. Employee Benefits
Cooper's Retirement Income Plan

Cooper's Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a definedefit plan, covers substantially all ftilne United States employe
Cooper's contributions are designed to fund nowoat on a current basis and to fund the estimated gervice cost of bene
improvements. The unit credit actuarial cost metisodsed to determine the annual cost. Cooper thegyentire cost of the Pl
and funds such costs as they accrue. Virtuallpfalhe assets of the Plan are comprised of equatigsparticipation in equity a
fixed income funds.

The following table sets forth the Plan's benefiigations and fair value of the Plan assets ab@mt31, 2013 and the funde
status of the Plan and net periodic pension costséch of the years in the three-year period euttdber 31, 2013 .

Retirement Income Plan

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 88600 $ 64,98¢ $ 54,75
Service cost 7,38 4,93’ 4,74¢
Interest cost 3,281 3,05: 2,97:
Benefits paid (3,509) (1,309) (1,440)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (11,609 16,93¢ 3,95¢
Benefit obligation, end of year $ 84,16( $ 88607 $  64,98¢
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 47427 $ 39,09¢ $ 33,44«
Actual return on plan assets 9,08: 4,417 1,47¢
Employer contributions 6,23¢ 5,22¢ 5,62(
Benefits paid (3,50¢) (1,30¢) (1,440
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 5923 $ 47,427 $  39,09¢
Funded status at end of year $ (24929 § (41,180 $ (25,89)

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial psition consist of:

Noncurrent asset $ — 3 — $ —
Current liability — — —
Noncurrent liabilities (24,929 (41,180) (25,89))

Net amount recognized at year end $ (24929 $ (41,180 $ (25,89)
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Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

2013

2012

2011

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehengt income consist of:
Net transition obligation

Prior service cost

Net loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Information for pension plans with accumulated benét obligations in excess of
plan assets

Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) pension cost
Accrued pension cost at prior fiscal year end
Net periodic benefit cost

Contributions made during the year

Accrued pension cost at fiscal year end

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost and othemaounts recognized in other
comprehensive income

Net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of transitional (asset) or obligati
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized actuarial loss

Net periodic pension cost

$ — % — % 2C

28 53 77

16,01 34,95 20,13

$ 1604 $ 3501 $ 20,23
2013 2012 2011

$ 8416( $ 88607 $ 64,08

$ 7364. $ T7759% $ 57,38

$ 5923 $ 47,42, $  39,09¢
2013 2012 2011

$ (6170 $ (5660 $ (5,706

8,941 5,73¢ 5,571

6,23¢ 5,22¢ 5,62(

$ (888) $ (6170 $ (5,660
2013 2012 2011

$ 738 $ 4931 $  4,74¢

3,281 3,05: 2,97:

(3,939) (3,424) (2,944)

— 20 21

24 24 24

2,18¢ 1,12¢ 752

$ 8947 $ 573 $ 557
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Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatisnrecognized in othe
comprehensive income

Net transition obligation $ — 3 — 3 —
Prior service cost — — —
Net (gain) loss (16,760 15,95( 5,42¢
Amortizations of net transition obligation — (22) (22)
Amortizations of prior service cost (24) (24) (24)
Amortizations of net gain (2,18¢) (1,12¢) (752)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ (18,970 $ 14,77¢  $ 4,62¢

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost atiteocomprehensive income  $  (10,02) § 20,51 § 10,20

The estimated net loss, net transition obligatios arior service cost for the plan that will be atized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit owst the next fiscal year are $618,000 , $0 arJ2RB , respectively.

Years Ended October 31, 2013 2012 2011

Weighted-average assumptions used in computing timet periodic pension
cost and projected benefit obligation at year end:

Discount rate for determining net periodic pengioat 3.75% 4.7%% 5.5(%
Discount rate for determining benefit obligationyear end 4.7%% 3.75% 4.7%%
Rate of compensation increase for determining esg@en 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0%
Rate of compensation increase for determining lieoigligations at year end 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(%
Expected rate of return on plan assets for detemgpimet periodic pension cost 8.0(% 8.5(% 8.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan assets at year end 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.5(%

Measurement date for determining assets and bedififations at year end 10/31/201. 10/31/201. 10/31/201.

The discount rate enables us to state expectecefoaish flows at a present value on the measurethaéat The discount rate u:
for the plan is based primarily on the yields afraverse of high quality corporate bonds or thet spte of high quality AAratec
corporate bonds, with durations corresponding éekpected durations of the benefit obligationchange in the discount r.
will cause the present value of benefit obligatimshange in the opposite direction. If a discaaité of 3.75% which is simila
to prior fiscal year, had been used, the projebukfit obligation would have been $99.9 millipand the accumulated ben
obligation would have been $86.4 million .

The expected rate of return on plan assets wasntietx based on a review of historical returnshbfotr this plan and fi
medium- to largesized defined benefit pension funds with similasetsallocations. This review generated separateacbq
returns for each asset class listed below. Thepeotxd future returns were then blended based isnPlan's target as:
allocation.
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Plan Assets

Weighted-average asset allocations at year ends$st category are as follows:

Years Ended October 31, 2013 2012 2011
Asset category

Cash and cash equivalents 5.2% 3.(% 2.1%
Corporate common stock 14.€% 16.5% 19.(%
Equity mutual funds 47.5% 43.2% 41.1%
Real estate funds 3.8% 5.2% 5.6%
Bond mutual funds 28.8% 32.1% 32.2%
Total 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

The Plan invests in a diversified portfolio of @éssatended to minimize risk of poor returns whit@ximizing expected portfol
returns. To achieve the lorigrm rate of return, plan assets will be invested mixture of instruments, including but not liet
to, corporate common stock (may include the Comigasipck), investment grade bond funds, cash, bethfunds, real est:
funds, small or large cap equity funds and intéonal equity funds. The allocation of assets wdldetermined by the investm
manager, and will typically include 50% to 808quities with the remainder invested in fixed ineoand cash. Presently, f
diversified portfolio is expected to return rouglly%in the long run. Effective November 1, 2012, thpented rate of return
assets was reduced from 8.5% to 8.0% .

Fair Value Measurement of Plan Assets

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

(In thousands) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Asset category
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,112 $ 3,11 % — 3 —
Corporate common stock 8,67( 8,67( — —
Equity mutual funds 28,16: 28,16: — —
Real estate funds 2,267 2,267 — —
Bond mutual funds 17,02« 17,02« — —
Total $ 59,23t $ 59,23t $ — 9 =

The Plan has an established process for determihenair value of plan assets. Fair value is bagezh quoted market prices,
Level 1 inputs, where available. For our investraéntequity and bond mutual funds, and real edtatds, fair value is based
observable, Level 1 inputs, as price quotes ardélada and the fair values of these funds were ingtacted by liquidit
restrictions or the fund status. Level 2 assetstlamee where price quotes are not readily availabkk the fair value would

determined based on other observable inputs. L3askets are those where price quotes are nolyreadilable and the fair val
would be determined based on unobservable inputs.

While the Company believes its valuation methods appropriate and consistent with other marketigyaaints, the use

different methodologies or assumptions to deterntiree fair value of certain financial instrumentsulcbresult in a differel
estimate of fair value at the reporting date.
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Cash Flows

Contributions

The Company contributions to the pension plan & million , $5.2 million and $5.6 milliofor fiscal 2013, 2012 and 20:
respectively. The Company closely monitors the &ghdtatus of the Plan with respect to legislatind accounting rules. T

Company is expected to make contributions of aB8u& million during fiscal 2014.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Years

(In thousands)

2014 $ 2,01¢
2015 $ 2,34¢
2016 $ 2,74¢
2017 $ 3,14:
2018 $ 3,491
2019 - 2023 $ 24,58’

Cooper's 401(k) Savings Plan

Cooper's 401(k) savings plan provides for the dafef compensation as described in the InternakeRee Code and is availa
to substantially all United States employees. Eygds who participate in the 401(k) plan may eledbdve up to 75%f theil
pretax salary or wages deferred and contributed totiih&t established under the plan. Cooper's caritoibs on account

participating employees, net of forfeiture creditgre $3.4 million , $2.9 million and $2.4 millidar the years ended October
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

International Pension Plans

For our employees outside the United States, we @dsticipate in country-specific defined contribat plans and government-
sponsored retirement plans. The defined contribuptans are administered by thpdsty trustees and we are not dire
responsible for providing benefits to participaotggovernment-sponsored plans. The Compamgntributions to such plans
not significant individually or in the aggregate.

Note 10. Fair Value Measurements

As of October 31, 2013 and October 31, 2Q01Re carrying value of cash and cash equivaleadspunts receivable, prep
expenses and other current assets, lines of cemibunts payable and other current liabilitiesragmate fair value due to t
short-term nature of such instruments and thetglbdiobtain financing on similar terms.

Assets and liabilities are measured and reportéairatalue per related accounting standards thfibe fair value as the price tl
would be received to sell an asset or paid to tears liability in an orderly transaction betweeranket participants at t
measurement date. The fair value hierarchy praastithe inputs to valuation techniques used to mnedair value. An asset’ol
liability’ s level is based on the lowest level of input thatignificant to the fair value measurement. Assetd liabilities carried
fair value are valued and disclosed in one of thiewing three levels of the valuation hierarchy:
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Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobsésvinputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting the repaytentity’s own assumptions.

The Company has derivative assets and liabilite¢ include interest rate swaps, cross currencypsvead foreign curren
forward contracts. The impact of the counterpargreditworthiness when in an asset position anap€ocs creditworthiness wh
in a liability position has also been factored ithe fair value measurement of the derivative imaents. Both the counterpe
and Cooper are expected to continue to performruhdecontractual terms of the instruments.

We may use interest rate swaps to maintain ouretesnix of fixed-rate and variablate debt. The swaps exchange fixed
variable rate payments without exchanging the nafigrincipal amount of the debt. We have electedse the income appros
to value the derivatives using observable Levela2ket expectations at the measurement date andbsthwaluation techniques
convert future amounts to a single present amassuraing that participants are motivated but notpeihad to transact. Leve
inputs are limited to quoted prices for similareissor liabilities in active markets, specificallyirodollar futures contracts up
three years, and inputs other than quoted pricsaite observable for the asset or liabilitypecifically LIBOR cash and sw
rates and credit risk at commonly quoted intervdisl-market pricing is used as a practical expedientsioivalue measuremen

We may use foreignh exchange forward contracts tomize, to the extent reasonable and practical.e@posure to the impact
foreign currency fluctuations. We have electedde the income approach to value the derivativegusioservable Level 2 marl
expectations at the measurement date and standardtion techniques to convert future amounts ®ngle present amot
assuming that participants are motivated but notpmilled to transact. Level 2 inputs for the valmagi are limited to quoted pric
for similar assets or liabilities in active marketsd inputs other than quoted prices that are whbky for the asset or liability -
specifically LIBOR cash rates, credit risk at conmiyoquoted intervals, foreign exchange spot rated farward points. Mid-
market pricing is used as a practical expedientamvalue measurements.

The following table sets forth Coopstfinancial assets and liabilities that were meadat fair value on a recurring basis u
Level 2 inputs during the fiscal years 2013 and220&ithin the fair value hierarchy at October 31 :

(In millions) 2013 2012

Assets:

Foreign exchange contracts $ 0.2 % 0.2

Liabilities:

Interest rate swaps $ 17 $ 3.€

Foreign exchange contracts 0.€ 0.2
$ 23 % 4.1

We recorded contingent consideration representiegestimated fair value of the additional variatdsh consideration paya
related to an acquisition in our fiscal first qearbf 2013. We recorded the fair value of the asitjonrelated continge
consideration as liabilities on the acquisitionedasing the discounted cash flow approach. Coopes unobservable Leve
inputs including a forecast of new customer accowrid discount rates to fair value the liabiliti€gnificant increases
decreases in these unobservable inputs in isolatmud result in a significantly lower or higherirfaralue measurement.
October 31, 2013, the fair value of the contingamtsideration payable totaled $2.6 million.
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

Total minimum annual rental obligations under nawedable operating leases (substantially all reap@rty or equipment)
force at October 31, 2013, were payable as follows

(In thousands)

2014 $ 20,78:
2015 17,02«
2016 13,79:
2017 11,99¢
2018 11,19:
2019 and thereafter 44,24

Aggregate rental expense for both cancelable amdamzelable contracts amounted to $22.8 millio83.2 million and$31.7
million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

On November 28, 2011, Harold Greenberg filed a dampin the United States District Court for theorithern District ©
California, Case No. 4:11-cv-056¥%GR, against the following defendants: the CompdRgbert S. Weiss, its President, C
Executive Officer and a director; Eugene J. Midloitk former Senior Vice President and Chief Finain©fficer; and Albert C
White, Ill, its Vice President and Chief Strategifi€er. On December 12, 2011, a second individRalss Wallen, filed a relat
complaint against the same defendants in the NortfDestrict of California, Case No. 4:11-cv-062Y6GR. The Wallen complai
largely repeats the allegations in the Greenbengptaint. Greenberg and Wallen each sought to reptes class of persons w
purchased the Company's common stock between Ma2dil1 and November 15, 2011.

On February 29, 2012, the court ordered the Gregnaed Wallen actions consolidated and appointetvddsal-Investment-
Gesellschaft mbH as lead plaintiff. On May 4, 202, lead plaintiff filed a Consolidated Amendedi@aint, which alleges th
the Company, Robert S. Weiss and Eugene J. Midladkted Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange @& 1934 by, amor
other things, making misrepresentations with aarihto deceive investors concerning the safethefAvaira® Toric and Avair
Sphere contact lenses, which the Company recall@@1il1. On August 7, 2012, the Court heard argumentefendants' motion
dismiss the Consolidated Amended Complaint. On aanu, 2013, the Court granted defendants' motmrdismiss th
Consolidated Amended Complaint, with leave to amédd February 4, 2013, the lead plaintiff filed ac8nhd Consolidatt
Amended Complaint, which again alleges that the @amg, Robert S. Weiss and Eugene J. Midlock vidl&ection 10(b) of tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by, among othergsi making misrepresentations with an intent ttete investors concerni
the 2011 recall of Avaira contact lenses. The Seédonsolidated Amended Complaint seeks unspediidéadages on behalf o
purported class of persons who purchased the Cortspanmmon stock between August 19, 2011 and Noeerhb, 2011. C
March 6, 2013, the defendants moved to dismisStdwwmnd Consolidated Amended Complaint. On April2I4,3, the Court hes
argument on defendants' motion to dismiss the Se€unsolidated Amended Complaint. On May 31, 2@&8,Court grante
defendants'
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motion to dismiss the Second Consolidated Amendeaflaint without leave to amend and entered findgment in favor ¢
defendants. Plaintiff did not file a notice of appeithin the time prescribed by law.

Derivative Litigation

On January 9, 2012, Joseph Operman filed a pupsttareholder derivative complaint in the Unitedt&t District Court for tt
Northern District of California, Case No. 4-cv-00143YGR, against members of the Company's board ofcidire. Thi
derivative complaint seeks recovery on behalf ef@@mpany, which is named as a “nominal defendaime’ derivative complai
purports to allege causes of action for breachidifcfary duties and failure to exercise oversigigponsibilities against

defendants and a cause of action for contributigairst Mr. Weiss for alleged violations of Sectidi(b) of the Securitic
Exchange Act of 1934. On May 18, 2012, Opermardfde@ amended derivative complaint. The amended/atere complair
largely repeats the allegations of misrepresemtatim the securities class action complaints deedriabove, and incluc
allegations of false projections of future finahgisults. On June 13, 2013, Operman voluntarilywedothe Court to dismiss 1
derivative action without prejudice. On July 24 130after the Company's shareholders were providgdnotice of the voluntal
motion for dismissal and an opportunity to objectd no objections were received, the Court entaridal order of dismissal
the derivative action.

Note 12. Business Segment Information

Cooper uses operating income, as presented iniramdial reports, as the primary measure of segmpeafitability. We do nc
allocate costs from corporate functions to segnugrarating income. Items below operating income raoe considered whi
measuring the profitability of a segment. We use shme accounting policies to generate segmenktsesi we do for ol
consolidated results.

Total net sales include sales to customers astegpor our Consolidated Statements of Income ales $gtween geographic ar
that are priced at terms that allow for a reasanabbfit for the seller. Operating income (lossjatal net sales less cost of se
selling, general and administrative expenses, resemd development expenses, amortization of gilbéen assets and the loss
divestiture of Aime. Corporate operating loss iggpally corporate headquarters expense. Inteaggénse, gain on insural
proceeds, loss on extinguishment of debt and dtlteme (expense), net are not allocated to indalidegments. Neither of ¢
business segments relies on any one major customer.

Identifiable assets are those used in continuiregaifpns except cash and cash equivalents, whicinelede as corporate ass
Long-lived assets are property, plant and equipment

The following table presents a summary of our bessrsegment net sales:

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
CooperVision net sales by category:
Toric lens $ 388,06t $ 357,21. $ 339,18«
Multifocal lens 121,73« 94,44 74,74:
Single-use sphere lens 271,00( 267,09( 243,62:
Non single-use sphere and other eye care produndtstaer 487,51 470,50( 463,58¢
Total CooperVision net sales 1,268,31! 1,189,24. 1,121,13i
CooperSurgical net sales 319,40t 255,89: 209,69
Total net sales $ 1,587,720 $ 1,445,131 $ 1,330,83!
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Information by business segment for each of thesyimathe three-year period ended October 31, 2@1l8ws:

(In thousands) CooperVision CooperSurgical Corporate Consolidated
2013

Net sales $ 1,268,331 $ 319,40t $ — $ 1,587,722
Operating income (loss) $ 289,27. $ 60,68: $ (44,01) $ 305,94!
Other income, net 1,41(
Interest expense (9,16%)
Gain on insurance proceeds 14,08
Income before income taxes $ 312,27:
Identifiable assets $ 2,376,022 $ 632,84 $ 128,39! $§ 3,137,26.
Depreciation expense $ 88,35( $ 6,31€ $ 444 % 95,11(
Amortization expense $ 16,71 % 13,52¢ % — $ 30,23¢
Capital expenditures $ 170,73¢ $ 6,88¢ $ 50C $ 178,12
2012

Net sales $ 1,189,24 $ 255,89. $ — $ 1,44513
Operating income (loss) $ 262,80t $ 58,95t $ (38,369 $ 283,39¢
Other income, net 22¢
Interest expense (22,777
Gain on insurance proceeds 5,00(
Loss on extinguishment of debt (1,409
Income before income taxes $ 275,45:
Identifiable assets $ 225147 $ 607,67 $ 82,23t $ 2,941,38
Depreciation expense $ 82,82¢ $ 4,10¢ $ 30C $ 87,23t
Amortization expense $ 15,57¢  $ 8,401 $ — ¢ 23,97¢
Capital expenditures $ 92,45¢ % 6,647 $ 67 9 99,77¢
2011

Net sales $ 1,121,13 $ 209,69° $ — $ 1,330,83
Operating income (loss) $ 207,48! $ 52,42( $ (32,349 % 227,55t
Other expense, net (969)
Interest expense (17,347
Loss on extinguishment of debt (16,48)
Income before income taxes $ 192,76
Identifiable assets $ 2,206,060 $ 354,02( $ 64,43( $ 2,624,51
Depreciation expense $ 74,14¢ % 3,26¢ % 21C % 77,62(
Amortization expense $ 14,24 $ 6,28¢ $ — $ 20,52¢
Capital expenditures $ 97,13. % 6,287 $ 247 % 103,66!
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Information by geographical area by country of dahaifor each of the years in the three-year pednded October 31, 2013
follows:

Rest of

World, Other
United Eliminations

(In thousands) States Europe & Corporate Consolidated
2013

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 742,21t $ 479,14: $ 366,36 $ 1,587,72
Sales between geographic areas 230,38: 326,33t (556,72() —
Net sales $ 972,59¢ $ 805,48. $ (190,359 $ 1,587,72!
Operating income (loss) $ 49,71 % (5,38¢) $ 261,62 $ 305,94!
Long-lived assets $ 42756( $ 297,15 $ 15,15 $ 739,86
2012

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 680,75 $ 408,81: $ 355,56t $  1,445,13
Sales between geographic areas 198,59: 318,19¢ (516,789 —
Net sales $ 879,35( % 727,00¢ $ (161,22) $  1,445,13
Operating income $ 4497 % 5361 $ 233,05c $ 283,39¢
Long-lived assets $ 371,31 $ 261,26¢ $ 7,672 $ 640,25!
2011

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 627,43t $ 392,15. $ 311,24! $ 1,330,83!
Sales between geographic areas 172,61t 304,58! (477,20) —
Net sales $ 800,05¢ $ 696,73 $ (165,959 $ 1,330,83
Operating income $ 37,11 $ 18,70: $ 171,74C  $ 227,55t
Long-lived assets $ 37321. % 226,66 $ 9,32¢ % 609,20!
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Note 13. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudid)

First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013
Net sales $ 379,83¢ $ 384,04. $ 411,99 $ 411,85:
Gross profit $ 240,49( $ 254,17¢ $ 268,27: $ 263,85
Income before income taxes* $ 80,97¢ $ 78,94( % 91,26« $ 61,09:
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 74,667 $ 75,13t $ 88,95. $ 57,39
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsld
basic $ 154 % 155 $ 182 $ 1.1¢
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsld
diluted $ 15C $ 152 % 1.7¢ % 1.1¢F
2012
Net sales $ 326,06( $ 344,58¢ $ 378,18t $ 396,30:
Gross profit $ 210,45. $ 220,69t $ 240,09 $ 252,76:
Income before income taxes $ 58,747 $ 62,67¢ $ 71,380 % 82,63¢
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 54,62: $ 54,92. $ 66,87F $ 71,92(
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsléd
basic $ 115 % 1.1 $ 139 3 1.4¢
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsld
diluted $ 11z 1.1z % 1.3¢ % 1.4¢€

*Fiscal fourth quarter 2013 results include the .$2illion loss on divestiture of Aime. See Notét additional information.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has established and currently main@isdosure controls and procedures designed tarerthat informatio
required to be disclosed in its reports filed unther Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recordedcgssed, summarized «
reported within the time periods specified by thee8ities and Exchange Commission and that suchmnation is accumulat:
and communicated to management, including the (Ewetutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, atlow timely decision
regarding required disclosures. In designing araluating the disclosure controls and procedures)agement recognizes t
controls and procedures, no matter how well desigared operated, can provide only reasonable assu@hachieving desir
control objectives. In reaching a reasonable l®fehssurance, management necessarily was requiragply its judgment
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possitntrols and procedures.

In conjunction with the close of each fiscal quartee Company conducts a review and evaluatiodeuthe supervision and w
the participation of the Company's managementudioy the Chief Executive Officer and Chief FinacOfficer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of then@@my's disclosure controls and procedures. Thepa@oys Chief Executiy
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, based uponitiewaluation as of October 31, 201®he end of the fiscal period covered in
report, concluded that the Company's disclosuréralsrand procedures were effective at the readersasurance level.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigdaing, as such term
defined in Rule 1345(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 193terimal control over financial reporting is a pracegsigne
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thebil@liaof financial reporting and the preparatiofi financial statements f
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles. Because of its inheliaritations, internal contr:
over financial reporting may not prevent or detdktnisstatements, errors or fraud.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgrajpaternal control over financial reporting as@dtober 31, 2013based o
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsgi®©rganizations of the Treadway Commissiohniernal Control - Integrated
Framework (1992) . Based on this assessment, management, undeufbevision and with the participation of the Comye
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeoncluded that the Company's internal controlr direncial reporting we
effective as of October 31, 2013 .

The Company's independent registered public acoaurirm, KPMG LLP, has audited the effectivenedstite Company

internal control over financial reporting as of Gwér 31, 2013 as stated in their report in Part Il, Item 8wEtAnnual Report ¢
Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company's inteamatol over financial reporting during the Companfyscal quarter end
October 31, 2013 that has materially affected, or is reasonalkglyi to materially affect, the Company's internahtrol ove
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governe.

The information required by this item is incorpetby reference to the subheadings, “Proposal lectiin of Directors,”
“Executive Officers of the Company,” “Ownershiptbe Company - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownershipdréeng Compliance,”
“Corporate Governance - The Board of Directors,’bff@brate Governance - Ethics and Business Condulatyf® “ Corporat:
Governance - Board Committees - The Audit Commiitaeel “Report of the Audit Committeeasf the Company's Proxy Statem
for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduletig¢dield in March 2014 (the “2014 Proxy Statement”)

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorpedtby reference to the subheadings “Compensatiomn@itee Report,”
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Execut@empensation Tables” and “Director Compensatiofh'the 2014 Prox
Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aibinagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

See Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equitgt Related Stockholder Matter€Equity Compensation Plan Informati
Additional information required by this item is onporated by reference to the subheadings “Seesitiifeld by Managemengihc
“Principal Securityholders” of the “Ownership oktlCompany” section of the 2014 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, dbutector Independence.

The information required by this item is incorpetby reference to the subheadings “Corporate Gavee -Related Pari
Transactions,” “Proposal 1 - Election of Directorid “Corporate Governance - The Board of Direttafsthe 2014 Prox
Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorpediy reference to “Report of the Audit Committsettion of the 2014 Pro
Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(&) 1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements are filed asaat jpf this report:

Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firm
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Statements of Income for the years ended Octohe2®13, 2012 and 2011

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for éa@syended October 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Balance Sheets as of October 31, 2013 and 2012

Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the yeadedrOctober 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Qc8ih013, 2012 and 2011
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules of the Company.

Schedule Number Description
Schedule Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(b) Exhibits.
The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibitexére filed as part of this report.

All other schedules which are included in the aggllle accounting regulations of the Securities &mxthang
Commission are not required here because theyatpplicable.
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Schedule |
THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Three Years Ended October 31, 2013

Additions

Balance Charged to (Deductions) Balance

Beginning Costs and Recoveries/ at End
(In thousands) of Year Expenses Other (1) of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year Ended October 31, 2013 $ 437 % 152 % (637) $ 5,261
Year Ended October 31, 2012 $ 4,82¢ $ (257 $ (195) $ 4,37¢
Year Ended October 31, 2011 $ 4,23t $ 228: $ (1,699 $ 4,82¢

@ Consists of additions representing allowances andveries, less deductions representing receivablgen off as uncollectibli

Balance Balance

Beginning Reductions/ Charges at End
(In thousands) of Year Additions 2 of Year
Income tax valuation allowance:
Year Ended October 31, 2013 $ 1,107 $ — $ (139 $ 96¢
Year Ended October 31, 2012 $ — 1,107 $ — $ 1,107
Year Ended October 31, 2011 $ — — % — 3 —

@ During the fiscal third quarter of 2013, the Compaevalued its deferred tax assets and liabilitessding in Denmark, alol
with the related valuation allowance to reflect tieavly enacted tax rate change that incrementaityehsed the corporate
rate.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused t
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtiereunto duly authorized, on December 20, 2013.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.
By: /sl ROBERT S. WEISS

Robert S. Weiss
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacitiescatdid on the dates set forth opposite their resjeacames.

Signature Capacity Date
/sl ROBERT S. WEISS President, Chief Executive Officer and Director December 20, 201
(Robert S. Weiss)
/sl A. THOMAS BENDER Chairman of the Board December 20, 201
(A. Thomas Bender)
/s ALLAN E. RUBENSTEIN, M.D. Vice Chairman of the Board and Lead Director December 20, 201

(Allan E. Rubenstein)
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chiefsk

/sl GREG W. MATZ Officer December 20, 201
(Greg W. Matz) (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl RODNEY E. FOLDEN Vice President and Corporate Controller December 20, 201
(Rodney E. Folden) (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s MICHAEL H. KALKSTEIN Director December 20, 201
(Michael H. Kalkstein)
/s/ JODY S. LINDELL Director December 20, 201
(Jody S. Lindell)
/s GARY S. PETERSMEYER Director December 20, 201
(Gary S. Petersmeyer)
/s DONALD PRESS Director December 20, 201
(Donald Press)
/sl STEVEN ROSENBERG Director December 20, 201
(Steven Rosenberg)
/sl STANLEY ZINBERG, M.D. Director December 20, 201
(Stanley Zinberg)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

L ocation of
Exhibit in

Second Restated Certificate of Incorporatidedfiwith the Delaware Secretary of State, incorgataby reference
Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Current Report on F8ri dated January 13, 2006

Amended and Restated Bgws, The Cooper Companies, Inc., dated Decembe2@¥), incorporated by reference
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on F8rkidated December 15, 2010

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dateaf &ctober 29, 2007, between the Company and AwaerStoc
Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent, incogped by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Companyiséht Repo

Indenture, dated as of January 31, 2007, byaamohg The Cooper Companies, Inc., the Subsidiar&htors listed ¢
the signatures pages thereto, and HSBC Bank USAoMa Association, including the form of 7.125%n&e Note:
due 2015, incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Company's Current Report on Forr 8ted on February ¢

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of dgnB81, 2007, by and among The Cooper Companies, Gitigrouy
Global Markets Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (UBAYL, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and KeyBanc Gdpvarkets,
division of McDonald Investments, Inc., incorpohtey reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's €ntrReport o

Change in Control Agreement entered into aduajust 21, 1989, by and between Robert S. Weisstlamdompan'
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Anmaedt No. 1 to the Company's Annual Report on FobrKifor the

Change in Control Agreement entered into alaafiary 3, 2007, and amended September 9, 20@8\cblgetween Albe

The Cooper Companies, Inc. Change in Contreéece Plan, dated May 21, 2007, incorporatecference to Exhik
10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on FormQ@or the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2007

Change in Control Agreement entered into akiok 8, 2007, by and between The Cooper Compdnesnd Eugene
Midlock, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@d8the Company's Annual Report on FormKL@er the fiscal yee

Change in Control Agreement dated as of Ju®@7, by and between The Cooper Companies, lacJalmn A. Webe
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to thempany's Annual Report on form X0for the fiscal year end

Change in Control Agreement dated as of Jun2087, by and between The Cooper Companies, Iret.Garol R
Kaufman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1id.2he Company's Annual Report on form K@er the fiscal yee

Change in Control Agreement dated as of Jurz010, by and between The Cooper Companies, It Gaagory W
Matz , incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@7the Company's Annual Report on FormKL@er the fiscal yee

Exhibit Sequential
Number Description of Document Number System
3.1
3.2
4.1
on Form 8-K dated October 30, 2007
4.2
2007
4.3
Form 8-K filed on February 6, 2007
10.1
fiscal year ended October 31, 1992
10.2
G. White 11l and the Company
10.3
10.4
ended October 31, 2007
10.5
October 31, 2008
10.6
ended October 31, 2009
10.7
ended October 31, 2011
10.8

1996 Long-term Incentive Plan for Nemployee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Imcgliporated by reference
Appendix A to the Company's Proxy Statement fol 896 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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L ocation of
Exhibit in
Exhibit Sequential
Number  Description of Document Number System

10.9 - Amendment No. 1 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPor Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iretec
October 10, 1996, incorporated by reference to liikhi0.14 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 1996

10.10- Amendment No. 2 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPior Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iratec
October 29, 1997, incorporated by reference to likHhi0.15 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 1997

10.11- Amendment No. 3 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPor Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iretec
October 29, 1999, incorporated by reference to IixHi0.15 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1f@r the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2001

10.12- Amendment No. 4 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPor Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iretec
October 24, 2000, incorporated by reference to likHi0.16 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2001

10.13- Amendment No. 5 to the 1996 Long-term IncentiRlan for Noremployee Directors of The Cooper Companies,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to thmmPany's Annual Report on Form KOfor the fiscal year end:
October 31, 2001

10.14-Amendment No. 6 to the 1996 Long-term Insenflan for Noremployee Directors of The Cooper Companies,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to thenPany's Registration Statement on forn8 8ated November 2z
2002

10.15-Amendment No. 7 to the 1996 Long-term InaenRlan for Noremployee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Intec
November 4, 2002, incorporated by reference to lkhi0.16 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1i@r the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2002

10.16- Amendment No. 8 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPior Non-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Intec
October 29, 2003, incorporated by reference to IixHi0.16 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1f@r the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2003

10.17Amendment No. 9 to 1996 Long-term Incentive PlanNon-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Intec
November 9, 2005, incorporated by reference to lhi0.17 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1i@r the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2006

10.18- Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to The@ge Companies, Inc. 1996 Long Term Incer
Plan for Non-Employee Directors, incorporated bfemence to the Company's Current Report on Forkh d@atec
December 13, 2004

10.19- Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuarithie Cooper Companies, Inc. 1996 Long Term Incerfilan for Non-
Employee Directors, incorporated by reference ® @ompany's Current Report on FornK&ated December 1
2004

10.20- The Second Amended and Restated 2006 Long Tecentive Plan for Nof=mployee Directors of The Cooj
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to the@ny's Proxy Statement filed February 2, 2011

10.21- Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended andaRekR006 Long-term Incentive Plan for NEemployee Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc., incorporated by reteréa Exhibit 10.21 to the Company's Annual Reparform 10K
for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2011
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10.22- Amendment No. 2 to the Second Amended andalResP006 Long-term Incentive Plan for NEmployee Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc., incorporated by reteréa Exhibit 10.22 to the Company's Annual Reparform 10K
for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2012

10.23 - Amendment No. 3 to the Second AmendedrRasiated 2006 Long-term Incentive Plan for Nomployee Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc.

10.24- Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to The@ge Companies, Inc. 2006 Long Term Incer
Plan for NonEmployee Directors, incorporated by reference tbildik 10.25 of the Company's Annual Report on F
10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2007

10.25- Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuarithie Cooper Companies, Inc. 2006 Long Term Incerfilan for Non-
Employee Directors, incorporated by reference thiiik10.26 of the Company's Annual Report on FAiOK for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2007

10.26- Second Amended and Restated 2001 Lbagn Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference fpehdix 10.2 to tf
Company's Quarterly Report on Form-Ifor the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006

10.27- Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement Punsua The Cooper Companies, Inc. 2001 Long Ternentice Plar
incorporated by reference to the Company's CuReppiort on Form 8-K dated December 13, 2004

10.28- The Second Amended and Restated 2007 Oamg: Incentive Plan of The Cooper Companies, limcorporated b
reference to the Company's Proxy Statement fildofsey 2, 2011

10.29- Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreementr§uant to the 2007 LonBerm Incentive Plan of The Coo
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhilh32 of the Company's Annual Report on FornKlfar the fisca
year ended October 31, 2007

10.30- Form of UK Tax Approved Stock Option Agreeméhirsuant to the 2007 Lonigerm Incentive Plan of The Cooj
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhilh33 of the Company's Annual Report on FornKlfar the fisca
year ended October 31, 2007

10.31- Form of Deferred Stock Agreement Pursuanthi 2007 LondgFerm Incentive Plan of The Cooper Companies,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 of thenfpany's Annual Report on Form KOfor the fiscal year end:
October 31, 2007

10.32 License Agreement dated as of November 19, 2007arxy among CIBA Vision AG, CIBA Vision Corporated

@. CooperVision, Inc., incorporated by reference tdibit 10.41 to the Company's Annual Report on FAO for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2008

10.33®- Amendment No. 1 to the License Agreement datedf &owember 19, 2007, by and among CIBA Vision AGB&
Vision Corporate and CooperVision, Inc., incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Compan@urrent Report (
Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2012

10.34Lease Contract dated as of November 6, 2003, bybatdeen The Puerto Rico Industrial Development Gamy an
Ocular Sciences Puerto Rico, Inc., incorporatedebgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's CurfRegport on Fort
8-K dated January 11, 2005

10.35- First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Contraeddas of December 30, 2003, by and between Thed’Recc
Industrial Development Company and Ocular Sciezesto Rico, Inc., incorporated by reference toikiki0.2 to th
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Janlr2005
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10.36Assignment of Lease Agreement dated as of Jun€2@%®4, by and among Ocular Sciences Puerto Rico, (cula
Sciences Cayman Islands Corporation and The PR&rtIndustrial Development Company, incorporatgddierenc
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current ReporForm 8-K dated January 11, 2005

10.37- Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2@biong The Cooper Companies, Inc., CooperVisioertaitione
Holding Company LP, the lenders from time to tineaty thereto, KeyBank National Association, as aloonner,
lead arranger, and sole administrative agent, switgglender and LC issuer, J.P. Morgan Securitie€, as a lea
arranger, bookrunner and syndication agent, Ciigréslobal Markets Inc., as a lead arranger, boaleuran
syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A., as a lagdnger and documentation agent, and Wells FRamgd, Natione
Association, as lead arranger and documentationtageorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 te thompany
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed March 4, 2011

10.38Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as oy 88, 2012, among The Cooper Companies, Inc., Gdigien

- International Holding Company, LP, the lenders ydhereto and KeyBank National Association, as aistriative
agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Blgy2012

10.39 - Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as qftedaber 12, 2013, among The Cooper Companies,
CooperVision International Holding Company, LP, tleaders party thereto and KeyBank National Asgmia a
administrative agent, incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report onnkF@&K datec
September 17, 2013

10.40- The Cooper Companies, Inc. 2013 Incentive PayrRéan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16fthe Company
Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 4, 2013

10.41The Cooper Companies, Inc. 2014 Incentive Payméart, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 v Company

- Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2013

10.42- Form of Long Term Performance Share Award &grent Pursuant to the 2007 Lofigrm Incentive Plan of The Cooj
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Hkhial of the Company's Current Report on ForriK 8atec
February 13, 2009

10.43 - Term loan agreement, dated as of September 12, 2@idhg The Cooper Companies, Inc., the lendetyg ffareto, an
KeyBank National Association, as Administrative Ageincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te thompany
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 17, 2013

11® - Calculation of earnings per shar

21 - Subsidiaries

23 - Consent and Report on Schedule of Independegisiered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 - Certification of the Chief Executive @#r, pursuant to Rule 134(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

31.2 - Certification of the Chief Financial @#r pursuant to Rule 13k4(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

32.1 - Certification of the Chief Executive Officemqsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135

32.2 - Certification of the Chief Financial Officerygsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135
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101 The following materials from the Company's AahReport on Form 18- for the year ended October 31, 2(

formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Langua@RL); (i) Consolidated Statements of Income tioe year
ended October 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (ii) Codatdd Statements of Comprehensive Income (Losshéoyear
ended October 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (iii) Caodatdd Balance Sheets at October 2013 and 201}
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity tfer years ended October 31, 2013, 2012 and 20}
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded October 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (vi) reélatges t
consolidated financial statements and (vii) Schediu/aluation and Qualifying Accounts.

(@) The agreement received confidential treatment filoenSecurities and Exchange Commission with respextrtain portior
of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filegharately with the Commission.

(b) The information required in this exhibit is provitlm Note 6, Earnings Per Share, in this re
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Exhibit 10.2

CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

THIS CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT (this "Agreement'fated as of January 3, 2007, is made by and be
The Cooper Companies, Inc., a Delaware corpordtien"Company"), and Albert G. White, Ill ("Execu").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Executive is a senior executive of the @any and has made and is expected to continue ke majo
contributions to the short- and long-term profitityai growth and financial strength of the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company recognizes that, as is the fmasnost publicly held companies, the possibitifya Change |
Control (as defined below) exists;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to assure itself ¢ lppesent and future continuity of management deslres t
establish certain minimum severance benefits fachtive, applicable in the event of a Change int@dbn

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to ensure that Exeeusivnot practically disabled from discharging digies ir
respect of a proposed or actual transaction inaghai Change in Control,

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide additiomdlicement for the Executive to continue to reniiaithe emplo
of the Company; and

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2006, the Organization & Cemgation Committee of the Board (as defined be
authorized the Company to enter into this Agreeraedtreaffirmed their approval on December 13, 2006

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and Executive agrdelkasvs:

1. Certain Defined Termsin addition to terms defined elsewhere hereip, fitllowing terms have the followil
meanings when used in this Agreement with initeglital letters:

(a) "Base Pay" means Executive's annual baaeysalte as in effect from time to time.

(b) "Board" means the Board of Directors of @@mpany.

(c) "Cause" means gross misconduct injurioub@écCompany, as determined in a written opiniomesed to the
Board by the Company's outside counsel, and which




has not been remedied (to the fullest extent plegdiy the Executive within ten days after writtestice thereof to Executive
the Board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall betdeemed to have been terminated for "Cause" mgeewnless and ur
there shall have been delivered to the Executivepy of a resolution duly adopted by the affirmatixote of not less than two-
thirds of the Board then in office at a meetingtlnd Board called and held for such purpose, aé#asanable notice to {
Executive and an opportunity for the Executive etbgr with the Executive's counsel (if the Exeaitthooses to have cour
present at such meeting), to be heard before tlredBdéinding that, in the good faith opinion of tBeard, the Executive h
committed an act constituting "Cause" and spedifyhe particulars thereof in detail. Nothing hereiill limit the right of the
Executive or his beneficiaries to contest the glidr propriety of any such determination.

(d) "Change in Control" means the occurrencénduthe Term of any of the following events:

0] The acquisition by any individual, entity or gro(wgithin the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)¢&
the Exchange Act) (a "Person") of beneficial owhgrg(within the meaning of Rule 13l-promulgated under t
Exchange Act) of 50% or more of the combined vopower of the then outstanding Voting Stock of @@npany; or

(i) consummation of a reorganization, merger or codatiin, a sale or other disposition of all
substantially all of the assets of the Companytber transaction (each, a "Business Combinatiamilgss, in each ca
immediately following such Business Combination) @ or substantially all of the individuals anatiées who were tt
beneficial owners of Voting Stock of the Companymiediately prior to such Business Combination berafy own
directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the comdxinvoting power of the then outstanding sharesaiing Stock of th
entity resulting from such Business Combinatiorcl(iding, without limitation, an entity which as asuolt of suc
transaction owns the Company or all or substagtalll of the Company's assets either directly oodlgh one or mo
subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportigiative to each other as their ownership, imntetigorior to suc
Business Combination, of the Voting Stock of therpany and (B) no Person beneficially owns, direotlyndirectly
50% or more of the combined voting power of thentbatstanding shares of Voting Stock of the emésulting fron
such Business Combination.

(e) "Employee Benefits" means any life, disaépilgroup health and dental benefit plans; providéwwever, tha
Employee Benefits shall not include contributionad® by the Company to any retirement plan, pengiam or profi
sharing plan for the benefit of the Executive immection with amounts earned by the Executive.




(f) "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchafwgeof 1934, as amended.

(9) "Subsidiary" means an entity in which then@pany directly or indirectly beneficially owns 5086 more of th
outstanding Voting Stock.

(h) "Voting Stock" means securities entitled/tde generally in the election of directors.

2. Termination Following a Change in Control

In the event that in the 90 day period following tonsummation of a Change in Control, the employraEExecutiv:
is terminated by the Company for any reason otieen Cause or by Executive for any reason then timep@ny shall,

@) on the first day of each of the twelve months feilng the date of such termination, pay to Execl
onetwelfth of the amount of Executive's annual Basg Ba in effect immediately prior to such terminatidess applicab
withholding), and

(b) for the one year period following such terminati@ontinue to provide to Executive all Emplo
Benefits which were received by, or with respectBrecutive as of the date of such terminatiomatdditional expense
Executive.

3. _Successors and Binding Agreeme(d) The Company will require any successor (wrettirect or indirect,
purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganizatiootloerwise) to all or substantially all of the biess or assets of the Comp:
by agreement in form and substance reasonablyfesdtisy to the Executive, expressly to assume ardeato perform th
Agreement in the same manner and to the same ekier@ompany would be required to perform if nohssaccession hi
taken place. This Agreement will be binding upod @&mure to the benefit of the Company and any ssmeto the Compar
including without limitation any persons acquiridgectly or indirectly all or substantially all @¢he business or assets of
Company whether by purchase, merger, consolidatieor,ganization or otherwise (and such successall #hereafter kb
deemed the "Company" for the purposes of this Age), but will not otherwise be assignable, traredile or delegable by 1
Company.

(b) This Agreement will inure to the benefitasid be enforceable by the Executive's personagal representative
executors, administrators, successors, heirsjligtes and legatees.

(c) This Agreement is personal in nature antheeiof the parties hereto shall, without the cansé the other, assic
transfer or delegate this Agreement or any rightshligations hereunder except as expressly prohideésections 3(a) and 3(
Without limiting the generality or effect of therémoing, the Executive's right to receive paymdrgseunder will not t
assignable, transferable or delegable, whetheldnigp, creation of a security interest, or otheewither than by a transfer
Executive's will or by the laws




of descent and distribution and, in the event of atempted assignment or transfer contrary to Sleistion 3(c), the Compa
shall have no liability to pay any amount so atteedgo be assigned, transferred or delegated.

4. Notices. For all purposes of this Agreement, all commations, including without limitation notices, cemss
requests or approvals, required or permitted tgiben hereunder will be in writing and will be deednto have been duly giv
when hand delivered or dispatched by electronisifiaite transmission (with receipt thereof orallynéiomed), or five busine:
days after having been mailed by United Statesstexgd or certified mail, return receipt requesteuktage prepaid, or thi
business days after having been sent by a natyoresbgnized overnight courier service such as kedlPS, or DHL, address
to the Company (to the attention of the Secretdrthe Company) at its principal executive officadan the Executive at
principal residence, or to such other address pparty may have furnished to the other in writamgd in accordance herew
except that notices of changes of address shalffeetive only upon receipt.

5.  Validity . If any provision of this Agreement or the applicatiof any provision hereof to any persor
circumstances is held invalid, unenforceable oentiise illegal, the remainder of this Agreement #mel application of sut
provision to any other person or circumstances moll be affected, and the provision so held tortvalid, unenforceable
otherwise illegal will be reformed to the extemdaonly to the extent) necessary to make it enédlee valid or legal.

6. _Arbitration; Governing Law Any dispute between the parties under this Agerenshall be resolved (excep!
provided below) in Pleasanton, California througfoimal arbitration by an arbitrator selected unither rules of the Americi
Arbitration Association and the arbitration sha#l donducted in that location under the rules al gaisociation. The arbitral
shall have the right only to interpret and apply finovisions of this Agreement and may not chatgprbvisions. The arbitrai
shall permit reasonable phearing discovery of facts, to the extent necessaegtablish a claim or a defense to a claim,esu
to supervision by the arbitrator. The determinatibthe arbitrator shall be conclusive and bindipgn the parties and judgm
upon the same may be entered in any court havingdjation thereof. The arbitrator shall give weitt notice to the parti
stating his or their determination and shall funnis each party a signed copy of such determinafibe expense of arbitrati
shall be borne equally by the Executive and the @y or as the arbitrator shall otherwise equitaletermine.

7. _Miscellaneous No provision of this Agreement may be modifiechived or discharged unless such wa
modification or discharge is agreed to in writingned by the Executive and the Company. No waiyeeither party hereto
any time of any breach by the other party heret@@npliance with any condition or provision of thgreement to k
performed by such other party will be deemed a aof similar or dissimilar provisions or conditeat the same or at ¢
prior or subsequent time. This




Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of #mees with respect to the subject matter heredf supersedes any and
prior agreements of the parties with respect tohssgbject matter. No agreements or representationas, or otherwist
expressed or implied with respect to the subjedtenhereof have been made by either party whiemat set forth expressly
this Agreement. References to Sections are toaefes to Sections of this Agreement.

8. _Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in one or more eopatts, each of which shall be deeme
be an original but all of which together will comste one and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thiee@ignent to be duly executed and delivered as ofidite firs
above written.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

[s/ Carol R. Kaufman

By: Carol R. Kaufman

Title:  Sr. Vice President of Legal Affairs,
Secretary and CAO

Executive:

/s/ Albert G. White Il
Name: Albert G. White Il
Vice President & Treasurer




AMENDMENT TO CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, The Cooper Companies, Inc. (the "CompargyDelaware corporation, and Albert G. White, I
("Executive") have entered into a Change in Corigrieement dated January 3, 2007 (the "Agreemesutt);

WHEREAS, the Company and Executive now mutuallyrdds amend the Agreement.

THEREFORE, effective upon full execution of this Andment to the Agreement (the "Amendment"), thesAgrent is
amended as follows:

1. By inserting the following new section as Saeti(g) of the Agreement, and by renumbering thiefang sections
accordingly:

"(g) 'Separation from Service' means the termimadExecutive's services to the Company and disisliaries, whether
voluntarily or involuntarily, in accordance with&as. Reg. §1.409A-1(h)."

2. By adding the following at the end of Section 2l Agreemen
"For purposes of the payments contemplated undeBtction 2 of the Agreement, termination of tredutive's employment
with the Company shall mean the Executive's Sejparéiom Service. The continuation of Employee Béaés not subject to

liquidation or exchange for other benefits. Thétip installment payments shall be treated asitfit to a series of separate
payments for purposes of Section 409A of the lateRevenue Code of 1986, as amended (the ‘Code’)."

3. By adding the following new section as Section $hef Agreemen

"9. Section 409A Compliance.

@ To the extent applicable, this Agreement shallnverpreted in accordance with Section 409A of thdeCand
Department of Treasury regulations and other imégne guidance issued thereunder. If the CompanyExecutive determine
that any compensation or benefits payable undsAgreement do not comply with Section 409A of @aele and related
Department of Treasury guidance, the Company amrdiEie agree to amend this Agreement or take sthedr actions as the
Company and Executive deem necessary or appropoiatamply with the requirements of Section 409Are Code while
preserving the economic agreement of the parties.

(b) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary irstAgreement, if Executive is deemed at the timbisf
Separation from Service to be a 'specified empldgeg@urposes of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of thedg, to the extent delayed
commencement of any portion of the benefits to wiigecutive is entitled under Section 2 of this @gmnent is required in ord
to avoid a prohibited distribution under Sectio®A@®)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, such portion of the béts payable to Executive
under Section 2 shall not be paid prior to theieadf (a) the expiration of the six-month perioéasured from the date of
Executive's Separation from




Service or (b) Executive's death. Upon the exmiratif the applicable Code Section 409A(a)(2)(BJé&jerral period, all
payments deferred pursuant to this Section 9 legtlaid in a lump sum and any remaining paymerdgsudder the Agreement
shall be paid as otherwise provided herein. Nostéhding anything herein to the contrary, to th&imam extent permitted by
applicable law, amounts payable to Executive purstaSection 2 herein shall be made in reliana@nufreas. Reg. Section
[.409A- I(b)(9) (Separation Pay Plans) or Treagy.R8ection 1.409A-1(b)(4) (Short-Tern Deferrals ,applicable, and such
amounts shall not be delayed pursuant to this @eéijb)."

No other terms of the Agreement shall be modifigdhis Amendment and the Agreement shall continualiother
respects in full force and effect in accordancdaig terms.

This Amendment may be executed in one or more eopalts, each of which shall be deemed an oridpndll of whict
together will constitute one and the same instrumen

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. EXECUTIVE

/sl Carol R. Kaufman /s/ Albert G. White, IlI
By: Carol R. Kaufman Alb&t White, llI

Its: Sr. Vice President of Legal Affairs, Dated: 9/9/08
Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer

Dated: July 31, 2008




Exhibit 10.23

AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO THE SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
2006 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN FOR
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS OF THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC .

WHEREAS, The Cooper Companies, Inc. (the “Companiggs adopted the Amended and Restated 2006 Long
Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors of theofer Companies, Inc. (the “Plan”); and

WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Plan permits the Board of Directaf the Company to amend the Plan, subject t@ic
limitations; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the Company desires to amend the tBladjust the formula for calculation of the numbg
shares of Restricted Stock and Stock Options gdamnteler Sections 6 and 7 of the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is hereby amended as follows:

FIRST: The first two sentences of Section 6(a) of the Rlgnhereby deleted and replaced witBach Annual Restrict
Stock Grant presented to a NEmployee Director shall entitle the recipient toghase a number of shares of Restri
Stock with a total value of $135,000, or, $148,50€he case of the noexecutive Chairman of the Board. The numb
shares awarded shall be calculated by dividingtoked value of the Annual Restricted Stock Grantthg Fair Marke
Value on the date of grant. In the case of a Haiployee Director who joins the Board after AnnRastricted Stoc
Grants have been made for a given fiscal year, seeh NonEmployee Director upon appointment or election e
Board, shall be entitled to purchase a number afeshof Restricted Stock with a total value of $088, or $148,500
the case of a Non-Employee Director who servesoaserecutive Chairman of the Board, multiplied by acfron, thi
numerator of which shall be the number of monthsnduthe fiscal year that such person will serveaddonEmployet
Director (which shall include as a full month themth that service commences) and the denominatwhiah shall be 1
(a “Mid-Year Restricted Stock Grant”).”;

SECOND: The first two sentences of Section 7 of the Planteareby deleted and replaced witn“each November
each NonEmployee Director shall be granted a Stock Optmmurchase a number of shares of Stock with a val
$135,000, or, in the case of the Lead Director @naily nonexecutive Chairman of the Board, as the case mag balu
of $148,500. In the case of a N&mployee Director who joins the Board after Stoghti@ns have been granted fc
given fiscal year, such new Ndfmployee Director upon appointment or electionhe Board, shall receive a St
Option to purchase a number of shares of Stock avithlue of $135,000, or, in the case of the Leaddibr and/or ar
non-executive Chairman of the Board, as the case mag balue of $148,500, multiplied by a fractiong thumerator ¢
which shall be the number of months during thealigear that such person will serve as a [&omployee Director (whic
shall include as a full month the month that sengommences) and the denominator of which shall2oén either cas
the number of Stock Options awarded shall be calledlby first multiplying the Fair Market Value tre date of grant
the approved volatility rate for accounting purmoaed then dividing the value of the Stock Optiwam by the resultir
amount, rounding to the nearest whole share.”




THIRD : The provisions of this amendment shall be effec@®ctober 24, 2013.

FOURTH : Except to the extent herein above set forthPllae shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Directors of the Company has causediimendment to the Plan to be exec
by a duly authorized officer of the Company.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

By: /sl Carol R. Kaufman
Carol R. Kaufman

Title:  Executive Vice President, Secretary, Ciidministrative Officer & Chief
Governance Officer



Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

JURISDICTION OF
NAME INCORPORATION
THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. Delaware

TCC Acquisition Corp. Delaware
CooperVision, Inc. * New York
CooperVision International Holding Company, LP >  England
CooperVision Ltd. England-Wales
CooperVision Caribbean Corp. Cayman Islands
Coopervision do Brasil Ltda  Brazil
CooperVision Manufacturing Limited England-Wales
CooperVision Canada Corp. Canada
CooperVision Distribution SPRL  Belgium
CooperVision Oy Finland
CooperVision GmbH Germany
CooperVision Italia srl  Italy
Coopervision S.A. (Pty) Limited South Africa
CooperVision Nederland BV  The Netherlands
CooperVision Holdings Japan, KK  Japan
CooperVision Japan, Inc. Japan

Origio A/S Denmark
Cooper Medical, Inc. Delaware
CooperSurgical, Inc. Delaware
Origio, Inc. Virginia

Except as noted, each subsidiary is wholly-owned either by The Cooper Companies, Inc. or by the wholly-owned subsidiary under which it is indented in the list
above.

@ CooperVision, Inc. is 87% owned by TCC Acquisition Corp. and 13% owned by The Cooper Companies, Inc.
@ CooperVision, Inc. general and limited partner and TCC Acquisition Corp. limited partner



Exhibit 23

Consent and Report on Schedule of Independent tessgsPublic Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc.:

The audits referred to in our report dated Decer2Bei2013, with respect to the consolidated finaingiatements of The Cooj
Companies, Inc. (the Company) included the reléitethcial statement schedule as of October 31, 288 for each of the yei
in the three-year period ended October 31, 2018udied in the Form 18- These financial statement schedules are
responsibility of the Company’management. Our responsibility is to expresspanmian on these financial statement schec
based on our audits. In our opinion, such finanstatement schedules, when considered in relatiaid basic consolidat
financial statements taken as a whole; preseny faill material respects the information settiaiherein.

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdgistration statement (Nos. 332417, 333-108066, 333-25051, 333639
333-34206, 333-40431, 333-48152, and 333-80799f@m S-3 and registration statements (Nos. 333-4,0993-58839, 333-
174682, 333-67954, 333-101366, 333-104346, 333-20,5333-133719, 333-133720, 333-14338, and 3339%88n Form B
of the Company of our report dated December 2032@4th respect to the consolidated balance shafetie Company as
October 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related coraetidstatements of income, comprehensive inconss)(lstockholder®quity
and cash flows, for each of the years in the tlyese-period ended October 31, 2013 and relateddinbstatement schedule «
the effectiveness of internal control over finahc#gporting as of October 31, 2013, which repopegrs in the October 31, 2(
annual report on Form & of the Company.

/sl KPMG LLP
San Francisco, California

December 20, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a -14(a)/15d14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert S. Weiss, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKhe Cooper Companies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrali$slosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportifgit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal wohover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer angalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitifiethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: December 20, 2013
/s/ Robert S. Weiss
Robert S. Weiss

President and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a -14(a)/15d14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory W. Matz, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKhe Cooper Companies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over faahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportifgit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal wohover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andhlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: December 20, 2013
/sl Gregory W. Matz
Gregory W. Matz
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert S. Weiss, do hereby certify, pursuant&U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoc8e@06 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

» the Annual Report on Form X0-of the Company for the fiscal year ended Octdfer2013, as filed with the Securities
Exchange Commission (the “Reportfully complies with the requirements of Section d36r 15(d) of the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934; and

* the information contained in the Report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operatic
of the Company.

Date: December 20, 2013 /s/ Robert S. Weiss
Robert S. Weiss
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory W. Matz, do hereby certify, pursuantlé® U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe@06 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

« the Annual Report on Form 1-of the Company for the fiscal year ended Octdier2013, as filed with the Securities
Exchange Commission (the “Reportiylly complies with the requirements of Section d)36r 15(d) of the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934; and

» the information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operatic
of the Company.

Date: December 20, 2013 /sl Gregory W. Matz
Gregory W. Matz
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




